Public Document Pack

>e< EAST AREA COMMITTEE

CHAIR COUNCILLOR KEVIN BLENCOWE (

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA

To: City Councillors: Blencowe (Chair), Wright (Vice-Chair), Benstead, Brown,
Hart, Herbert, Marchant-Daisley, Moghadas, Owers, Pogonowski, Saunders
and Smart

County Councillors: Bourke, Harrison, Sadiq and Sedgwick-Jell

Dispatched: Wednesday, 7 December 2011

Date: Thursday, 15 December 2011

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Meeting Room - Cherry Trees Day Centre

Contact: James Goddard Direct Dial: 01223 457015

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 7:00 PM

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the committee are asked to declare any interests in the items
on the agenda. In the case of any doubt, the advice of the Head of Legal
should be sought before the meeting.

MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 28)
To confirm the minutes of the meetings held on 25 and 27 October 2011.
(Pages 1 - 28)

4 MATTERS & ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
Reference will be made to the Committee Action Sheet available under the



‘Matters & Actions Arising From The Minutes’ section of the previous
meeting agenda.

General agenda information can be accessed using the following hyperlink:

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy/ielListMeetings.aspx?Committeeld
=147

OPEN FORUM: TURN UP AND HAVE YOUR SAY ABOUT NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Committee Manager Note: Timetable Open Forum for 30 mins

5 OPEN FORUM 7:15 PM
Refer to the ‘Information for the Public’ section for rules on speaking.

ITEMS FOR DECISION / DISCUSSION INCLUDING PUBLIC INPUT

6 POLICING AND SAFER NEIGHBOURHOODS (Pages 29 - 7:45 PM
48)
7 EAST AND SOUTH CORRIDOR FUNDING (Pages 49 - 56) 8:15PM
Intermission 8:45 PM

8 APPROACH FROM SAINSBURYS FOR THE CITY 9:00 PM
COUNCIL TO DEDICATE LAND AT 103 MILL ROAD FOR
USE AS A LOADING BAY (Pages 57 - 62)

9 ALTERNATIVE FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS FOR EAC 9:30 PM
MEETINGS
Oral report from Democratic Services Manager on lessons / ideas from the
North Area pilot, to prompt a discussion in response to Councillor
Pogonowski's proposal to discuss alternative future arrangements for EAC
meetings.

10 MEETING DATES 2012/13 (Pages 63 - 66) 10:00 PM
2012/2013 dates for approval:

14 June 2012, 16 August 2012, 18 October 2012, 13 December 2012, 7
February 2013, 11 April 2013

Indicative 2013/2014 dates for information:



13 June 2013, 15 August 2013, 17 October 2013, 12 December 2013, 6
February 2014 and 3 April 2014 (Pages 63 - 66)

PLANNING ITEMS

11

11a
11b
11c
11d
11e

PLANNING APPLICATIONS 10:10 PM
The applications for planning permission listed below require determination.
A report is attached with a plan showing the location of the relevant site.
Detailed plans relating to the applications will be displayed at the meeting.
11/0664/EXP: 187 Cherry Hinton Road (Pages 67 - 120)

11/0535/FUL: 14 Emery Street (Pages 121 - 132)

11/1097/EXP: 71-73 New Street (Pages 133 - 166)

11/0872/FUL: 292 Mill Road (Pages 167 - 194)

11/0288/FUL: 15 Swann’s Road (Pages 195 - 248)



INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

The East Area Committee agenda is usually in the following order:
e Open Forum for public contributions
e Delegated decisions and issues that are of public concern, including
further public contributions
e Planning Applications

This means that planning items will not normally be considered until at
least 8.30pm - see also estimated times on the agenda.

The Open Forum section of the Agenda: Members of the public are invited to ask
any question, or make a statement on any matter related to their local area covered
by the City Council Wards for this Area Committee. The Forum will last up to 30
minutes, but may be extended at the Chair’s discretion. The Chair may also time
limit speakers to ensure as many are accommodated as practicable.

To ensure that your views are heard, please note that there are
Question Slips for Members of the Public to complete.

Public speaking rules relating to planning applications:

Anyone wishing to speak about one of these applications may do so provided that
they have made a representation in writing within the consultation period and have
notified the Area Committee Manager shown at the top of the agenda by 12 Noon
on the day before the meeting of the Area Committee.

Filming, recording and photography at council meetings is allowed subject to
certain restrictions and prior agreement from the chair of the meeting.

Requests to film, record or photograph, whether from a media organisation or a
member of the public, must be made to the democratic services manager at least
three working days before the meeting.

REPRESENTATIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Public representations on a planning application should be made in writing (by e-
mail or letter, in both cases stating your full postal address), within the deadline set
for comments on that application. You are therefore strongly urged to submit your
representations within this deadline.

Submission of late information after the officer's report has been published is to be
avoided. A written representation submitted to the Environment Department by a



member of the public after publication of the officer's report will only be considered if
it is from someone who has already made written representations in time for inclusion
within the officer's report.

Any public representation received by the Department after 12 noon two business
days before the relevant Committee meeting (e.g. by 12.00 noon on Monday before a
Wednesday meeting; by 12.00 noon on Tuesday before a Thursday meeting) will not
be considered.

The same deadline will also apply to the receipt by the Department of additional
information submitted by an applicant or an agent in connection with the relevant item
on the Committee agenda (including letters, e-mails, reports, drawings and all other
visual material), unless specifically requested by planning officers to help decision-
making.

At the meeting public speakers at Committee will not be allowed to circulate any
additional written information to their speaking notes or any other drawings or other
visual material in support of their case that has not been verified by officers and that
is not already on public file.

To all members of the Public
Any comments that you want to make about the way the Council is running Area
Committees are very welcome. Please contact the Committee Manager listed at the

top of this agenda or complete the forms supplied at the meeting.

If you would like to receive this agenda by e-mail, please contact the Committee
Manager.

Additional information for public: City Council officers can also be emailed
firstname.lasthname@cambridge.gov.uk

Information (including contact details) of the Members of the City Council can
be found from this page:
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy




This page is intentionally left blank



East Area Committee Tueséay, 25 October 2011

EAST AREA COMMITTEE 25 October 2011
7.00 -11.45 pm

Present. Councillors Blencowe (Chair), Brown, Hart, Herbert, Marchant-
Daisley, Moghadas, Owers, Saunders, Smart, Bourke and Sadiq

County Councillors: Bourke and Sadiq

Councillor Bourke left after the vote on item 11/50/EACa

Councillor Sadiq left after the vote on item 11/50/EACD.

Officers: Glenn Burgess (Committee Manager), Tony Collins (Principal
Planning Officer), Patsy Dell (Head of Planning Services), Sarah Dyer (City

Development Manager), James Goddard (Committee Manager) and Martin
Whelan (Committee Manager).

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL |

11/47/EAC Apologies For Absence

Councillors Benstead, Harrison, Pogonowski, Sedgwick-Jell and Wright

11/48/EAC Declarations Of Interest

Name Item Interest
Councillor 11/50/EACa | Personal: Member of Cambridge Cycling
Saunders Campaign

11/49/EAC Re-Ordering Agenda

Under paragraph 4.2.1 of the Council Procedure Rules, the Chair used his
discretion to alter the order of the agenda items. However, for ease of the
reader, these minutes will follow the order of the agenda.

11/50/EAC Planning Applications

Page 1



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

11/50/EACa 11/0710/FUL - 103 Mill Road

The Chair ruled that under 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
late item from the Planning Officer be considered despite not being made
publicly available for this committee five clear days prior to the meeting.

The items ruled-in were late objections from residents relating to 103 Mill
Road. These were from:

(i)  Mr Hellawell (Cam Sight).

(i)  Ms Deyermond (Mill Road Society)

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for change of use from Pool Hall (Use Class
D2) to a Sainsbury's Local Store (Use Class A1) together with external
alterations.

The committee received representations in objection to the application from
the following:

Mrs Brightman (Mill Road Society representative)

Mr Lucas-Smith (Cambridge Cycling Campaign representative)
Miss Preston

Ms Grimshaw

Mr Arain

Mr Wood

Mr Gosnell

The representations covered the following issues:

()  Local residents did not want a Sainsbury’s shop in Mill Road. It was
inappropriate for the area and would take away the areas’ only leisure
facility. WT’s, the alternative facility proposed by Sainsbury’s, was not
located near enough; or accessible to; Mill Road residents
(particularly those with disabilities).

(i)  Sainsbury’s would harm the character of Mill Road and lead to
pedestrian plus vehicular traffic safety concerns.

(i)  There were many existing independent food shops in Mill Road, which
would be adversely affected by a Sainsbury’s shop. Current shops
had a symbiotic relationship to support each other’s custom.

Page 2



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

(iv) Local Plan policy 6/1 required provision of leisure facilities. The
closure of Mickey Flynn’s would be detrimental to this. Speakers took
issue with the suggested lack of demand for Mickey Flynn’s.

(v) Raised anticipated site delivery issues relating to traffic flow, safety,
loading time and obstruction of traffic.

(vi) Suggested the loading bay was unfit for purpose due to its size and
impracticable delivery time windows.

(vii) Concern over illegal use of parking bay.

(viii) Concern over loss of pavement due to loading bay. Also parking on
pavement by Sainsbury’s shop users or delivery vehicles.

Mr Sellers (Sainsbury’s) and Mr Murray (Mickey Flynn’'s) addressed the
committee in support of the application.

A statement was read out on behalf of Rod Cantrill, Executive Councillor for
Arts, Sports and Public Places. This clarified that the City Council would need
to dedicate a piece of land required for the loading bay to the public highway,
and this would be subject to consultation seeking local views on the request with
regard to the impact of the proposal on the amenity value of the "open space".

Kilian Bourke (Romsey Ward County Councillor) addressed the committee
about the application. He reiterated residents concerns regarding:
(i)  Loss of leisure facility.
(i)  Traffic flow and congestion.
(i)  Impact on vehicular and pedestrian safety, particularly due to loss of
pavement.
(iv) lllegal use of lay-by by people accessing shops other than
Sainsbury’s.
(v) Delivery bay unfit for purpose.

Tariq Sadiq (Coleridge Ward County Councillor) addressed the committee
about the application. He reiterated residents concerns regarding:
()  Delivery bay impracticable.
(i) llegal use of lay-by by people accessing shops other than
Sainsbury’s.

The Committee:

Resolved (by 8 votes to 1) to reject the officer recommendation to approve
the application.

Page 3



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

The Chair decided that the reasons for refusal should be voted on and
recorded separately.

Resolved (by 5 votes to 4) to refuse the application contrary to the officer
recommendations for the following reason:

1.

The proposal involves the loss of a leisure facility, which would not be
relocated to premises of similar accessibility. Insufficient evidence is
provided to demonstrate either that the leisure facility is no longer
needed, or that the site is unsuitable for an alternative leisure use. The
application is therefore contrary to policy 6/1 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) and to government guidance in policy EC13 of Planning
Policy Statement 4 ‘Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth’.

Resolved (by 8 votes to 0) to refuse the application contrary to the officer
recommendations for the following reason:

2.

The pattern and intensity of deliveries required for Class A1 use on this
site would create a potential hazard to highway safety, both on the
carriageway and the footway. The proposed delivery bay would not
eliminate the hazard, whose layout would itself create a potential hazard
for pedestrians with impaired sight or limited mobility and those using
wheelchairs and pushchairs. The proposal is therefore in conflict with
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 8/2, 8/4 and 8/9.

11/50/EACb 11/0613/FUL - Rear of 22 and 23 Kelvin Close

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for erection of 3 dwelling houses.

The committee received a representation in objection to the application from
the following:

Miss Quichley

The representation covered the following issues:

(i)
(i)

The principle of the development was inappropriate.
Concern over loss of amenity for residents.

(i)  Felt the car parking provision was impracticable.

Page 4



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

(iv)

(V)

Concern that the development would exacerbate existing traffic flow
issues.

Concerns about drainage and enforcement of conditions to discharge

responsibility based on past experience.

Mr Curley (Applicant) addressed the committee in support of the application.

Tariq Sadiq (Coleridge Ward County Councillor) addressed the committee
about the application.

(i)
(i)

Expressed concern about site access for construction traffic. Queried
if this was this practicable.
Referred to paragraph 8.24 of the Officer’s report and queried impact

of the development on traffic control measures in the area, particularly

in light of anticipated multiple car ownership per household.

Councillor Moghadas proposed an amendment that considerate construction
scheme conditions should be included if the application went ahead.

This amendment was carried unanimously.

The Committee:

Resolved (by 8 votes to 0) to accept the officer recommendation to approve
planning permission as per the agenda subject to completion of the section
106 Agreement by 30 November 2011 and the following additional condition:

11.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details of the
following matters shall be submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority in writing.

(1)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

Contractors access arrangements for vehicles, plant and
personnel,

Contractors site storage area/compound,

The means of moving, storing and stacking all building

materials, plant and equipment around and adjacent to the site,
The arrangements for parking of contractors vehicles and
contractors personnel vehicles.

Thereafter the development shall be undertaken in accordance with the
approved details.

Page 5



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties during the
construction period. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13).

Reasons for Approval

1. This development has been approved subject to conditions and the prior
completion of a section 106 planning obligation (/a unilateral
undertaking), because subject to those requirements it is considered to
conform to the Development Plan as a whole, particularly the following
policies:

East of England plan 2008: SS1, H1, T1, T9, T14, ENV7 and WM6.
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003: P6/1 and P9/8.

Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/1, 3/4, 3/7, 3/9, 3/12, 4/13, 5/1, 8/2, 8/6,
8/10, 8/18.

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other material
planning considerations, none of which was considered to have been of
such significance as to justify doing other than grant planning
permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons for grant of
planning permission only. For further details on the decision please see the
officer report online at www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit

our Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street, Cambridge,
CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

11/50/EACc 11/0865/CAC - Anglia Property Preservation 1 Great Eastern
Street

The committee received an application for full planning permission.
The application sought approval for demolition of existing rear outbuildings.
The committee received representations as set out in 11/50/EACc below.

The Committee:

Page 6



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

Resolved (unanimously) to reject the officer recommendation to approve the
application.

Resolved (unanimously) to refuse the application contrary to the officer
recommendations for the following reason:

The loss of the existing building from this site and the failure to replace it with
an appropriate form of development would neither enhance nor preserve the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The failure to provide
detailed plans for redevelopment of the site that are acceptable to the Local
Planning Authority, as is the case here, means that the demolition of the
building is contrary to policy 4/11 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006 and to
advice provided by PPS5 Planning for the Historic Environment (2010).

11/50/EACd 11/0351/FUL - Anglia Property Preservation 1 Great Eastern
Street

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for change of use and side extension to the
frontage building from an office to create 2 no 1 bed flats; and erection of 6
studio apartments at the rear (following demolition of existing rear buildings),
together with associated infrastructure.

The committee received representations in objection to the application from
the following:

e Mrs Wright
e Miss Kennedy

The representations covered the following issues:

(i)  Sought clarification concerning details in the Officer’s report.

(i) Expressed car parking concerns and asked for a residents parking
scheme to be introduced if the application went ahead.

(i)  Concern regarding over development of site.

(iv) Arboricultural concerns.

(v) Referred to degree of public opposition to development.

(vi) Suggested proposal contravened Council Local Plan policies 3/4, 3/7,
3/10, 3/12, 3/14, 4/4, 4/11, 5/2 and 8/2.

Page 7



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

(vil) Suggested imposing a contaminated land condition to comply with
policy 4/13 if the application went ahead.

Mr Bainton (Applicant’'s Agent) addressed the committee in support of the
application.

The Committee:

Resolved (unanimously) to reject the officer recommendation to approve the
application.

Resolved (unanimously) to refuse the application contrary to the officer
recommendations for the following reasons:

1 The proposed development, by virtue of the footprint, scale, massing and
elevational treatment of the two storey building at the rear of the site,
fails to respond positively to the character of the surrounding area and
represents overdevelopment of the site. In so doing the development
also fails to provide an appropriate level of amenity space to meet the
reasonable expectations of future occupiers of the studio apartments.
The development is therefore contrary to policies ENV6 and ENV 7 of
the East of England Plan 2008 and policies 3/4, 3/10 and 4/11 of the
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 and to advice in Planning Policy Statement
1: Delivering Sustainable Development.

2 The proposed development is unacceptable in that the new,
predominantly two-storey building, at the rear of the site, shown hard on
the common boundary with and south and west of No. 5 and west of No.
3 Great Eastern Street, would unreasonably enclose and unduly
dominate the rear of those properties, causing the occupiers to suffer an
undue sense of enclosure that would materially erode and
inappropriately diminish the level of residential amenity they should
properly expect to enjoy. In so doing the development fails to respond
positively to its context. The development is therefore contrary to East of
England Plan 2008 policy ENV7, Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies
3/4, 3/7, and 3/12, and is contrary to advice in Planning Policy Statement
1: Delivering Sustainable Development.

3. The proposed development of the south-facing, single aspect,
predominantly two-storey block of six flats at the rear of the site will
create too close and too uncomfortable a relationship with mature
protected trees (especially Tree Survey Tree 1 - ailanthus altissima —

Page 8



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

Tree of Heaven), immediately to the south of the site, which make a
significant contribution to the amenity of the area and to the setting of Mill
Road. The proposal has an unacceptable impact upon Tree 1 in
particular, into the canopy and tree root protection area of which the new
building would intrude. The consequence of this siting and relationship
would require frequent lopping or management of that tree, which would
be to its detriment, and would also be likely to lead to requests for future
reduction in tree cover more generally to improve the amenity of the
prospective occupiers. Erosion of the tree cover would be likely to be
detrimental to the tree and the importance it has in this part of the Mill
Road area of City of Cambridge Conservation Area 1 (Central). The
failure to adequately safeguard the future of the Tree of Heaven, which is
of significant amenity value, is contrary to East of England Plan 2008
policy ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan policy 3/4, 4/4 and 4/11.

4. The proposed development does not make appropriate provision for
open space/sports facilities, community development, education, waste
facilities or monitoring, in accordance with policies 3/7, 3/8, 3/12, 5/14,
and 10/1 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006 and policies P6/1, P9/8 and
P9/9 of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003; and
as detailed in the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010 and in the
Cambridge City Council Open Space Standards Guidance for
Interpretation and Implementation (2010).

11/50/EACe 11/0066/FUL - 1 Hemingford Road

This item was deferred to Thursday 27 October 2011.

11/50/EACf 10/1030/FUL - 1 Hemingford Road

This item was deferred to Thursday 27 October 2011.

11/50/EACg 11/0201/FUL - 1 Hemingford Road

This item was deferred to Thursday 27 October 2011.

11/50/EACh 11/0664/EXP - 187 Cherry Hinton Road

Page 9



East Area Committee Tuesday, 25 October 2011

This item was deferred to Thursday 27 October 2011.

11/50/EACi 11/0659/FUL - 25 Romsey Road

This item was deferred to Thursday 27 October 2011.

11/51/EAC Meeting Adjourned

The Committee resolved by 7 votes to 2 to adjourn and reconvene on
Thursday 27 October to consider items 3e — 3i on the agenda plus community
items.

The meeting ended at 11.45 pm

CHAIR

Pageol 0



Public Document Pack

East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011
EAST AREA COMMITTEE 27 October 2011
7.00 -10.51 pm

Present. Councillors Blencowe (Chair), Benstead, Brown, Herbert, Marchant-
Daisley, Moghadas, Owers, Pogonowski, Saunders, Smart

County Councillor: Sadiq

Officers: Tony Collins (Principal Planning Officer), James Goddard
(Committee Manager), Andrew Preston (Project Delivery & Environment
Manager), Kulbir Singh (Advicehub Partnership Development Manager) and
Trevor Woollams (Head of Community Development)

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL

11/52/EAC Apologies For Absence

Councillors Bourke, Harrison, Hart, Sedgwick-Jell, Wright

11/53/EAC Declarations Of Interest

Name Item Interest
Councillor 11/59/EACd | Personal: spoke as Ward Councillor in
Herbert previous iteration of application.

Did not participate in the decision making or

vote.
Councillor 11/61/EAC | Personal: Her children attend St Paul's
Moghadas Primary School
Councillor 11/62/EAC | Personal: Wife is an advisor for Cambridge
Brown Advice Bureau
Councillor 11/64/EAC | Personal: Resident of Greville Road

Moghadas

11/54/EAC Minutes

The minutes of the 18 August 2011 meeting were approved and signed as a
correct record subject to the following amendment on page 7:

Page 11



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

“The committee observed the Officer's report contained a typographical error
on P29 as Cheddars Lane was net in Abbey ward.”

11/55/EAC Matters & Actions Arising From The Minutes

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

11/39/EAC Matters and Actions Arising From the Minutes “Action
Point: Head of New Communities Service (County) to bring future
reports to EAC for review of potential projects that could be
supported by East and South Corridor funding.”

Committee Manger has invited Head of New Communities Service to 15
December 2011 EAC.

Head of New Communities Service to bring future reports to EAC for
review of potential projects that could be supported by East and South
Corridor funding.

11/40/EAC Open Forum “Action Point: Romsey Ward Councillors to
respond to Mrs Richardson’s pavement concerns raised in ‘open
forum’ section. Councillors to follow up with Highways Authority to
ascertain who are the landowners with maintenance responsibility
ie shop owners or Highways Authority.”

Councillor Saunders said that Councillor Bourke had discussed this issue
with the Highways Authority and improvements were underway.

11/40/EAC Open Forum “Action Point: Councillor Marchant-Daisley
to respond to Mr White’s Hector Peterson playground concerns
raised in ‘open forum’ section. Councillor Marchant-Daisley to liaise
with environmental improvement officers.”

Relevant officers were in the process of identifying funding for
improvements.

11/40/EAC Open Forum “Action Point: Coleridge Ward Councillors
to respond to Mr Woodburn’s bike rack concerns raised in ‘open
forum’ section. Councillors to ascertain if cycle parking facilities
removed as part of the Cherry Hinton Road Post Office
environmental improvement project can be re-instated.”

Page212



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

(v)

(vi)

Councillor Owers has responded to Mr Woodburn. The Project Delivery
& Environment Manager was addressing the issue. Cycle racks were
expected to be implemented as the final part of the project.

11/41/EAC ARU Parking in Guest Road “Action Point: ARU parking
in Guest Road to be revisited at a future EAC meeting.”

Councillor Blencowe has liaised with Councillor Harrison. Residents were
invited to address this item through the public Open Forum at a future
East Area Committee (EAC) if the issue persisted.

11/42/EAC Tree issues and Tree Protection Orders “Action Point:
Green Space Manager to respond to Mr Catto’s Riverside
Conservation Area tree concerns raised in ‘tree issue’ section.
Green Space Manager to liaise with Mr Catto post EAC.”

The Green Space Manager has responded to Mr Catto.

11/56/EAC Open Forum

1.

Mr Image queried the progress of implementing and maintaining of
double yellow lines at the entrance to Ainsworth Place and Stone
Street. He asked if the Highways Authority held the budget for this.

Councillor Marchant-Daisley understood that implementing and
maintaining double yellow lines for Ainsworth Place, Fairsford Place and
Stone Street had been agreed as Environmental Improvement Projects.

Councillor Marchant-Daisley undertook to clarify with Project Delivery &
Environment Manager the position concerning implementing and
maintaining double yellow lines for Ainsworth Place, Fairsford Place and
Stone Street Environmental Improvement Projects.

EAC returned to this question under agenda item 11/64/EAC.
Mr Rogers asked if the City or County Council held budgetary
responsibility for implementing flowerbeds in Whitehill Close, and

contact details of a specific officer to liaise with concerning the
flowerbeds.

Page 13



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

Councillor Pogonowski undertook to clarify with Project Delivery &
Environment Manager the position concerning implementing flowerbeds
in Whitehill Close, and contact details of a specific officer to liaise with.

EAC returned to this question under agenda item 11/64/EAC.

Mr Gawthrop raised resident’s concerns about the length of EAC

meetings:

(i) Expressed concerns about late finishing times.

(ii) Suggested holding separate planning and community
meetings.

(iii) The current format did not reflect the needs of members of the
public and so were not conducive to democracy.

Councillors noted that local residents were unhappy with the length of
EAC meetings and wanted shorter ones. Councillors also observed that
the North Area Committee pilot was trailing different ways of working,
and it was envisaged that good practice would be shared with other Area
Committees. Examples of options included changing start times plus
splitting planning and community meetings.

Councillor Pogonowski proposed to discuss future arrangements for EAC
meetings at the next EAC meeting 15 December 2011.

Action Point: EAC Councillors to discuss proposed alternative future
arrangements for EAC meetings.

4,

Mr Taylor noted that planning application 11/0710/FUL 103 Mill
Road (Sainsbury’s) was a separate issue to the transfer of land to
the public highway in order to facilitate access to a loading bay. He
queried if the land transfer was still relevant, as the planning
application had been turned down. If this is not the case, funding
allocated for a public consultation could be reprioritised.

Councillor Brown indicated that the process was still on going as
Sainsbury’s had the option to lodge an appeal.

Action Point: Councillor Blencowe undertook to liaise with Councillor
Cantrill (Executive Councillor for Arts, Sport and Public Places) to ask
Sainsbury’s to reaffirm their intention to seek a loading bay before any
public consultation was conducted on the matter.

Paget14



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

5.

Mr Taylor referenced comments made by Councillor Blencowe at
Council regarding his intention to seek section 30 dispersal powers
in Norfolk Street and Burleigh Street. Mr Taylor suggested using
alternative powers instead.

Councillor Blencowe said that he would discuss the need for section 30
dispersal powers in Norfolk Street and Burleigh Street with Police
Sergeant Stenton, to see if there was any evidence that they were
required, prior to pursuing a request to implement them if appropriate.

Mr Ousby, Ms Lindsay and Ms Owles raised points on behalf of

Petersfield Area Community Trust (PACT):

e Funding was allocated to Petersfield in lieu of land at St
Matthews School.

e PACT noted that the funding had been allocated to the City
Council by the County Council. This had gone into a general City
Council pot, rather than a specific Petersfield fund.

e As Petersfield residents, PACT questioned if they or others in the
City would benefit from the funding.

e The transfer of funding to a general City Council pot meant that
several Petersfield community projects could no longer go
ahead, which was of concern to PACT.

e PACT suggested that the funding allocation process favoured
faith group, rather than community group projects.

Councillors Brown and Marchant-Daisley said that £55,000 of the funding
would be spent in Petersfield ward. Councillors Blencowe and Marchant-
Daisley undertook to clarify how the remaining £164,000 funding would
be allocated.

Action Point: Councillors Blencowe and Marchant-Daisley undertook to

clarify how the £55,000 and £164,000 payments in lieu of land provision
in Petersfield ward would be allocated. That is, in a ward specific or
general fund.

11/57/EAC Re-Ordering Agenda

Under paragraph 4.2.1 of the Council Procedure Rules, the Chair used his
discretion to alter the order of the agenda items. However, for ease of the
reader, these minutes will follow the order of the agenda.

Page 15



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

11/58/EAC Planning Items

11/58/EACa 11/0066/FUL - 1 Hemingford Road

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for retrospective application for the change of
use from domestic dwelling C3 to HMO (House in Multiple Occupation) (sui

generis).

The committee received representations in objection to the application from
the following:

e Mr Stentiford
e Mr Garstone

The representations covered the following issues:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

Concerns that the application would exacerbate existing parking
issues.

Queried if the building was suitable for the application as more
bedrooms were proposed than the current number of tenants. Queried
if this would lead to an intensification of the site and be detrimental to
the character of the area.

Concerns about noise and impact on neighbouring amenities. Current
residents of 1 Hemingford Road did not take sufficient care of the
property’s garden, which had a detrimental impact on neighbour’'s
views. Current residents of 1 Hemingford Road also blocked the
pavement with their bins. Any intensification of the site by granting the
application would exacerbate these issues.

Suggested that residents concerns about other applications in the
area were pertinent to this one.

Queried suitability of access to the site.

Suggested the application would be too tall and overshadow
neighbours.

Suggested there was a lack of cycle parking provision.

The Principal Planning Officer responded that:
e The application met appropriate planning policy parking standards.

Pages16



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

e The dwelling was suitable for use as a house of multiple occupation

(HMOQO) for 7 people or less. The precedent had been set by other
properties in the area.

¢ Whilst management issues such a noise and poor garden maintenance

could be material planning considerations, the current problems are
largely a HMO management issue, and could be addressed by a suitable
condition.

Concerns regarding a lack of cycle parking provision could be addressed
if a gate was put in the replacement fence.

The Committee:

Resolved (by 7 votes to 3) to accept the officer recommendation to approve
planning permission as per the agenda.

Reasons for Approval

1.

This development has been approved, conditionally, because subject to
those requirements it is considered to conform to the Development Plan
as a whole, particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: ENV6, ENV?7.
Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/4, 3/11, 4/11, 4/13, 5/1, 5/7, 8/2, 8/6.

The decision has been made having had regard to all other material
planning considerations, none of which was considered to have been of
such significance as to justify doing other than grant planning
permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons for grant of
planning permission only. For further details on the decision please see the
officer report online at www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit
our Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street, Cambridge,
CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

11/58/EACb 10/1030/FUL - 1 Hemingford Road

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for a proposed single storey rear extension.

Page 17



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

The committee received representations in objection (as set out above in
11/59/EACD) to the application from the following:

e Mr Stentiford
e Mr Garstone

Councillor Blencowe proposed an amendment that the HMO Ilimit should
explicitly say that only 7 people could occupy the property.

This amendment was carried unanimously.

The Committee:

Resolved (by 6 votes to 3) to accept the officer recommendation to approve
planning permission as per the agenda without the necessity of a Section 106
agreement. Informative to be added to decision notice reminding applicant of
upper limit of seven occupants for the extended building.

Reasons for Approval

1. This development has been approved, conditionally, because subject to
those requirements it is considered to conform to the Development Plan
as a whole, particularly the following policies:

East of England Plan 2008: ENV6, ENV7
Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/4, 3/7, 3/14, 4/11

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other material
planning considerations, none of which was considered to have been of
such significance as to justify doing other than grant planning
permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons for grant of
planning permission only. For further details on the decision please see the
officer report online at www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit
our Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street, Cambridge,
CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

11/58/EACc 11/0201/FUL - 1 Hemingford Road

Pages18



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for an annexe extension to provide 2
bedrooms, a studio and shower room with a link to the existing building.

Mr Carpenter (Applicant’'s Agent) addressed the committee in support of the
application.

The committee received representations in objection to the application from
the following:

e Mr Stentiford
e Mr Garstone

The representations reiterated the following issues:

(i)  Concerns regarding views from neighbouring properties.

(i)  The application sought more bedrooms than were required for existing
tenants, which implied intensification of use.

(i)  Application design out of character with neighbourhood.

(iv) Concerns about parking, refuse arrangements and sustainability
issues.

The Principal Planning Officer responded to Applicant and Objector comments
by stating that the flat roof was one of various concerns with the application,
hence the recommendation to refuse.

The Committee:

Resolved (unanimously) to accept the officer recommendation to refuse
planning permission as per the agenda. Officers were asked to discuss
planning obligation implications and seek approval from Chair and Spokes for
approach to be taken on this issue in the event of appeal.

Reasons for Refusal

1. The proposed extension, by reason of its disproportionate length and
scale and flat roof design, would result in a poorly designed extension,
which does not reflect the form of the main house. The extension would
dominate the relatively narrow garden area and would detract from both
the character and appearance of the number 1 Hemingford Road and the

Page 19



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

character and appearance of the Conservation Area which is a
designated heritage asset and as such is contrary to policies ENV6 and
ENV7 of the East of England Plan 2008 and Cambridge Local Plan 2006
policies 3/4, 3/7, 3/14, 4/11 and 5/7.

2. The proposed extension, by reason of its disproportionate length, scale,
height on the common boundary of number 3 Hemingford Road, would
result in an unneighbourly development creating an unreasonable sense
of enclosure for number 3 Hemingford Road to the detriment of the
amenities, which the occupiers of that property currently enjoy. As such
the proposal has failed to respond positively to the site context and is
poorly integrated, which in so doing is contrary to policies ENV6 and
ENV7 of the East of England Plan 2008 and Cambridge Local Plan 2006
policies 3/4, 3/7, 3/14, 4/11 and 5/7.

3. The proposed extension provides insufficient external space, for both
private amenity space and essential ancillary refuse and bicycle storage
facilities for future occupiers. The amenity of bedrooms 1 and 2, which
are served only by lightwells is also unacceptable. As such the design of
the extension is poorly integrated with its context and is contrary to
policies ENV6 and ENV7 of the East of England Plan 2008 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/14 and 5/7.

11/58/EACd 11/0664/EXP - 187 Cherry Hinton Road
The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for the demolition of 187 Cherry Hinton Road
and the erection of a three storey house of flats in its place, together with the
erection of 4 semi-detached houses at the northern end of the site in place of
the garages. (An approved road off Cherry Hinton Road serves the houses
and flats. 14 car parking spaces and 7 bicycle parking spaces will be
provided).

The committee received a representation in objection to the application from
the following:

e Mr Wigglesworth

The representation covered the following issues:

Page®0



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

(i) Expressed concerns about the application and over development of
the site.

(i)  Suggested that bike storage provision was insufficient in the previous
and current applications.

(i)  Queried if the plans in the Officer’s report were accurate.

(iv) Expressed concerns about refuse arrangements and storage areas.

Lewis Herbert (Ward Councillor for Coleridge) addressed the committee about
the application.

(i) Referenced concerns raised regarding the previous iteration of the
application and stated these were still pertinent as they had not been
addressed. Particularly with regard to the second access road, and
rear properties having no gardens. It was felt the design may breach
planning policy due to concerns relating to cycle provision, and lack of
amenity space.

(i) Stated the Officer's report omitted pertinent information concerning
maps, comments from objectors, plus the Planning Inspector
comments relating to the previous and current applications.

The Committee:

Resolved (by 9 votes to 0 - unanimously) to defer the application until 15
December 2011 East Committee meeting because of insufficient information.
Officers were asked to ensure that full drawings of the previously approved
development were available on the website. Also that appropriate drawings,
the previous decision notice, and the Inspector's decision letter were attached
to the December agenda, plus to clarify the position about the access drive
and the site boundary. This item would be taken as the first planning
application at the next meeting.

Councillors Herbert withdrew from the discussion and did not participate in the
decision making for this item.

11/58/EACe 11/0659/FUL - 25 Romsey Road

The committee received an application for full planning permission.

The application sought approval for erection of a three storey house on land
next to 25 Romsey Road with parking space and refuse/cycle store.

Page 21



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

The Principal Planning Officer proposed an amendment that 2 new conditions
be inserted regarding planning obligation funding and the need for new
drawings setting out window and door designs.
These amendments were carried unanimously.

The Committee:

Resolved (unanimously) to accept the officer recommendation to approve
planning permission as per the agenda with the following additional conditions:

No development shall take place until clear drawings detailing the side
elevation windows at a scale of 1:50 or greater have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Windows shall be installed
only in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area.
(East of England Plan (2008) policies ENV6 and ENV7 and Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policy 4/11)

Committee also agreed the following authority:

Unless prior agreement has been obtained from the Head of Planning and the
Chair and Spokesperson of this Committee to extend the period for completion
of the Planning Obligation required in connection with this development, if the
Obligation has not been completed by 31 December 2011 it is recommended
that the application be refused for the following reason:

The proposed development does not make appropriate provision for open
space/sports facilities, community development facilities, education, waste
facilities and monitoring in accordance with policies 3/8, 5/14, 3/7, 3/12 and
10/1 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006; and policies P6/1 and P9/8 of the
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003; and as detailed in the
Planning Obligation Strategy 2010 and Cambridge Open Space Standards
Guidance for Interpretation and Implementation (2010).

Reasons for Approval
1. This development has been approved subject to conditions and the prior

completion of a section 106 planning obligation (/a unilateral
undertaking), because subject to those requirements it is considered to

Page22



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

conform to the Development Plan as a whole, particularly the following
policies:

East of England plan 2008: ENV6, ENV7.
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003: P6/1, P9/8.

Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/4, 3/7, 3/8, 3/10, 3/11, 3/12, 4/11, 4/13,
5/1, 8/2, 8/6, 8/10, 10/1.

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other material
planning considerations, none of which was considered to have been of
such significance as to justify doing other than grant planning
permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons for grant of
planning permission only. For further details on the decision please see the
officer report online at www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit
our Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street, Cambridge,
CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

11/59/EAC Items for Decision / Discussion Including Public Input

11/60/EAC Consultation on Capital Grant Application by Centre at St.
Pauls

The committee received a report from the Head of Community Development
regarding an update of the Capital Grants Programme, plus an application by
the Centre at St Pauls in Hills Road for consideration by the East Area
Committee. To date, £410,602 has been committed from a capital budget of
£800,000.

An update on the East Area Committee’s Capital Grants Programme was
shown in Appendix A of the Officer’s report.

The grant application from the Centre at St.Pauls was for a contribution of
£34,800 from the City Council to improve community facilities by modifying and
upgrading the main hall. A project appraisal for the Centre at St.Pauls’
application was shown in Appendix B of the Officer’s report.

Page 23



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

Members considered the grant application as set out in the Officer's report.
The Head of Community Development responded to Member's questions
about what the project and funding aimed to achieve.

Councillor Smart observed typographical errors in (P22) Appendix A of the
Officer’s report and asked for these to be amended.

EAC resolved (unanimously) to recommend to the Executive Councillor for
Community Development and Health that a capital grant of £14,800 be
awarded to the Centre at St Pauls for the improvement and refurbishment of
their main hall, subject to compliance with the Council’s legal agreement.

11/61/EAC Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) Kiosk Location

The committee received a report from the Advicehub Partnership Development
Manager regarding implementing Advicehub touch screen kiosks in the East
Area.

Kiosks were being implemented across Cambridgeshire. 14 Kiosks were in
place at present, consultation was being undertaken on proposed locations for
more. Suggested locations included council buildings (eg Mandela House),
libraries, CAB buildings and community centres. Cambridge City Council has
funded a total of 8 kiosks (Community Development Grants) to be sited in
Cambridge city.

Advicehub was a National Lottery funded project to promote partnership
working and improve the provision of advice to people, particularly if they could
not meet advisors. Kiosk information could be ‘personalised’ to area needs to
include details of local community and advice organisations.

Locations where kiosks were situated would be responsible for on-going
maintenance costs when National Lottery funding ceased 2012. This was
expected to be £700 - £1000 per year.

Posters in community buildings etc would advertise local kiosks, the CAB
website provided a comprehensive list.

EAC were invited to suggest potential kiosk locations to the Advicehub

Partnership Development Manager. Locations with high footfall were
suggested. Kiosks could be moved between locations if one was found to be

Page4{4



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

unsuitable. The Advicehub Partnership Development Manager would visit
proposed sites to ascertain their suitability.

Action Point: EAC Councillors to suggest potential kiosk locations to the
Advicehub Partnership Development Manager (Kulbir@advicehub.orq).

11/62/EAC Community Development Grants

The committee received a report from the Chief Executive of Cambridgeshire
Community Foundation regarding Community Development and Leisure
Grants.

Members considered applications for grants as set out in the Officer’'s report.
The Chief Executive of Cambridgeshire Community Foundation responded to
member’'s questions about individual projects and what funding aimed to
achieve.

The Chief Executive of Cambridgeshire Community Foundation undertook to
provide Councillor Hart, Pogonowski and Wright with further information
concerning the Little Bookworms project (ref WEB31987).

Resolved (unanimously) to approve the grant allocation as listed below Mill
Road Winter Fair and East Barnwell Childminding Group.

Community Development current applications. Available: £11,625
CCF Group Project Requested £ Recommended
ID from Area
Committee Grants £

Mill Road | purchase of 850 850

n o | Winter Fair signs _ for

L Lo community

S« fair.
East Barnwell | ride-on toys, 657 657

n Q| Childminding scooters &

w Q3 | Group sports

= o equipment.

11/63/EAC Environmental Improvement Programme

Pagre 25




East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

The committee received a report from the Project Delivery & Environment
Manager regarding the Environmental Improvement Programme.

The County Council has recently made the decision to request commuted
sums to fund their increased maintenance liabilities created by City Council
funded projects within the highway.

This decision affected an existing Environmental Improvement Project that had
been approved for delivery. Approval of further funding is therefore necessary
to enable this project to be delivered.

The County Council has also approved a joint highways budget with the City
Council to fund minor schemes within the highway.

East Area Committee has been delegated the £7000 share of the County
Council’'s £25,000 total contribution, to prioritise schemes and provide match
funding from their Environmental Improvement Programme (EIP) budget.

Existing Schemes: Progress
The Project Delivery & Environment Manager referred to progress on
approved schemes as set out in his report.

()  No Waiting & 1hr Parking Restrictions (Coleridge Area).

(i)  Ditton Walk/Newmarket Rd Planting.

(i)  Riverside Railing Refurbishment.

(iv) Silverwood Close and Whitehill Road Estate Verge Parking
Prohibition.

(v) Tree Planting on Chalmers Rd & Greville Rd.

(vi) Stanley Rd/Garlic Row.

(vii) Brooks Rd/Perne Rd Verge Parking Prohibition.

Existing Schemes That Require Decisions
Members considered a number of schemes put forward for consideration, a
number of which required approval.

In response to Members questions the Project Delivery & Environment
Manager answered:

() Noted Member's concerns regarding maintenance liabilities
associated with the Chalmers Road and Greville Road Tree Planting
Scheme.

(i)  Details in the Officer's report regarding Ainsworth Place, Fairsford
Place and Stone Street reflected information presented at the Area

Page®6



East Area Committee Thursday, 27 October 2011

Joint Committee, prior to funding being delegated to Area
Committees. The Officer noted that residents now viewed these
projects as priorities, which superseded previous comments to the
contrary.

Action Point: Project Delivery & Environment Manager to add Ainsworth
Place, Fairsford Place and Stone Street EIPs to priority list for action.

(iii)  Noted Councillor Pogonowski’s request to add flowerbeds in Whitehill
Close to the list of priorities for the next financial year as the list had
closed for the current year.

(iv) Noted Councillor Sadig’s request to add maintenance costs to future
EIP reports.

Action Point: Project Delivery & Environment Manager to add
maintenance costs to future EIP reports.

Following discussion, Members resolved (unanimously):

(i)  To select minor highway schemes, taking into account those identified
in Appendix B of the officer's report (except Charles Street/Greville
Road as this has already been funded), for further development and
consultation, with a view to providing £7000 in match funding from the
EIP budget.

(i) To defer until further information was available whether to fund a
£11,235,84 commuted sum to the County Council for the increased
maintenance liabilities associated with the Chalmers Road and
Greville Road Tree Planting Scheme from the EIP budget, and revise
other project budgets accordingly.

(i)  To defer until further information was available whether to fund Ditton
Walk/Newmarket Rd Planting, as this would be affected by the same
maintenance considerations as the Chalmers Road and Greville Road
Tree Planting Scheme.

The meeting ended at 10.51 pm

CHAIR

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Agenda Item 6

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Neighbourhood profile update SAFER
Cambridge City East alil
Neighbourhood

December 2011

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Page 29

Creating a safer

Cambridgeshire CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

1. INTRODUCTION 2
Aim 2
Methodology 2

2 PREVIOUS PRIORITIES & ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY 3
Previous Priorities
Engagement Activity 9

3 EMERGING ISSUES 10
CURRENT CRIME & INCIDENT LEVELS 16
RECOMMENDATIONS 19

1. Introduction

Aim

The aim of the Neighbourhood profile update is to provide an overview of
action taken since the last reporting period, identify ongoing and emerging
crime and disorder issues, and provide recommendations for future priorities
and activity in order to facilitate effective policing and partnership working in
the area. The document should be used to inform multi-agency
neighbourhood panel meetings and neighbourhood policing teams, so that
issues can be identified, effectively prioritised and partnership problem
solving activity undertaken.

Methodology

This document was produced using the following data sources:

e Crime data and incident data July 2011 — Oct 2011 and as a comparison
data from March 2011 — June 2011 and July 2010 — Oct 2010

¢ Information from Neighbourhood Policing Team October 2011.

e Community intelligence.

¢ Environmental data from Cambridge City Council for the period July 2011
— October 2011, compared with the same period the previous year.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 2
Page 30



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

2. Previous Priorities & Engagement Activity

Previous Priorities

At the neighbourhood panel meeting on 18" August 2011, the following
issues were adopted as priorities. The tables below summarise action taken
and the current situation regarding the priorities that were set:

Misuse of Green Spaces

Objective | To reduce seasonal crime and disorder in green spaces
across the neighbourhood.

Action This action plan ran until 5™ October 2011 and involved 16

Taken hours of combined constable and PCSO dedicated patrols.

Constable patrols were conducted both covertly in plain clothes
and in high visibility. PCSO patrols were always conducted in
high visibility and either on pedal cycle or on foot.

Slightly prior to this action plan commencing we became aware
of regular reports of drug dealing in the green spaces. These
reports continued into this action plan period and, excluding
Mill Road, they were the only frequently reported types of ASB
and crime in the green spaces.

During regular patrols officers and PCSOs managed to arrest 3
drug dealers, one drug dealer was detained by a PCSO in
Coleridge Recreation ground after being observed in
suspicious circumstances. Officers attended the location and
took the male back to Parkside Station for a strip search which
revealed a quantity of crack cocaine hidden on his person.
Further enquiries found another linked male within a local bed
and breakfast with a large quantity of cash and heroin in the
room. Both were charged with being concerned in the supply of
class A drugs and were bailed to court with conditions not to
enter Cambridge city.

A week later a suspected drug deal was observed by officers
conducting covert patrols in Coldhams Lane skate park and
after a foot chase and a struggle the officers detained both
males and recovered wraps of heroin from inside one of their
mouths. There was not enough evidence to charge either with
supplying drugs but one was charged and the other cautioned
for possessing heroin.

We continued to receive reports of drug dealing in our green

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 3
Page 31




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

spaces, which led us to form Operation Significance whereby
your East Neighbourhood Team applied for additional
assistance from CID and the divisional proactive team to tackle
this issue. We cannot for obvious reasons reveal too many
details of our tactics but we can say that 8 officers were
dedicated to patrol covertly our green spaces for 3 days. Due
to the results we were achieving, these days were generally
16-18 hour working days for all involved.

During this operation we managed to arrest 8 suspected drug
dealers, conducted 7 drugs raids, seize £6735 cash, 12.446
grams of crack cocaine and 41.032 grams of heroin. The street
value of these drugs will be in the region of £3,200. The
majority of the drug dealers arrested were London based and
using the Bail Act have been banned from Cambridge city
pending the conclusion of our investigations or their trials.

Reports of drug dealing in our green spaces have now
completely subsided and drug dealers know these are ‘no go’
areas for their business.

Current Reports of anti-social behaviour and criminality in our green

Situation spaces have reduced considerable since the drug work activity
that occurred very early into this reporting period. It is expected
that these low levels will remain the during the coming winter
months.

Continue Discharge.

or

Discharge?

Anti-Social Use of Mopeds

Objective | Reduce the impact of anti-social use of mopeds: Coleridge
Ward

Action Soon after this action plan was received the East

Taken Neighbourhood Team put an article in the local paper

highlighting the problem to local residents. The article asked
members of the public to provide registration numbers of
offending mopeds to the police so appropriate action could be
taken. The plan involved this tactic being supported by regular
patrols, partnership working and community engagement.

The public appeal had immediate success with many members
of the public reporting anti-social use of mopeds and providing

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 4
Page 32




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

us with statements evidencing the behaviour. This allowed us
to issue warnings under s59 of the Police Reform Act 2002,
which informed riders/drivers that a reoccurrence of anti-social
driving would result in us seizing their motor vehicle. Where
there was a second occurrence we gathered the evidence and
seized the offending vehicle, often taking other enforcement
action such as reporting the individual for road traffic offences.
We dealt with repeat offenders via a multi agency approach,
working with housing agencies to enforce tenancy regulations
and with the city council’'s ASB team.

We also helped support a street surgery in the area with the
city council and housing agencies whereby we gathered a
range of information on local issues. The general consensus
was that although things had dramatically improved in the area
there were still issues to be resolved and individuals to be dealt
with.

In total we conducted 31 hours of dedicated high visibility
patrols. Issued 20 s59 warnings, seized 7 mopeds, reported 3
drivers for driving without due care and attention and no MOT,
issued 4 tenancy warning letters and worked very closely with
an identified problem address to deal with persistent ASB
problems.

We have received very positive feedback from the public about
this action plan and the following is an extract from one letter
sent to the city council:

“There most definitely has been a massive improvement, in
reality it has been a total transformation. | can sleep at night.
The mopeds do still make noise from time to time, but far less
frequently and seem to realise the time that people go to bed
and respect that. | think your team and the police have done a
fantastic job, the improvement has been far greater and
immensely faster than | could have hoped for and | hope you
share this praise with those you are working with, you really
have all done well.”

Current
Situation

Reports of ASB motorcycling in this area have consistently
decreased during this action plan but we are still contacted
occasionally to report issues in the area. We are currently
trying to locate two further mopeds that need seizing due to
anti-social driving.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 5
Page 33




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

It is appreciated that whilst the noise levels emitted by the vast
majority of mopeds are within permitted limits, the affect of
such noise in residential communities when most people are
sleeping can be particularly irritating.

Officers will continue to engage with riders to raise awareness
and appeal to them for the need to show consideration to
affected communities.

Continue
or
Discharge?

For discussion.

Speeding in Mill Road

Objective | Apply interventions that encourage driver compliance with
the new 20mph limit in Mill Road

Action During this action plan PCSOs initially engaged in an education

Taken campaign in the local area, engaging with local businesses and

to highlight to the community that we would be taken action in
response to the concerns raised. This received positive
feedback.

PCSOs then began conducting high visibility speed checks on
Mill Road. The environment does create difficulties when
undertaking speed checks and the safety of all road users and
staff involved are key considerations as to where and when
checks take place. It is therefore not possible to meet all
expectations.

The speed checks were conducted at varying times of the day
and night but always between 08:00 hours and 24:00 hours. In
total 16 hours of dedicated time was spent checking vehicle
speeds in the 20 mph limit. In this time many vehicles were
checked but only 27 were speeding, the majority of which were
driving at 24mph or under. Only 2 were found to be driving over
30mph. All speeding drivers were spoken with.

On 30™ November a period of enforcement work was
completed by non-neighbourhood officers as part of an overall
plan to encourage driver compliance with the 20mph limit
throughout the city. The results were as follows:

Between 20:45 and 22:15, five officers and a supervisor were
engaged in checks.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 6
Page 34




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

15+ vehicle stops made and drivers warned for exceeding
speed limit and travelling within the 20-30mph range.

1 Fixed Penalty Notice issued for not wearing a seatbelt.

1 arrest for driving under the influence of alcohol.

1 arrest for possession of cannabis with intent to supply.
5 stop searches.

Current
Situation

The checks that have taken place to date do not show large
numbers of drivers being identified as exceeding the 20mph
limit. However, it is appreciated that checks are carried out by
highly visible uniformed staff that are likely to be seen from a
distance that allows drivers to reduce their speed before being
registered by the operator. It should therefore not come as a
surprise that the number of vehicles identified as meeting the
prosecution threshold will be very low.

Whilst it is noted that Mill Road has a concerning accident
record it is not on a scale that meets the criteria for deployment
of a less visible safety camera van.

The value of such checks is difficult to assess but they clearly
have a role. However, if they continue to be the only tactic to
encourage compliance, meeting public expectation will be
difficult to achieve. Further debate is welcomed.

Continue
or
Discharge?

For discussion.

Drug dealing and related ASB in Norfolk Street and surrounding area.

Objective | Reduce drug and alcohol related ASB.
Action A total of 60 hours dedicated high visibility patrol time has been
Taken spent on this action plan since it was agreed. Both police

constables and PCSOs have been engaged on this activity and
have challenged inappropriate behaviour, crime and ASB
where appropriate. A focused engagement policy was adopted
whereby officers and PCSOs would engage with street drinking
groups regularly. Where appropriate groups were moved on
and asked to clear up litter before doing so. In many cases
street drinking groups were not doing anything wrong.

Engagement has shown that many of these street drinkers
leave hostel accommodation in the mornings and locate
themselves near to St. Matthews School. Their presence alone

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 7
Page 35




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

can cause alarm to parents and children and other members of
the local community.

Officers have also covertly patrolled this area regularly, most
notably during Operation Significance, which is described
above. As with other green spaces in the city we did have
several reports of drug dealing in Mill Road cemetery and York
Street play park. We made two proactive arrests of suspected
drug dealers. One drug dealer who brandished a knife at a
police officer soon discarded it and ran off. He was caught and
arrested. A drugs warrant was then conducted at an address in
the area and a quantity of heroin and crack cocaine was
recovered with some cash proceeds of crime. This offender
was sentenced to 3 months in prison for the knife offence
(drugs investigation is ongoing) and will be banned from
Cambridge upon his release. The other drug dealer was found
to be in possession of a knife but no drugs. He was charged
and again banned from Cambridge using conditions available
through the Bail Act.

Numerous groups of street life were dispersed during this
period however officers and PCSOs often found that groups
were not doing anything wrong, either criminally or anti-socially.
However, the reaction to these people was often one of fear or
annoyance.

During this priority officers have conducted 17 stop checks, 11
stop searches, made one arrest for stealing a cycle, issued 3
penalty notices for possessing cannabis, issued 3 penalty
notices for unnecessary obstruction of the pavement and made
several other arrests. We have also engaged regularly with
local off licences and licensed premises and have worked with
the licensing department to ensure licences are being adhered
to.

A temporary CCTV camera was deployed to the shop area on
Norfolk Street which often gave us advance warning of
potential ASB so problems were addressed at an early stage
minimising the impact on the community.

Current
Situation

We initially saw a strong decrease in anti-social behaviour and
criminality in the area once the above described drug dealers
had been dealt with. The groups of street life became smaller
and more drink orientated.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 8
Page 36




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Reports of anti-social behaviour and other qualitative
information would suggest that ASB is still an issue in the area,
despite a fall in crime and significant police engagement.
Residents are still very aware of the large street drinking
population that gathers in the area and regularly report such
groups for police attention.

Continue Continue
or
Discharge?

Engagement Activity

There had been large amounts of ASB and associated low-level crime around
the Barnwell Community Centre. The Abbey officers engaged regularly with
both staff and users of the community centre and the nursery and with the
youths concerned. We are happy to report a substantial decrease in ASB in
the area. It has also been arranged for offenders serving their sentence with
community orders to conduct some refurbishment work in the area such as
painting, decorating, cleaning and gardening.

Some good work by local officers identified and led to the arrest of two males
who had placed skimming devices at cash points along Mill Road. We
received 6 complaints of this crime within one month and in response we
worked with local businesses to install cameras that in turn took pictures of
the offenders. They were then spotted and arrested by officers on patrol.

The city has seen a rise in vehicle crime in the last few weeks, which has led
to officers working on a dedicated team in order to catch the offenders.
Please ensure valuables are kept out of your vehicles and remain vigilant to
suspicious activity.

In August officers from the East team recovered £13,000 of high purity
cocaine which when mixed could have yielded £30,000 - £40,000 of street
value cocaine. We received some ‘hot’ community intelligence, which was
acted upon by conducting a drugs search warrant. Two males were in the
property, both known class A drugs suppliers and importers. Despite their
attempts to obstruct officers, entry was gained, evidence recovered and both
men arrested. We are pleased to report they have been convicted following a
weeklong trial and have been sentenced to 17 years imprisonment between
them.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 9
Page 37




NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

3. Emerging Issues

Abbey Ward

Total crime in Abbey Ward decreased compared to the previous four
months (344 offences vs. 386 offences) and also decreased compared to
the same period last year (388 offences).

Dwelling burglary offences have decreased with 13 offences in this period
compared to 17 in the last period and 32 in the same period last year. Of 5
of these offences offenders have gained entry through insecure windows
or doors.

There were 10 burglary other offences in this period compared to 19
offences in the previous period and 10 offences in the same period last
year. Half of these offences involved sheds being broken in to and various
items stolen.

Violent crime offences have decreased to 82 offences from 91 offences in
the previous period and 80 offences in the same period last year.
Offenders were arrested and charged in 43 of these offences.

Theft from vehicle offences have remained stable to the previous period
(18 offences for both) and decreased compared to the same period last
year (36 offences). Common items stolen were index plates, satellite
navigation systems and catalytic converters.

Theft from shop offences have decreased compared to the previous period
(42 offences vs. 49 offences) and the same period last year (52 offences).
Offenders were arrested and charged in 22 of these offences. The most
common location for offences was Boots at Cambridge Retail Park, which
had 24. The most common items that were stolen were perfume and
electrical items.

ASB levels have decreased slightly compared to the previous period (253
incidents vs. 256 incidents) but decreased compared to the same period

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 10
Page 38



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

last year (270). There were 25 calls regarding incidents in Barnwell Road,
various incidents included groups of youths being loud and drinking in the
street and neighbour disputes.

Between July and October 2011, there were 6 reports of abandoned
vehicles in the ward compared with 10 during the same period the
previous year. This included 1 vehicle, which was not on site following
inspection and 1, which was subsequently claimed by the owner. There
were no specific hotspots during either period.

Environmental Services Data

Between July and October 2011, there were 104 reports of fly tipping in
the ward compared with 72 during the same period the previous year.
There was sufficient evidence for the enforcement team to be involved in
14 cases and as a result of their investigations 7 formal warning letters
were sent to domestic offenders and one case is part of an ongoing
investigation. In addition, 2 verbal warnings were issued and waste
transfer documentation was requested from a trade offender. Dennis Road
(12), Helen Close (11), Cheddars Lane (9) and Fison Road (8) were the
main hotspots during the current reporting period. The offences at
Cheddars Lane accounted for 3 of the formal warning letters being sent
and Dennis Road accounted for 1 of the formal warning letters being sent.
Ekin Road (12), Anns Road (6), Dennis Road (6) and Helen Close (6) were
the main hotspots during the previous year.

Between July and October 2011, 26 derelict cycles were dealt with
compared with 32 during the same period the previous year. Riverside (8),
Coldham’s Lane (5), Vicarage Terrace (4) and Newmarket Road (3) were
the main hotspots during the current reporting period. Ekin Road (9),
Riverside (9), Fison Road (4) and Occupation Road (3) were the main
hotspots during the previous year.

Between July and October 2011, 307 needles were reported compared
with 25 during the same period the previous year. 197 were removed from
Stourbridge Common on 6 different occasions. During the previous
reporting period 13 needles were removed from Brooks Road.

Petersfield Ward

Total crime in Petersfield Ward has increased compared to the previous
period (355 offences vs. 337 offences) but decreased compared to the
same period last year (500 offences).

Dwelling burglary offences have decreased compared to the previous
period (14 offences vs. 17 offences) and have decreased compared to the
same period last year (35 offences). Three of the offences occurred in
York Terrace over a couple of days in August.

Violent crime offence levels have increased compared to the previous
period (43 offences vs. 32 offences) but have shown a decrease compared

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 11
Page 39



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

to the same period last year (49 offences). In 21 of these offences an
offender has been arrested and charged.

e Cycle theft offences have increased compared to the previous period (112
offences vs. 94 offences) but decreased compared to the same period last
year (191 offences). Common locations for cycle theft offences were
Parkside Pools and Kelsey Kerridge Sports Hall on Queen Anne Terrace.

e There were 36 theft from shop offences in this period compared with 51
offences in the previous period and 64 offences in the same period last
year. Offenders were arrested and charged in 29 of these offences.
Common locations for theft from shop offences were Asda at the Beehive
Centre (24) and TK Maxx at the Beehive Centre (5).

e Criminal Damage offences have decreased with 22 offences in this period
compared to 39 in the previous period and 28 in the same period last year.
Eight offences occurred in Mill Road at various business premises.

e ASB incidents have decreased compared to both the previous period (169
incidents vs. 180 incidents) and compared to the same period last year
(184 incidents). Incidents included street drinking (34 incidents were
complaints about street-life being abusive and being intimidating to
Members of the public), youths congregating and being abusive to
members of the public and abandoned vehicles. Common locations for
ASB were Mill Road (30), Norfolk Street (20), East Road (10),
Staffordshire Street (10) and Tenison Road (10).

Environmental Services Data

e Between July and October 2011, there were 16 reports of abandoned
vehicles in the ward compared with 7 during the same period the previous
year. This included 5 vehicles, which were not on site following inspection
and 3, which were subsequently claimed by their owners. In addition, 3
CLEZ26 notices were issued to offenders on behalf of the DVLA for not
displaying road tax on a public highway, which will result in a fine being
issued by the DVLA. 1 vehicle was also impounded on behalf of the DVLA
for not having valid road tax. 1 additional vehicle is currently pending
further investigation. Cheddars Lane (3) was the hotspot during the current
reporting period. There were no specific hotspots for the same period the
previous year.

e Between July and October 2011, there were 77 reports of fly tipping in the
ward compared with 86 during the same period the previous year. There
were 32 cases forwarded to the enforcement team. 4 cases are currently
ongoing, 15 formal warning letters were issued to domestic offenders and
waste transfer documentation was requested from 1 trade offender, 1
household was given a verbal warning and 1 case involved fly tipping on
private land which was passed to the Environmental Health Department for
further investigation. Mill Road (20), Tenison Road (9), St Matthews Street
(8) and Emery Street (4) were the main hotspots during the current

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 12
Page 40



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

reporting period. The offences at Mill Road accounted for 12 of the formal
warning letters being sent and the offences at Tenison Road accounted for
3 of the warning letters. Tenison Road (14), Mill Road (13), St Matthews
Street (8), Sleaford Street (5) and Mill Street (4) were the main hotspots
during the previous year.

Between July and October 2011, 14 derelict cycles were dealt with
compared with 72 during the same period the previous year. Vicarage
Terrace (4) & Mill Road (3) were the main hotspots during the current
reporting period. Mill Road (19), Covent Garden (4), Norfolk Street (4) and
St Matthews Street (4) were the main hotspots during the previous year.
Between July and October 2011, 383 needles were reported compared
with 685 during the same period the previous year. 100 needles were
removed from East Road Garages and 177 needles were removed from
Mill Road, this includes the Cemetery. During the previous reporting period
554 needles were removed from Mill Road, again this is including the
Cemetery.

Romsey Ward

Total crime in Romsey Ward has decreased compared to the preceding
period (232 vs. 236) and compared to the same period last year (254).
There were 7 Dwelling Burglary offences compared to 16 in the last period
and 13 in the same period last year. There were no patterns noted from
the MO details.

There were 7 burglary other offences in this period compared to 10
offences in the previous period and 11 offences in the same period as last
year. Four offences occurred over one night in July in Coldhams Road
where industrial units were entered.

Theft from vehicle offences have slightly increased from 14 offences in the
previous period to 15 offences in this period. Offence levels have
decreased compared to the same period last year when there were 20
offences. Three vehicles had number plates stolen and the remainder
entry was gained via a smashed window and items such as satellite
navigation systems, handbags and laptops were stolen.

Theft from shop offences have remained stable with 26 offences in this
period compared to 25 offences in the previous period and 17 offences in
the same period last year. Common locations for theft from shop offences
were Sainsburys on Coldhams Lane and the Co-Op on Mill Road.

Criminal Damage offences have remained stable compared to the
previous period (30 offences vs. 31 offences) and compared to the same
period last year (28 offences). Fourteen of these offences were criminal
damage to a vehicle with vehicles having their tyres slashed, their
windscreens smashed, paintwork scratched and wing mirrors snapped off.
ASB levels have decreased compared to the previous period (168
incidents vs. 187 incidents) and also compared to the same period last

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 13
Page 41



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

year (208 incidents). Twelve incidents occurred at the same address in
Cromarty Place and concern a male complaining about his neighbours.
Locations with high levels of ASB were Mill Road (46), St Philips Road
(10), and Coldhams Lane (9).

Environmental Services Data

e Between July and October 2011, there were 7 reports of abandoned
vehicles in the ward compared with 12 during the same period the
previous year. This included 2 vehicles, which were not on site following
inspection. In addition, 1 CLE26 notice was issued to an offender on behalf
of the DVLA for not displaying road tax on a public highway, which will
result in a fine issued by the DVLA. 1 vehicle was also impounded on
behalf of the DVLA for not having valid road tax. 1 additional vehicle is also
currently pending further investigation. Cavendish Road (4) was the
hotspot during the current reporting period. There were no specific
hotspots for the same period the previous year.

e Between July and October 2011, there were 45 reports of fly tipping in the
ward compared with 46 during the same period the previous year. The
Enforcement Team investigated 21 cases and as a result 1 case is
currently ongoing, 6 formal warning letters were sent to domestic offenders
and waste transfer documentation was requested from 3 trade offenders.
One resident received a verbal warning. Brooks Road (17), Seymour
Street (6), Mill Road (3) and Wycliffe Road (3) were the main hotspots
during the current reporting period. The offences at Brooks Road
accounted for 6 of the formal warning letters being sent. Sedgwick Street
(5), Catharine Street (4), Cromwell Road (4), Mill Road (4), Seymour
Street (4) and Thoday Street (4) were the main hotspots during the
previous year.

e Between July and October 2011, 4 derelict cycles were dealt with
compared with 10 during the same period the previous year. There were
no specific hotspots during the current reporting period. Mill Road (3) was
the hotspot during the previous year.

e Between July and October 2011, 47 needles were reported compared with
89 during the same period the previous year. 16 were removed from
Romsey Recreation Ground, 14 from Coldhams Land and 12 removed
from Charles Street. During the previous reporting period 52 needles were
removed from Brooks Road and 26 were removed from Seymour Street.

Coleridge Ward

e Total crime in Coleridge Ward has remained stable (159 offences vs. 158
offences) and decreased compared to the same period last year (244
offences).

e Dwelling burglary offences have increased compared to the previous
period (14 offences vs. 9 offences) and compared to the same period last

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 14
Page 42



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

year (6 offences). Three offences occurred in Perne Road in September.
The same offender has being charged with 2 out of these three offences.

e Violent crime offences have increased compared to the previous period
(34 offences vs. 26 offences) but decreased compared to the same period
last year (54 offences). Offenders were arrested and charged in 16 of
these offences. Common locations for violent crime were Cambridge
Leisure Park (6) and Cherry Hinton Road (5).

e There were 5 theft from vehicle offences in this period compared to 16
offences in the previous period and 19 offences in the same period last
year. Iltems stolen included catalytic converters, diesel and a satellite
navigation system.

e Cycle theft offences have decreased from 27 offences in the previous
period to 24 offences in this period. This is also a decrease compared to
the same period last year (64 offences).

e ASB incident levels have increased slightly compared to the previous
period (149 incidents vs. 132 incidents) but have decreased compared to
the same period last year (159 incidents). Common locations for ASB were
Cherry Hinton Road (23), St Thomas’s Road (10), Birdwood Road (11) and
Cambridge Leisure Park (10).

Environmental Services Data

e Between July and October 2011, there were 4 reports of abandoned
vehicles in the ward compared with 12 during the same period the
previous year. This included 1 vehicle, which was not on site following
inspection and 2, which were subsequently claimed by their owners. There
were no specific hotspots during either period.

e Between July and October 2011, there were 19 reports of fly tipping in the
ward compared with 30 during the same period the previous year. Two
cases were forwarded to the Enforcement Team and formal warning letters
were issued to both domestic offenders. Davy Road (3) was the hotspot
during the current reporting period. Ashbury Close (3), Hobart Road (3),
Rustat Road (3) and Suez Road (3) were the main hotspots during the
previous year.

e Between July and October 2011, 10 derelict cycles were dealt with
compared with 20 during the same period the previous year. Leisure Park
(8) was the hotspot during the current reporting period. Mamora Road (10)
and Litchfield (3) were the main hotspots during the previous year.

e Between July and October 2011, 8 needles were reported compared with
77 during the same period the previous year. All 8 were removed from
Coleridge Recreation Ground. During the previous reporting period 33
needles were removed from Coleridge Recreation Ground and 27 were
removed from Davy Road.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 15
Page 43



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

4. Current Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Incident Levels

Crime

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

Total Crime

A
[\

[\

—4—2009/10

X

m —=-2010/11

—t—2011/12

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

ASB

300

250

200

150

100

50

Total ASB

—4—2009/10

——-2010/11

—t—2011/12

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

16

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Page 44




d3aXEVvIN AT3AILOT10dd LON

Ll

651 vz 514 0z €z 79 6l z Z S 6 9 0L 190 — 0} Inr s
zZEL 851 oy ze L Ji7 9l z € 9 9 6 prunp—LLJ4ep | ebpusjo) |
(54" 651 09 8l L ¥z S 0 L e z vl LLIPO = LLInr &
802 T4 0S 8z Ll G9 0z z 2 a4 Ll €l 0L 190 =0} Inr

181 92 99 Le o4 o172 vl z € e ol 9l pLune =L Jepw Kaswoy
891 rAX4 % 0¢ 9z €S Gl 8 0 17 i i LLIOO — LL Inr

¥81 00S G/ 8z 9 161 4 9 z 6V ] Ge 0L 320 =0} Inr

08l €€ €l 6 1S 6 zl g L ze €l L) bpunr—LL BN | playsialed
691 GG¢ G6 4 9¢ zhl L € 14 eP Gl i LLIOO — LL Inr

0.2 88¢ 85 S s €g 9¢ 6 2 08 ol e 0L 190 — 0} Inr

962 98¢ 06 s 6% A% 8l 9 z 16 6l Ll pLunp—LLJep Raqqy
T4 yve 8. LS v % 8l € 9 z8 (o] €l LLIOO — LLInr

(X4] 98€lL 8¢c o€l 951 €€ 101 6l 4} id 8y 98 0L 10 — 0} Inr =
SSL | Ll 65¢ a4’ zel 802 09 Gl 6 €8l 8Y 65 bpunp—LL ey yse3 Ao |3
6€L 0601 v.2 4} S0l 0€Z 61 vl L 02 Ve 8y LLIOO = LLInre e

doys ETRIEYN (A1eqqoy
asy | sy | swuy | abeweq wou uoyl E.ot ETRIEYN K1oqqoy ‘|oxa) Aie|bing | Asejbing
leyol | [eyol | Joyl0o | leulwl) Sliell%e) joysylL |awuo Jayo | Buemg
Weul oyl JUSIOIA IV

piep Aq ‘pooyinoqybiaN 3seg abplquied ay} Ul S|9AST JUSPIdU| INOIABYDY [RID0S-1}UY pue awii)

d3aXEVIN AT3AILOT1LOdd LON

Page 45



8l

d3axdviN AT3AILOF10dd LON

9T 61 € TOT S T 0 9T 0 9¢ TTunf-TT JeN
14’ ve € €8 S ST 0T | 1 € €¢ TT RO -TIT I 28puaj0)
1T 1 0 6L 9 (474 S 0 S 8 TT unf-TT JEN
TT (0] 4 LL T 174 14 L T TT TTPO-TTINf Asswoy w
S
(7]
T¢ LT 0 TET S S¢ L 9T 1L S TTunr- 17 JeN
TT 8T € 8TT S 8T 14 8T [4 6 TTRO-TTINf Asqqy
6§ St 9T | ¢y 6T | /8 9T | LV vl | ¥S TTunf-TT JeN z
a5
4% 65 0Cc | /L9¢ vT | L9 0c | oV 0T | 6v TTPO-TTINf 1seg A g
< [2< | @ |53 |~ | Z Z ([0O= | O |Z>
¢ |5 |3 |22 /8 |2 (& /82 (& |28
e |5 |8 25|23 |8 |€ |35 |e |03
o 20 (g |25 | X ! T |20 |3 s g
® |8x |3 |TZ|2 & |2 |36 T |23
© |3 = | = - = Q= | o 53
8 |5 12 |< g &% | e
g |2 = 3 |7 |55 | @ 3
o 5] o T |58 |53 =
@ s > | 8 =)
o o | < o
(1]

piep Aq ‘pooyinoqybiaN ealy jse3q A)9 ayj ul sadA) juaplou] gsvy

A3aMdavIN AT3AILO310dd LON

"uonesijqnd 10} solysije}s |elolyjo se papiebal Jjou pue
apInb e se pasn aq Ajuo pjnoys sainbly ay] "pajoasiod Ajuanbasqns jng pisem Burinoqybiau ay} ul papiodal aq Ajjeniul pjnod
91| sallepunoq piem aiaym pajiodas ggy "6 0 pajiodaa ase sjuapioul Aem ay} 0} anp suoijeoso| asioaid ulejuod jou Aew jodau
SIY} Joj umopyealq adA} gSy 9yj 10} poapasu |Ie}op JO |9A3] Y} Meip O} pasn walsAs ejep ay} asnedsaq SI SIYl 99140 dWOH
pue 82104 ay} Aq paysiiqnd aq [jIm Jey} sainbiy [eI1o1140 3y} Y}IM JudlSISuod aq jou Aew spiem 3y} JO Uoea 0} S|9Ad] Judapiou]

9JON 9sed|d

Page 46



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

19

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Agenda ltem 7

EAST AND SOUTH AREA CORRIDOR FUNDING

To: Cambridge City Council - East Area Committee

Date: 15" December 2011

From: Joseph Whelan, Head of New Communities
Service, Cambridgeshire County Council

1. Background

1.1  Transport s106 contributions are collected in Cambridge City

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

and South Cambridgeshire largely through the Area
Transport Plan process. Contributions are collected from a
number of developments, pooled and then spent on a range
of schemes that are included in the plans themselves.

On 23 June 2011 the East Area Committee (EAC) received a
report from the Head of Parking & Road Safety plus Head of
New Communities Service at Cambridgeshire County
Council regarding Southern Corridor Area Transport Plan
(SCATP) and Eastern Corridor Area Transport Plan (ECATP)
funds that have been collected. The report and discussion at
Committee focused on the potential uses of the funds in the
Cambridge City wards of Petersfield, Coleridge, Abbey and
Romsey (these being the City Wards covered by the East
Area Committee).

An action from that meeting was for the County Council's
Head of New Communities to bring future reports to EAC for
a review of potential projects that could be supported by East
and South Corridor funding. This report is the first in that
series.

The wards comprising the EAC ‘area’ sit almost completely
within the ECATP area. However part of the Coleridge Ward
sits within the SCATP area, hence this report deals with both
ECATP and SCATP funding issues. A plan illustrating these
boundaries is attached as Appendix 1.

To provide context, East Area Committee Members are
asked to note a process has been developed by Officers of

Page 49



1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

the City, County and South Cambs to formulate
recommendations for use of CATP funding. Officers from all
three Councils will identify appropriate schemes on which the
money can be spent, which in this area are for schemes
within the ECATP and SCATP that mitigate the effect of
additional transport related movements from new
development.

Officer recommendations are followed by consideration by
Portfolio Holders at each of the Councils. During this process
careful consideration is given to the developments that have
provided this funding (via the S106 and as part of planning
permission) to ensure that the expenditure can be viewed as
providing direct mitigation of the impact of that development.

The Officer recommendations for s106 spending are set
down below. Members are invited to comment on those
recommendations.

Members of the Committee are also invited to suggest other
projects for consideration for funding, noting that the funds
would have to be spent on schemes/improvements within the
geographical boundary of the ECATP and SCATP plans.

Recommendations for Scheme Funding

ECATP Schemes

Newmarket Road Bus Priority — Part 1: £100,000

Newmarket Road is one the busiest radial routes in the city.
There are a number of areas where congestion impacts on
journey times, having a significant effect on the reliability of
bus journeys. One area where there is scope to improve the
situation, is the eastbound approach to the Barnwell Road
roundabout.

The eastbound approach would be redesigned to make
better use of the little utilised left turn lane. The design
would need to incorporate facilities to accommodate cyclists
using the junctions. Adjustments to the kerbs and traffic
islands would be necessary and clear signage would also be

Page 50



2.2

required. The removal of existing road markings and surface
treatments and the reinstatement of service ducts will
shorten the residual life of the carriageway and the most
appropriate way of achieving this will be to resurface.

It is envisaged that there would be significant benefits in
reducing congestion and improving the reliability of the Park
and Ride service. Additional benefits would be achieved in
reduced vehicular exhaust emissions.

Crossing Provision, Ditton Lane/Newmarket Road:

£60,000

2.3

This busy area caters for large amounts of traffic quite
effectively, although the needs of cyclists and pedestrians
are not taken properly into account. Essentially, there are
two sections of path separated by the busy Ditton Lane with
pedestrian or cyclist provision for crossing. The lack of a
toucan crossing at this location devalues the existing cycling
facilities along this part of Newmarket Road.

The site has a high cycle use and pedestrian footfall, many
of whom are accessing local schools and nurseries.

Advice from the County Council Traffic Signals Team notes
that changes to the way the signals operate will be required
in order to incorporate a pedestrian/cycle phase. This
change will have an effect on waiting time for general traffic
at this junction.

The Tins Phase 2: £275,000

This is an extension of the newly improved Tins path, as
previously planned, and was approved by Cabinet subject to
additional funding becoming available. It would link with the
improved path, which runs from Brookside, off Perne Road,
to just beyond Next Generation by continuation of the
widened Tins Path from its end point (west of Next
Generation) to Railway Street in Cherry Hinton.

The Tins is on a Blue Strategic Cycle Route on the

Cambridge City Cycle Map and this extension was
considered at a recent stakeholder workshop, with

Page 51



2.4

2.5

representation from City Council, Cambridge Cycling
Campaign, Sustrans, Cyclists Touring Club and CCC -
Highways & Access, where The Tins Extension received
widespread approval from all present.

Radial Route Signing: £50,000

A key element in reducing congestion and maintaining safety
is the use of clear and concise signage. Over the years
signage has built up in an ad-hoc fashion leading to
unnecessary and confusing signage.

Much of the City’s Ring Road has seen provision of new
signage in recent years and there is now a need to review
and rationalise signage on the radial routes to ensure
consistency in routeing, destinations, to remove unnecessary
signs and to meet current legal requirements. Improved
signage will assist effective travel into and out of the City.
Reduction of street clutter will help enhance the street
environment too.

All of the radial routes require a full review of directional
signs, with the routes funded from the corridor area transport
plan.  This would include Newmarket Road within the
ECATP.

SCATP Schemes

Hills Road Bridge Steps: Cost subject to study

This proposal is to link the southern side of Hills Road Bridge
with the southern Busway Cycle Route. This would enable a
quick and easy link on to the cycle track for access to Clay
Farm, Trumpington and Trumpington Meadows in addition to
Cambridge Railway Station avoiding the need to cross Hills
Road. The route is part of the “Chisholm Trail”, although
there is true standalone value, which will also be of great
value to commuters to Addenbrooke's, in addition to students
at Hills Road and Homerton Colleges.

Committee are advised that following detailed consideration

it has been concluded that it is not possible to physically
build a ramp in this location.

Pagé 52



2.6

It would consist of a some form of steps for pedestrians, as
well as channels to assist cyclists with their cycles, leading to
the rail/bus/cycle corridor, dropping down from the existing
road bridge at suitable gradient and width. Dependent upon
the outcome of initial studies, estimated at £10,000, the
project could simply involve shallow gradient steps, with
channels, due to the lack of space and available land. The
steps would offer direct, quick access to the Busway cycle
route giving added value and functionality, as well as
avoiding need for a road crossing and therefore would take
the strain from the Toucan provided and will reduce
pedestrian calls. This would result in reduced traffic
congestion on Hills Road bridge caused by pedestrian
crossing demand. This proposal was considered at a recent
stakeholder workshop, with representation from City Council,
Cambridge Cycling Campaign, Sustrans, Cyclists Touring
Club and CCC.

Radial Route Signing: £50,000

A key element in reducing congestion and maintaining safety
is the use of clear and concise signage. Over the years
signage has built up in an ad-hoc fashion leading to
unnecessary and confusing signage.

Much of the City’s Ring Road has seen provision of new
signage in recent years and there is now a need to review
and rationalise signage on the radial routes to ensure
consistency in routeing, destinations, to remove unnecessary
signs and to meet current legal requirements. Improved
signage will assist effective travel into and out of the City.
Reduction of street clutter will help enhance the street
environment too.

All of the radial routes require a full review of directional
signs, with the routes funded from the corridor area transport

plan. This would include Cherry Hinton Road within the
SCATP.

Next Steps in the Approval/lmplementation Process

Page 53



3.1

3.2

When County Cabinet are asked to approve Offciers
recommendations they will also be advised of the views
expressed at East Area Committee as this is a key input into
the decision to make these local transport improvements.

Following Cabinet approval to allocate s106 funding to a

scheme, the usual process will follow, with design and
consultation on proposed options prior to implementation.

Pagé 54



Appendix 1

Current Corridor Area Transport Plan Boundaries - For East AR i
County Council
Area Committee Purposes

S

)
Seldima’ Hils) |

x|
|

. faq f

; 3

K
o
A “-‘J«,r.c“mf
bbaq'

Fmo

Cotte nhnm A

™, The Walma
X

s Fm.n,.

% P ) r
v [Peyn | Py Pl
il i !
oo Qurmer Fimy
Ciaghithe i
)
| Y

r:f&"m_u.u k' S ; /‘_,
.o
&
# )

[East Chesterton in Northern Area Commlttee " u_-,-;ff:

R e

"Colerldge in SCATP

e G
=il -i*' (ﬁx oafooen FuLde'rr
i .\
4 ! 43 g4 Lieprt ("
! Bumaps Fn _-!f’ \”'I' P
T ,_f-'/ ::
N - F.
" A Iﬁ‘?ﬂnt fog o
-lh‘l s n-:srrv P
od ¥ == wF . T - L)
rnn'l}»‘:ngnll. [
¥
L\
Hiwghli o < " ) g
) : -b‘f\ m‘.i.- o "oy I
“ 3% o Loage Fm: |
& ;‘\.% ¢, < Pkl : . i
SR ' . b Fou :}:.‘ P ILW'nIiH._I
(%; emidood Wil §
”5‘\ /"j/? unmam.%-’b o o I -
\ s M 4

&
SheLlord p S - -
k) s 7 / S S ; . .'EE'ETIM il e ;
4 < £y i :
- w,@mp;emrd : €. N
;ﬁ@ . . L ;...}ﬁ
o '“ﬂ--..:a 5 s R
Scale (at Ad): 1:75000 Based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Otfice © Crown copynght

Date: 21/04/2010 i ety
By' fp435 m zl-l':::.“lrll::g;;i?ﬁ 2010



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Agenda Iltem 8

o
rh\b Cambridge City Council Item
)
To: East Area Committee
Report by: Philip Doggett, Chief Estates Surveyor, Property
Services
Relevant scrutiny East Area Committee 15/12/2011
committee:
Wards affected: Petersfield

Approach from Sainsbury’s for the City Council to dedicate land at 103
Mill Road for use as a loading bay.

East Area Committee is asked to comment on consultation arrangements in
relation to the future use of Council land at Mill Road.

1. Background

1.1 On 21 June 2011 Sainsbury’s submitted a planning application to
change the use of 103 Mill Road to A1 retail use (to be a Sainsbury's
Local). The application subsequently included the provision of a new
loading bay on Mill Road, part of which would incorporate land owned
by the City Council as shown on the attached plan at Appendix 1
(hatched). The land forms part of a paved area of public open space
fronting Mill Road. East Area Committee refused planning consent for
the proposed retail store on the 25th October 2011.

1.2 Sainsbury's wish to enter into dialogue with the Council about their
options for provision of a Sainsbury's Local in the area. A decision by
the City Council on the land ownership issue at 103 Mill Road is a
separate matter to the planning decision and a process needs to be
agreed to deal with this request. This paper deals with the proposed
process. The Council’s position on whether or not the land is available
for this proposed use needs to be established in the event Sainsbury’s
appeal the planning decision. This will enable the Council’s position as
landowner to be confirmed to the Planning Inspectorate.

1.3 The Executive Councillor for Arts, Sport and Public Spaces confirmed
in a letter to the Head of Planning (prior to the East Area Committee
on 25 October) that in order to decide how to respond to Sainsbury’s
enquiry, the Council intended to consult to seek local views on the
request with regard to the impact of the proposal on the amenity value
of the open space. As part of this, he also confirmed the Council
would ask the Area Committee for its input into the form that

Page 57



consultation should take. Only after careful consideration of the
response to the consultation would he be able to make an informed
decision with regard to the approach made by Sainsbury’s.

2. Proposed Consultations

21

2.2

2.3

Nearby residents and businesses would be consulted using a short
questionnaire seeking views on the impact of the proposal on the
amenity value of the open space. This would be available on the
Council’s website and posted to nearby addresses using the same
database when publicising the planning application. This will comprise
written consultation with 485 neighbouring addresses, incorporating
both residential and business addresses. In addition, residents
associations, the Mill Road Society and other interested parties will be
consulted in the area including respondents to the original planning
application. However, the consultation would not duplicate the
planning consultation because this proposed consultation is in relation
to the impact on the amenity value of the Council’s public open space.

The proposed consultation would comprise a short questionnaire in
the form shown at Appendix 2.

The outcome of the consultation would then be reported back to the
East Area Committee with a recommendation to the Executive
Councillor before a decision is made.

3. Recommendations

3.1

It is recommended that members of the East Area Committee
consider the contents of this report and confirm that they support this
proposed process for local consultation in order to inform any decision
by the Executive Councillor for Arts, Sport and Public Spaces on
whether to consider dedicating the land for a loading bay or not,
subject to agreement of terms.

4. Appendices

Appendix 1 — Plan of City Council ownership coloured pink and land for part
of the proposed loading bay hatched. (The full proposed loading bay is
coloured yellow and extends beyond the Council’'s ownership).

Appendix 2 — Proposed form of questionnaire.

Page 58



5. Inspection of papers

To inspect any background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Philip Doggett
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 457437
Author’'s Email: Philip.doggett@cambridge.gov.uk

Page 59



Appendix 1

g k Property & Building
"\ Services
g

103 Mill Road

Date:

05/12/11

Produced by: Steve Udall

Section/Department:

Property & Building Services

CAMBRIDGE

CITY COUNCIL| © Crown copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019730.

Scale:

1:200

@ A4

Layer: JAWORKING\Property Services\Data\WORKING
Plan ref: N:\PROPERTY\GIS\GENERAL\PDFs 103_mr2

Page 60




Appendix 2

>

Consultation Response Form sApesmat

=

Approach to the City Council to dedicate land at 103 Mill Road for
use as a loading bay.

On 21 June 2011 a planning application was submitted to change the
use of 103 Mill Road to A1 retail use. The application subsequently
included the provision of a new loading bay on Mill Road, part of which
would incorporate land owned by the City Council as shown hatched on
the attached plan. The land forms part of a paved area of public open
space fronting Mill Road.

The Council wishes to seek local views on the possible impact on the
amenity value of the public open space of the proposal to include part of
the Council’s land for this use.

Thank you for taking the time to read this document and to respond with
any comments.

If you need this document produced in
a different format such as Braille, large
print, audio, on disk or in a language
other than English, please contact us.

Contact Details

><  Cambridge City Council
Property Services
P O Box 700
Cambridge CB1 0JH

@ Telephone: 01223 457447
Fax: 01223 457329
Minicom (textphone): 01223 457050

YD property.services@cambridge.gov.uk
www.cambridge.gov.uk

Page 61



How to respond
The consultation will run from 9 January to 31 January 2012.

To respond to the consultation please save a copy of this form to your
computer, complete it and email it to :
property.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Alternatively, you can post your form to us at Property Services,
Cambridge City Council, PO Box 700, Cambridge CB1 0JH.

The responses to this consultation will be reported to the Executive
Councillor for Arts, Sport and Public Spaces and presented to the East
Area Committee on 9 February 2012.

Individual responses will not be acknowledged unless specifically
requested. The information you provide will be used in accordance with
the Data Protection Act 1998.

Consultation question

Based on the possible impact to the amenity value of the Council’s
public open space, do you think the Council should permit the land
(as shown hatched on the attached plan) to form part of the
proposed loading bay?

Yes No

Any comments (limited to 100 words)

Thank you for taking the time to read this document and to respond with
any comments.

Page 62




9:30am _Planning

Bank Holiday

Wed 9 10:00am DCF Planning

10:00am Licensing A

Wed 16 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

Thur |2:30pm _North Area

Q

19
Z)

T 10:00am Licensing B

o))
W

Tue

Wed 2310:00  DCF JD Control
LTV WY 11.00am Annual Council
Fri 25

Sat 26

Sun 27

Mon | 28 10:00am Licensing C
Tue 29

Wed 30 9:30am  Planning

Bank Holiday

Bank Holiday
6 10:00am DCF Planning

8
9
10
11 10:00am Full Licensing

an orss |

13 10:00am Jnt Dev Control
6.00pm  Standards
14 7:00pm  East Area

15

16

17

18 10:00am Licensing D
4:00pm  Equalities Panel

19 5:30pm Ho Mgmnt Bd
20 10:00am DCF JD Control

21 7:00pm  West/Cent Area

22
23
24
25 10:00am Licersing A

27 9:30am  Planning

28 1:30pm Comm Services

Cambridge City Council - Meeting Card - 2012/2013

2012

3
4

10:00am Licensing B

4 10:00am DCF Planning 1 10:00am DCF Planning 5

10:00am Licensing C 10

5:00pm  Strat & Res

6 10:00am Licensing C

10 7 "
11 10:00am Jnt Dev Control 8 10:00am Jnt Dev Control 12

12 9 13
13 10 14
14 1 15
15 12 16
16 10:00am Licensing D 13 10:00am Licensing D 17

18 10:00  DCF JD Control 15 10:00am DCF JD Control 19
1o (T o 7ooom Easaes | 20
20 17 21
pal 18 22

22 19
23 10:00am Licersing A 20

N
by

10:00am Licersing A 24

24 21 5:00pm JSEF 25
25/9:30am _ Planning 22/9:30am _ Planning 26
PL) 6:30pm  North Area 23 7:00pm West/Cent Area 27
27 24 28
28 25 29

29
30 10:00am Licensing B

26

30
Bank Holiday

31 28 10:00am Licensing B

29 10:00am DCF Planning

Liberal Democrats Party Conference

Council

Labour Party Conference

Conservative Party Conference

Green Party Conference

Local Government Association Conference

10:00am Licensing C 1 10:00am Licersing C

2

10:00am Jnt Dev Control 3 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

1

10:00am Licensing D 5

B o et |
10:00 DCF JD Control 10 10:00am DCF JD Control 7

8 10:00am Full Licensing

11 1:30pm Comm Services | 8
12 9
13 10
14 1
10:00am Licensing A 15 10:00am Licensing D 12

5:00pm  Strat & Res

wasn oess |

5:30pm Ho Mgmnt Bd

9:30am  Planning 17 9:30am  Planning 14
18 7:00pm East Area 15
19 16
20 17
21 18
10:00am Licensing B 22 10:00am Licensing A 19
23 20
10:00am DCF Planning 24 10:00am DCF Planning 21
6:30pm  North Area P33 6:000m  Council 22
26 23
27 24

28 25
29 10:00am Licersing B 26

27
28

30
31 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

Planning

10:00am Licensing C
Bank Holiday

7:00pm  West/Cent Area 6 10:00am DCF JD Control |Thur

3 10:00am Licensing C

10:00am Licensing C 10:00am Licensing D 7 10:00am Licersing D

1 Tue 8 5:30pm  Ho Mgmnt Bd
10:00 DCF JD Control 12 9:30am  Planning Wed 9 9:30am  Planning

13 7:00pm East Area Thur 10 7:00pm West/Cent Area

14 Fri 1"

15 Sat 12

16 Sun 13
10:00am Licensing D 17 10:00am Licensing A Mon 14 10:00am Licensing A
9:30am  Planning 19 10:00am DCF Planning Wed 16 10:00am DCF Planning
5:00pm JSEF

20 10:00am Licensing B |Thur 17 1:30pm Comm Services

21 Fri 18

22 Sat 19

23 Sun 20
10:00am Licensing A 24 Mon 21 10:00am Licensing B
4:00pm  Equalities Panel 5:00pm  Strat & Res

25 Tue 22
10:00am DCF Planning 26 Wed 23 10:00am Jnt Dev Control
6:30pm  North Area 27 Thur 24

28 Fri 25

29 Sat 26

27
28 10:00am Full Licensing

30

10:00am Licersing B

29
10:00am Jnt Dev Control 30 10:00am DCF JD Control

6.00pm  Standards

North Area

Strat & Res Jnt Dev Control

DCF JD Control

Equalities Panel

DCF Planning
Licensing

Standards

|Comm Services
Ho Mgmnt Bd

4/10:00am Licersing C

5 5:00pm JSEF
6 9:30am Planning

7 7.00pm  East Area
8 5:00pm Strat & Res
9

10

11 10:00am Licensing D

13 10:00am DCF Planning

18 10:00am Licensing A

19
22 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

Pl 6:00pm  Council
22
23
24
10:00am Licensing B

26
27 [10:00

DCF JD Control

28 7:00pm West/Cent Area

4 10:00am

5 5:30pm
6 9:30am
6.00pm

© [N

10
11 10:00am

12 400pm_Enironment |
13 10:00am DCF Planning

14 1:30pm  Comm Services

18 10:00am

Licersing C

2013

Ho Mgmnt Bd
Planning
Standards

Licensing D

Licensing A

5:00pm  Strat & Res

19

20 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

21 [l

22
23
24
10:00am

North Area

Licensing B

10:00am DCF JD Control

Bank Holiday

3 9:30am

8 10:00am

9
10 10:00am

11 7:00pm
12

13

14
15/10:00am

t6lasopm opss |

17 10:00am
18 [
19

20

21
22 10:00am

23 5:00pm
24/10:00
25 7:00pm
26

27

28

29 10:00am

30

Apr

Bank Holiday

Planning

Licersing C

DCF Planning

East Area

Full Licensing

Jnt Dev Control

Council

Licensing D

JSEF

DCF JD Control

West/Cent Area

Licensing A

1/9:30am _Planning

7

8 10:00am DCF Planning

9
10
1
12

Bank Holiday

13 10:00am Licensing B

14

Wed

Wed

Thur
Fri
sat
Sun
Mon

15 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

Wed

[ 6:30pm  North Area Thur

17
18
19

20 10:00am Licensing C

21

22.10:00  DCF JD Control

Fri
Sat

Sun
Mon

Tue
Wed

PX] 11.00am Annual Council it

24
25
26
27

28

29

30

31

Bank Holiday

Version 4

o
b =

1%
s

Mon

0| wal| e@iaby



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



May
Sat

Sun

Mon

Tue

Wed 1
Thr | 2
Fri 3
Sat 4
Sun 5
Mon 6
Tee | 7
Wed 8
Thur | o
Fri 10

Bank Holiday 3

4
5

-~ o

Tue | 14 1
Wed | 15 12
Thur 'rU 13
r | Q) “
sat 18 15
Sun 1 16
Mon | 20 17
Tue m 18
Wed | 22 19
LU 5] 11.00am Annual Council [N
Fri 24 21
sat 25 22
Sun 26 23
Mon 27 Bank Holiday 24
Tue | 28/10:00am Licensing C 25
Wed | 29 2

27

10:00am Full Licensing

9:30am _ Planning

10:00am Licensing D

5:30pm  Ho Mgmnt Bd

10:00am DCF Planning

6.00pm  Standards
7:00pm  East Area

10:00am Licensing A

4:00pm  Equalities Panel

10:00am Jnt Dev Control

7:30pm  West/Cent Area

10:00am Licersing B

10:00am DCF JD Control

1:30pm  Comm Services

July

1 10:00am Licensing C

5
[

U

8 10:00am Licensing D
5:00pm  Strat & Res

10 9:30am  Planning

10:00am Licensing A

17 10:00am DCF Planning

iE] 6:30pm  North Area

19
20
21
22 10:00am Licersing B

23

24 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

p33 6:000m  Council

29 10:00am Licensing C

30

31 10:00  DCF JD Control

Liberal Democrats Party Conference

Labour Party Conference

Conservative Party Conference

Green Party Conference

Local Government Association Conference

Cambridge City Council - Meeting Card - 2013/2014

5 10:00am Licensing D

6
7 9:30am  Planning

14 10:00am DCF Planning

15 7:00pm  East Area

o

10:00am Licersing B

20 5:00pm  JSEF

21 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

22 7:30pm  West/Cent Area

23
24

26 Bank Holiday

27
28 10:00am DCF JD Control

Council

2013
Sep

1

2 10:00am Licensing C

3

4 9:30am

®

9 10:00am Licensing D

18 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

23 10:00am Licensing B

24
25/10:00

P 6:30pm

27
28

Planning

10:00am DCF Planning

16 10:00am Licensing A

17 5:30pm  Ho Mgmnt Bd

22
DCF JD Control 23 10:00am DCF JD Control
North Area P23 6:00pm  Council

25

26

Oct

10:00am Licersing C

2/9:30am _ Planning

« NN

7 10:00am Licersing D

8

1"

14 10:00am Licensing A
5:00pm  Strat & Res

17 7:00pm  East Area

21 10:00am Licensing B

27
28 10:00am Licersing C

29
30

Planning

9 10:00am DCF Planning

10 1:30pm  Comm Services

an oss |

16 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

Nov

7:30pm  West/Cent Area

4 10:00am Licensing D

6 9:30am  Planning

10:00am Licensing A

13 10:00am DCF Planning

15

16

18 10:00am Licensing B
4:00pm  Equalities Panel

19 5:00pm  JSEF
20 10:00am Jnt Dev Control
21 [
22
2
10:00am Licersing C
26

27 10:00
6.00pm

DCF JD Control
Standards

Dec
Sat
1 Sun
2 10:00am Licensing D Mon
3 Tue
4/9:30am _ Planning Wed
510:00am DCF JD Control | Thur
6 Fri
7 Sat
8 Sun
9 10:00am Licensing A Mon
10 Tue
11/10:00am DCF Planning  Wed

12
13

16

18

19

20
21

7:00pm  East Area

10:00am Licensing B

10:00am Jnt Dev Control ~ Wed

10:00am Licensing C Thur

Thur

Strat & Res

DCF Planning
Licensing

Standards

|Comm Services
Ho Mgmnt Bd

Jnt Dev Control

DCF JD Control

van Feb
Bank Holiday
1
2 10:00am DCF JD Control
3 10:00am Licensing D
4 1
5 2

6 10:00am Licersing A 3 10:00am Licersing A

7 5:30pm Ho Mgmnt Bd 4
8 9:30am  Planning 5 9:30am

Planning

East Area
Strat & Res

9 7:30pm West/Cent Area
10

6 7.00pm
7 5:00pm

13 10:00am Licensing B

10 10:00am Licensing B

14_ "

15 10:00am DCF Planning 12 10:00am DCF Planning

16 1:30pm Comm Services | 13
17 14
18 15
19 16

20 10:00am Licensing C
5:00pm  Strat & Res

17 10:00am Licensing C

21 18 5:00pm JSEF
19 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

22 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

20 [

Council

21

27 10:00am Licensing D 24 10:00am Licensing D

25
26 [10:00

29 10:00  DCF JD Control DCF JD Control

k] 6:30pm  North Area 27 7:30pm West/Cent Area

Equalities Panel

2014

3 10:00am Licersing A

4 5:30pm  Ho Mgmnt Bd
5/9:30am _Planning
6.00pm _ Standards

S S < o

10:00am Licensing B

"
12 10:00am DCF Planning

13 1:30pm  Comm Services.
14

17 10:00am Licensing C
5:00pm  Strat & Res

19 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

f1 6:30pm  North Area

24 10:00am Licensing D

26 10:00am DCF JD Control

27

Apr

2/9:30am  Planning

3 7:00pm  East Area

M > - N

10:00am Licersing A

9 10:00am DCF Planning

6:00pm  Council

14 10:00am Licensing B

15 5:00pm  JSEF

16 10:00am Jnt Dev Control

17
18 Bank Holiday
19
20
21 Bank Holiday

22 10:00am Licensing C
2310:00  DCF JD Control

24 7:30pm  West/Cent Area

25

26
27

10:00am Licensing D

- o Y

6
7

14

Bank Holiday

9:30am _ Planning

10:00am DCF Planning

Tue

Wed

{E] 6:30pm  North Area Thur

16
17
18
19

20
21

10:00am Licensing B

10:00am Jnt Dev Control

Fri
sat
Sun

Mon

Tue
Wed

P23 11.00am Annual Council it

23
24
25

27
28

Bank Holiday

10:00  DCF JD Control

Version 4

Fri
sat
Sun

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat
Sun



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Agenda ltem 11a

EAST AREA COMMITTEE Date: 15™ December 2011

Application 11/0664/EXP Agenda

Number Iltem

Date Received 20th June 2011 Officer Mr John

Evans

Target Date 15th August 2011

Ward Coleridge

Site 187 Cherry Hinton Road Cambridge
Cambridgeshire CB1 7BX

Proposal The development proposed is the demolition of 187

Cherry Hinton Road and the erection of a three
storey house of flats in its place, together with the
erection of 4 semi-detached houses at the northern
end of the site in place of the garages. (An
approved road off Cherry Hinton Road serves the
houses and flats. 14 car parking spaces and 7
bicycle parking spaces will be provided).
Applicant Mr Italo Verrecchia
69 Cavendish Avenue Cambridge CB1 7UR

INTRODUCTION

0.1 At the East Area Committee on 27 October 2011 the Committee
resolved to defer the application until 15 December 2011 East
Committee meeting because of insufficient information. Officers
were asked to ensure that full drawings of the previously
approved development were available on the website. Also that
appropriate drawings, the previous decision notice, and the
Inspector’s decision letter were attached to the December
agenda, plus to clarify the position about the access drive and
the site boundary. This item would be taken as the first planning
application at the next meeting.

0.2 The approved drawings for the development approved at
appeal are attached to this report together with the Decision
Notice for application ref. 08/0125/FUL and the Inspectors
Decision letter. The site plan attached to the previous report
was not accurate and a revised site plan is also attached. |
consider that this addresses the query regarding the access
drive and site boundary.

Page 67



0.3

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

The alternative recommendation should read as follows:

Unless prior agreement has been obtained from the Head of
Planning, in consultation with the Chair and Spokesperson of
this Committee to extend the period for completion of the
Planning Obligation required in connection with this
development, if the Obligation has not been completed by 31
January 2011 it is recommended that the application be refused
for the following reason

The proposed development does not make appropriate
provision for open space/sports facilities, community
development facilities, education, waste facilities and monitoring
in accordance with policies 3/8, 5/14, 3/7, 3/12 and 10/1 of the
Cambridge Local Plan 2006; and policies P6/1 and P9/8 of the
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003; and as
detailed in the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010 and
Cambridge Open Space Standards Guidance for Interpretation
and Implementation (2010).

SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

The proposals relate to an irregular shaped site on the north
side of the Cherry Hinton Road. The site is located in a wholly
residential part of Cherry Hinton Road, being surrounded on
three sides by two storey detached and semi-detached houses.
On either side of the site the main road is characterised by
detached or semi detached houses. The opposite side of the
main road is predominantly two storey terraced housing.

With a total area of 2,030 square metres the site is in two parts,
the existing house at 187 occupies a frontage to Cherry Hinton
Road, with a rear part currently occupied by an ice cream van
depot. The two parts of the site are separate planning units
connected in the application by a narrow strip of land. This strip
of land is currently part of the curtilage of 169 Cherry Hinton
Road. All of these properties and parcels of land are within the
ownership of the applicant.

Alongside the site on the main road at 193 is a large three

storey building in residential occupation as student flats. This
building has been extended to the rear at considerably depth.

Page 68



1.4

1.5

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

The larger rear part of the site is currently occupied by 18
disused lock up garages with a large central concrete hard
standing with up to 12 ice cream vans parked at the time of the
officers site visit. The rear part of the site is surrounded by
houses with gardens of 20 metres or more and a substantial
number of trees and mature vegetation.

The site does not fall within a Conservation Area and there are
no listed buildings, Buildings of Local Interest or protected trees
in the vicinity. The site falls outside the controlled parking zone.

THE PROPOSAL

The application seeks the replacement of an existing
permission with a new permission to allow longer for
implementation.  The existing permission was granted at
Appeal. The details of the application are unchanged and are
as follows:

The proposals are in two parts. A three storey block of five
residential flats are proposed to replace the house to be
demolished. Two pairs of three storey semi detached houses
would replace the lock up garages on the rear part of the site.
The walls of the flats would be predominantly of block
construction, faced with horizontal cedar boarding at the upper
level. On the south elevation facing the road the central
staircase would be expressed by glass blockwork. The lower
levels of the external walls would be constructed with brick. The
roof slope facing the road would be clad in slate. Similarly the
walls of the four houses would be constructed with blockwork
and faced with brick or render. A 900mm wide column of glass
would run up the side elevation lighting the stairwell.

A new single vehicular access to the main road would be
formed by combining the existing accesses to 187 with the
existing access to 169 Cherry Hinton Road. This single access
would be 4.5 metres wide in accordance with the requirement of
the outline planning permission and would serve the proposed 5
flats, 169 Cherry Hinton Road and the proposed 4 houses on
the rear plot. It is also proposed to retain a second access to
the rear part of the site that exists between 181 and 185 Cherry
Hinton Road.

Page 69



3.0 SITE HISTORY

C/93/0316

Outline permission for two
bungalows

Refused
1993

C/98/0211

Change of use from a dwelling
to a mixed use comprising a
residential dwelling and guest
house and two storey extension

Refused
1998

C/99/0372

Demolition of house, extension
to existing guest house to
provide 13 no. additional
bedrooms, additional car
parking and alterations to site
access.

Refused
1999

C/00/0212

Demolition of house, extension
to existing guest house to
provide 13 no. additional
bedrooms, erection of new two
storey dwelling to the rear.

Approved
2000

C/04/0438

Outline application for
residential development in place
of existing garages

Approved
26.4.2004

05/0925

Erection of new house

Approved

07/1397/REM

Replacement of exiting house
with a three storey building
consisting of 5 flats; demolition
of garages to the rear to be
replaced with 4 semi-detached
three storey town houses and
off-road parking.

Withdrawn

08/0125/FUL

Demolition of 187 Cherry Hinton
Road and the erection of a
three storey building consisting
of 5 flats, together with the
erection of 4 semi-detached,
three storey town houses at the
northern end of the site in place
of the garages. An approved
road off Cherry Hinton Road
serves the houses and flats. 14
car parking spaces and 7
bicycle parking spaces will be

Refused,
approved at
appeal

Page 70




4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

| | provided.

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: No
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: No
Public Meeting/Exhibition: No
DC Forum: No
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development (2005): Paragraphs 7 and 8 state that national
policies and regional and local development plans (regional
spatial strategies and local development frameworks) provide
the framework for planning for sustainable development and for
development to be managed effectively. This plan-led system,
and the certainty and predictability it aims to provide, is central
to planning and plays the key role in integrating sustainable
development objectives. Where the development plan contains
relevant policies, applications for planning permission should be
determined in line with the plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (2006): Sets out to
deliver housing which is: of high quality and is well designed;
that provides a mix of housing, both market and affordable,
particularly in terms of tenure and price; supports a wide variety
of households in all areas; sufficient in quantity taking into
account need and demand and which improves choice;
sustainable in terms of location and which offers a good range
of community facilities with good access to jobs, services and
infrastructure; efficient and effective in the use of land, including
the re-use of previously developed land, where appropriate. The
statement promotes housing policies that are based on
Strategic Housing Market Assessments that should inform the
affordable housing % target, including the size and type of
affordable housing required, and the likely profile of household
types requiring market housing, including families with children,
single persons and couples. The guidance states that LPA’s
may wish to set out a range of densities across the plan area

Page 71



5.4

5.5

5.6

rather than one broad density range. 30 dwellings per hectare is
set out as an indicative minimum. Paragraph 50 states that the
density of existing development should not dictate that of new
housing by stifling change or requiring replication of existing
style or form. Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate a
positive approach to renewable energy and sustainable
development.

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing has been reissued
with the following changes: the definition of previously
developed land now excludes private residential gardens to
prevent developers putting new houses on the brownfield sites
and the specified minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare
on new housing developments has been removed. The
changes are to reduce overcrowding, retain residential green
areas and put planning permission powers back into the hands
of local authorities. (June 2010)

Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological
Conservation (2005): Paragraph 1 states that planning
decisions should aim to maintain, and enhance, restore or add
to biodiversity and geological conservation interests. In taking
decisions, local planning authorities should ensure that
appropriate weight is attached to designated sites of
international, national and local importance; protected species;
and to biodiversity and geological interests within the wider
environment.

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport (2001): This
guidance seeks three main objectives: to promote more
sustainable transport choices, to promote accessibility to jobs,
shopping, leisure facilities and services, by public transport,
walking and cycling, and to reduce the need to travel, especially
by car. Paragraph 28 advises that new development should
help to create places that connect with each other in a
sustainable manner and provide the right conditions to
encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport.

Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution
Control (2004): States that ‘any consideration of the quality of
land, air or water and potential impacts arising from
development, possibly leading to impacts on health, is capable
of being a material planning consideration, in so far as it arises
or may arise from or may affect any land use’. It highlights the

Page 72



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

fact that the planning system has a key role in determining the
location of development which may give rise to pollution.
Appendix A sets out those matters which may be material in
taking decisions on individual planning applications including
the environmental benefits of reducing the need for travel and
the existence of Air Quality Management Areas.

Planning Policy Guidance 24 - Planning and Noise (1994):
States at paragraph 12, that planning authorities should
consider carefully whether new noise-sensitive development
would be incompatible with existing activities. At paragraph 13,
a number of mitigation measures are suggested which could be
introduced to control the source of, or limit exposure to, noise.

Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk
(2006): States that flood risk should be taken into account at all
stages in the planning process to avoid inappropriate
development in areas at risk of flooding, and that development
should be directed away from areas at highest risk. It states that
development in areas of flood risk should only be permitted
when there are no reasonably available sites in areas of lower
flood risk and benefits of the development outweigh the risks
from flooding.

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions: Advises that conditions should be necessary,
relevant to planning, relevant to the development permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

Circular 05/2005 - Planning Obligations: Advises that
planning obligations must be relevant to planning, necessary,
directly related to the proposed development, fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind and reasonable in all other
respect.

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 — places a
statutory requirement on the local authority that where planning
permission is dependent upon a planning obligation the
obligation must pass the following tests:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

Page 73



(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

5.11 East of England Plan 2008
SS1: Achieving Sustainable Development

T2: Changing Travel Behaviour

T3 Managing Traffic Demand

T9: Walking, Cycling and other Non-Motorised Transport
T13 Public Transport Accessibility

T14 Parking

ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment
WM6: Waste Management in Development

5.12 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003
Planning Obligation Related Policies

P6/1 Development-related Provision
P9/8 Infrastructure Provision
P9/9 Cambridge Sub-Region Transport Strategy

5.13 Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3/1 Sustainable development

3/4 Responding to context

3/7 Creating successful places

3/8 Open space and recreation provision through new
development

3/10Subdivision of existing plots

3/11 The design of external spaces

3/12 The design of new buildings

4/4 Trees
4/13 Pollution and amenity
4/15 Lighting

5/1 Housing provision
5/12 New community facilities

8/1 Spatial location of development

Page 74



5.14

8/2 Transport impact
8/6 Cycle parking
8/10 Off-street car parking

Planning Obligation Related Policies

3/7 Creating successful places

3/8 Open space and recreation provision through new
development

5/14 Provision of community facilities through new development
8/3 Mitigating measures (transport)

10/1 Infrastructure improvements (transport, public open space,
recreational and community facilities, waste recycling, public
realm, public art, environmental aspects)

Supplementary Planning Documents

Cambridge City Council (May 2007) — Sustainable Design
and Construction: Sets out essential and recommended
design considerations of relevance to sustainable design and
construction. Applicants for major developments are required to
submit a sustainability checklist along with a corresponding
sustainability statement that should set out information indicated
in the checklist. Essential design considerations relate directly
to specific policies in the Cambridge Local Plan 2006.
Recommended considerations are ones that the council would
like to see in major developments. Essential design
considerations are urban design, transport, movement and
accessibility, sustainable drainage (urban extensions), energy,
recycling and waste facilities, biodiversity and pollution.
Recommended design considerations are climate change
adaptation, water, materials and construction waste and historic
environment.

Cambridge City Council (March 2010) — Planning Obligation
Strategy: provides a framework for securing the provision of
new and/or improvements to existing infrastructure generated
by the demands of new development. It also seeks to mitigate
the adverse impacts of development and addresses the needs
identified to accommodate the projected growth of Cambridge.
The SPD addresses issues including transport, open space and
recreation, education and life-long learning, community
facilities, waste and other potential development-specific
requirements.

Page 75



5.15 Material Considerations

Central Government Guidance

Draft National Planning Policy Framework (July 2011)

The National Planning Policy Framework (Draft NPPF) sets out
the Government’s economic, environmental and social planning
policies for England. These policies articulate the
Government’s vision of sustainable development, which should
be interpreted and applied locally to meet local aspirations.

The Draft NPPF includes a set of core land use planning
principles that should underpin both plan making and
development management (précised form):

1.
2.

planning should be genuinely plan-led

planning should proactively drive and support the
development and the default answer to development

proposals should be , yes. , except where this would

compromise the key sustainable development principles set
out in the Draft NPPF

planning decisions should take into account local
circumstances and market signals such as land prices,
commercial rents and housing affordability and set out a
clear strategy for allocating sufficient land which is suitable
for development in their area, taking account of the needs of
the residential and business community

planning decisions for future use of land should take account
of its environmental quality or potential quality regardless of
its previous or existing use

planning decisions should seek to protect and enhance
environmental and heritage assets and allocations of land for
development should prefer land of lesser environmental
value

mixed use developments that create more vibrant places,
and encourage multiple benefits from the use of land should
be promoted

Page 76



7. the reuse of existing resources, such as through the
conversion of existing buildings, and the use of renewable
resources should be encouraged

8. planning decisions should actively manage patterns of
growth to make the fullest use of public transport, walking
and cycling, and focus significant development in locations
which are or can be made sustainable

9. planning decisions should take account of and support local
strategies to improve health and wellbeing for all

10. planning decisions should always seek to secure a good
standard of amenity for existing and future occupants of land
and buildings.

The Draft NPPF states that the primary objective of
development management is to foster the delivery of
sustainable development, not to hinder or prevent development.

Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (27 May 2010)

The coalition government is committed to rapidly abolish
Regional Strategies and return decision making powers on
housing and planning to local councils. Decisions on housing
supply (including the provision of travellers sites) will rest with
Local Planning Authorities without the framework of regional
numbers and plans.

Written Ministerial Statement: Planning for Growth (23
March 2011)

Includes the following statement:

When deciding whether to grant planning permission, local
planning authorities should support enterprise and facilitate
housing, economic and other forms of sustainable development.
Where relevant and consistent with their statutory obligations
they should therefore:

(i) consider fully the importance of national planning policies
aimed at fostering economic growth and employment, given the
need to ensure a return to robust growth after the recent
recession;

Page 77



(i) take into account the need to maintain a flexible and
responsive supply of land for key sectors, including housing;

(iii) consider the range of likely economic, environmental and
social benefits of proposals; including long term or indirect
benefits such as increased consumer choice, more viable
communities and more robust local economies (which may,
where relevant, include matters such as job creation and
business productivity);

(iv) be sensitive to the fact that local economies are subject to
change and so take a positive approach to development where
new economic data suggest that prior assessments of needs
are no longer up-to-date;

(v) ensure that they do not impose unnecessary burdens on
development.

In determining planning applications, local planning authorities
are obliged to have regard to all relevant considerations. They
should ensure that they give appropriate weight to the need to
support economic recovery, that applications that secure
sustainable growth are treated favourably (consistent with policy
in PPS4), and that they can give clear reasons for their
decisions.

City Wide Guidance

Cambridge City Council (2006) - Open Space and
Recreation Strategy: Gives guidance on the provision of open
space and recreation facilities through development.

Green Infrastructure Strategy for the Cambridgeshire Sub-
Region (2006) - Produced by Cambridgeshire Horizons to
assist the implementation of the Areas of Major Change and as
a material consideration in the determination of planning
applications and appeals.

Cambridge City Council Open Space Standards Guidance
for Interpretation and Implementation (2010) Sets out how all
residential developments should make provision for public open
space, if not on site then by commuted payments. It
incorporates elements from the Planning Obligations Strategy

Page 78



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Supplementary Planning Document (2010) and the Open Space
and Recreation Strategy (2006).

Cambridgeshire Design Guide For Streets and Public
Realm (2007): The purpose of the Design Guide is to set out
the key principles and aspirations that should underpin the
detailed discussions about the design of streets and public
spaces that will be taking place on a site-by-site basis.

Cycle Parking Guide for New Residential Developments
(2010) — Gives guidance on the nature and layout of cycle
parking, and other security measures, to be provided as a
consequence of new residential development.

Area Guidelines

Cambridge City Council (2002)-Southern Corridor Area
Transport Plan:

The purpose of the Plan is to identify new transport
infrastructure and service provision that is needed to facilitate
large-scale development and to identify a fair and robust means
of calculating how individual development sites in the area
should contribute towards a fulfilment of that transport
infrastructure.

CONSULTATIONS

Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering)
No comments.

Head of Environmental Services

Comments awaited.

Cambridgeshire County Council (Education and Life Long
Learning)

There is no surplus capacity in relation to pre-school and
primary education needs and therefore a commuted sum is
required. There is sufficient capacity at Coleridge School to
meet secondary education needs. A contribution towards LLL
is required in accordance with the SPD.

Page 79



6.4

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0

8.1

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations:

14 Coniston Road
15 Coniston Road
53 Beaumont Road (owner of 16 Coniston Road)

The representations can be summarised as follows:

No objections provided that there have been no change to the
proposed development.

Loss of privacy to adjoining houses.
Increased noise.
Encroachment up to adjoining boundaries and loss of light.

No objection to the proposed flats but object to the houses for
the following reasons:

Insufficient space to provide adequate amenity space
particularly for families.

Impact on privacy.

Potential damage to trees.

Inadequate access for refuse and emergency vehicles.
Increased noise.

Increased number of cars and vehicles impacting on
overcrowding and pollution.

The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.

ASSESSMENT

The application seeks an extension of time for the
implementation of a development that was approved at Appeal.
The proposed development is identical and therefore the
assessment of the application turns on whether there have

Page 80



8.2

8.3

8.4

(I R O]

]

been any changes in planning policy or guidance and whether
the site context has changed.

Changes to Planning Policy and Guidance

The following key changes have been made to Planning Policy
and Guidance since the determination of the previous
application:

Planning Policy Statement 3 Housing has been reissued
The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 have
been adopted

The East of England Plan 2008 has been adopted

The Planning Obligations Strategy 2010 has been adopted
Draft National Planning Policy Framework (July 2011)
Government Guidance has been produced which supports
growth

New Open Space Standards Guidance for Interpretation and
Implementation has been adopted.

Cycle Parking Guide for New Residential Developments has
been adopted.

| have reviewed all of these documents and reached the view
that none of them lead me to conclude that the application
should be refused. In general the changes that have been
made do not alter the policy background against which the
proposal needs to be assessed. The East of England Plan
constitutes new planning policy but for the determination of this
application the relevant policies are already reflected in Local
Plan policies against which the previous application was
assessed. Central Government guidance adds weight to the
argument that planning permission should be granted and
changes to local guidance have greatest effect in terms of s106
matters, which are addressed below.

There have been no changes to the site context, which lead me
to conclude that the period for implementation of the planning
application should not be extended. The remainder of my
report updates the assessment that was made in relation to the
previous application to address changes in planning policy and
guidance and the s106 process.

Page 81



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

Principle of development

Context of site, design and external spaces
Disabled access

Residential amenity

Refuse arrangements

Highway safety

Car and cycle parking

Third party representations

Planning Obligation Strategy

Coo~NOOTOTR~rWND—

Principle of Development

The principle of development has been established by the
previous permission for an identical development.

Context of site, design and external spaces

The site is within a residential area that is characterised by two
storey houses of between 7.5 and 8.5 metres in height. The
exception to this is the large guest house alongside the site at
193 which is three storey and higher than surrounding
properties. At 8.3 metres high and a width of just over 13
metres the flats would be very similar in height and scale to the
majority of buildings along this part of Cherry Hinton Road.

The flats are designed with a pitched roof and two storey
appearance to the front elevation with a flat roof three storey
section to the rear. Because of the proximity of buildings on
either side the general view from the street will be of the two
storey part of the development. The flats are positioned within
the plot to accurately reflect the well defined building line of the
street.

The flats blend several modern features such as a central
curved, glazed and recessed entrance and timber cladding at
first floor level with traditional features of symmetrical window
design and layout, brick and slate external materials and a 25
degree hipped roof on the front elevation. The eaves line
corresponds closely to the eaves line of other buildings in the
street.

Page 82



8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

The four houses to the rear are much more overtly modern in
design incorporating an asymmetrical roof with roof lights to the
north elevation and a flat roof three storey south facing
elevation. The building has clearly been designed to respond to
the limitations imposed by the proximity of surrounding
residential properties and the north south orientation, which
allows advantage to be taken from passive solar gain. External
materials would be brick with render.

At 9.8 metres high to the top of the asymmetrical roof the
houses would be between one and two metres higher than
surrounding houses. | do not feel that the buildings would be
unduly high or out of scale with their surroundings, given the
limited difference in height and the separation distances
between them and surrounding buildings. | am satisfied that the
scale of the houses would not be harmful having regard to their
spacious and discrete setting that is not readily visible from
public vantage points.

In my view, both the flats and the houses successfully respond
to the scale and context of the site and its setting in an
appropriate manner that is acceptable in terms of the character
and appearance of the existing street scene. In my opinion the
proposal is compliant with East of England Plan 2008 and
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/4, 3/7, 3/11 and 3/12.

Renewable energy and sustainability

The development proposals are below the threshold where
there is a policy requirement to provide an on site renewable
energy source.

The applicant has confirmed that the houses and flats will be of
cavity wall block construction faced with brick and render and
that this mode of construction provides high levels of insulation
to improve on the standards set by the building regulations. The
cedar cladding will be sustainably sourced.

The orientation of the houses maximises the potential for
natural heating during the day from southern sun, while
minimising openings on the north elevation to minimise heat
loss. Living rooms in the flats all face south.

Page 83



8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

The proposals represent development of previously developed
land, and would result in the replacement of a single dwelling
and 18 unused lock up garages with nine dwellings which would
provide homes for people in a highly sustainable location near
to services and public transport. | consider that the proposal is
sustainable and compliant with policy 3/1 of the Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 and the Sustainable Development SPD.

Residential Amenity
The amenity of occupiers of the proposed development

The open amenity spaces of both the flats and the houses are
small, however, the council does not set standards of minimum
garden sizes. The houses have a floor area of 134 square
metres each and are therefore suitable for family occupation.
The open amenity space for each of these family houses
provides limited opportunity for outside relaxation and
recreation. The siting of the flats and the houses however
provides generous distances to neighbouring properties thereby
ensuring adequate light, air and privacy without the feeling of
being cramped and enclosed.

In my opinion the proposal provides a high-quality living
environment and an appropriate standard of residential amenity
for future occupiers, and | consider that in this respect it is
compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/7 and
3/12.

The amenity of neighbours

The flats and the houses have been designed with principle
windows facing to the front and rear with only a few small
secondary windows in flank walls. There are four larger flank
windows serving bedrooms and a living room of the flats
however these look toward the commercial operation of the
guest house alongside where issues of privacy carry less
weight. Where appropriate, side facing windows can be made
the subject of obscure glazing conditions to protect the privacy
of neighbours.

In terms of light and the potential to overshadow | am satisfied

that the position of the flats alongside the neighbouring
buildings and the location of the houses at a generous distance

Page 84



8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

from neighbouring properties will ensure any overshadowing will
be minimal, mostly of the bottom of rear gardens. The
asymmetrical design of the roof to the four houses will reduce
overshadowing of the garden of 193 Coleridge Road to the
north. At their closest point the proposed houses are 22 metres
from the rear of neighbouring houses. In most cases the
separation distance is more than 25 metres. The generous
spacing will ensure that the development does not lead to an
overbearing sense of enclosure for the neighbours.

In my opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential
amenity of its neighbours and the constraints of the site and |
consider that it is compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4 and 3/7.

Disabled access

The proposal allows for adequate provision to be made for two
disabled car parking spaces, the precise details of which can be
required by condition (see car parking assessment below).
Appropriate hard surfacing can be provided from these car
parking spaces to the main entrances of the buildings. This,
again, can be made the subject of a condition. With the
imposition of appropriate conditions, the proposal is considered
to be compliant with policies 3/7 and 3/12 of the Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 with regard to accessibility.

Refuse Arrangements

Purpose built enclosed bin stores are proposed for both the flats
and the four houses. This provision will ensure the proposals
are compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/12 for
refuse storage provision.

Highway Safety

On the recommendation of the highway authority a condition
was imposed on the outline planning permission requiring the
provision of a new 4.5 metres wide shared access. This is
shown on the submitted site layout plan.

The Highway Authority has raised no objection on highway

safety grounds. The proposal is compliant with Cambridge
Local Plan (2006) policy 8/2.

Page 85



8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

Car and Cycle Parking

The adopted car parking standards allow for the maximum
provision of 5 car parking spaces for the 5 proposed flats and
no more than 8 spaces for the 4 proposed houses. They also
require one space be provided for disabled people, and spaces
be provided for visitors at the ratio of one space per 4 units
within an overall maximum total of no more than 1.5 spaces per
dwelling. In this location, | consider that each flat should have at
least one car parking space, and that visitor parking should be
provided at the level specified by the standards. The proposal
therefore generates a maximum provision of 13 car parking
spaces.

The proposal incorporates 12 spaces, 2 of which can be
designated for disabled drivers. | consider that the number of
spaces proposed is acceptable.

The adopted cycle parking standards require that a minimum of
10 cycle parking spaces be provided for the five flats and 12
cycle spaces be provided for the houses. The application
includes proposals for a covered cycle store for each house and
a communal cycle store for the flats. Each store would provide
cycle stands in accordance with the adopted standards.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policies 8/6 and 8/10.

Third Party Representations

| have addressed the issues of privacy, loss of light and
potential overbearing affects in the above assessment. Access
to the site by refuse and emergency vehicle is not changed.
The following additional issues have also been raised:

Potential damage to trees because of the close proximity of the
four houses.

There are about five mature trees including a Willow and Cherry
growing out of or very close to the northern site boundary. It is
likely the roots of these trees extend onto the application site
and would be severed in the process of development. It is likely
some of the trees will be lost as a consequence of the

Page 86



8.32

8.33

development. Whilst the trees provide an attractive green
canopy in this rear garden location they are individually of little
merit and are not easily seen from public vantage points. In
relation to the previous application the Arboricultural Officer
gave the view that the trees should not constrain the
development.

Noise disturbance because of increased traffic

The new shared access between the flats and 193 will introduce
additional traffic into the rear of the site. This must be compared
with the current use of the site as an ice cream van depot and
the potential for significant traffic movements, albeit those traffic
movements are along the narrow track between 181 and 183.
Traffic using the new shared access will have most impact on
the new flats, the guest house at 193 and the recently
constructed detached house to the rear of the proposed flats.
Traffic noise on other neighbours will be modest because of the
distances to these properties.

Planning Obligations

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 have
introduced the requirement for all local authorities to make an
assessment of any planning obligation in relation to three tests.
If the planning obligation does not pass the tests then it is
unlawful. The tests are that the planning obligation must be:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

In bringing forward my recommendations in relation to the
Planning Obligation for this development | have considered
these requirements. The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010)
provides a framework for expenditure of financial contributions
collected through planning obligations. The Affordable Housing
Supplementary Planning Document 2008 provides guidance in
terms of the provision of affordable housing and the Public Art
Supplementary Planning Document 2010 addresses
requirements in relation to public art (amend/delete as

Page 87



8.34

8.35

applicable). The applicants have indicated their willingness to
enter into a S106 planning obligation in accordance with the
requirements of the Strategy and relevant Supplementary
Planning Documents. The proposed development triggers the
requirement for the following community infrastructure:

Open Space

The Planning Obligation Strategy requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the provision or
improvement of public open space, either through provision on
site as part of the development or through a financial
contribution for use across the city. The proposed development
requires a contribution to be made towards open space,
comprising outdoor sports facilities, indoor sports facilities,
informal open space and provision for children and teenagers.
The total contribution sought has been calculated as follows.

The application proposes the erection of 4 three-bedroom
houses, and 5 two-bedroom flats. One residential unit would be
removed, so the net total of additional residential units is eight.
A house or flat is assumed to accommodate one person for
each bedroom, but one-bedroom flats are assumed to
accommodate 1.5 people. Contributions towards provision for
children and teenagers are not required from one-bedroom
units. The totals required for the new buildings are calculated as
follows:

Outdoor sports facilities
Type |Persons |£  per|£per |Number |Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units

studio |1 238 238
1bed |15 238 357
2-bed |2 238 476 5 2380
3-bed |3 238 714 3 2142
4-bed |4 238 952

Total | 4522

Indoor sports facilities

Type |Persons |£ per | £per Number | Total £
of unit | perunit | person | unit of such

Page 88



8.36

units
studio |1 269 269
1bed |[1.5 269 403.50
2-bed |2 269 538 5 2690
3-bed |3 269 807 3 2421
4-bed |4 269 1076
Total | 5111
Informal open space
Type |Persons |£  per|£per |Number |Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
studio |1 242 242
1bed [1.5 242 363
2-bed |2 242 484 5 2420
3-bed |3 242 726 3 2178
4-bed |4 242 968
Total | 4598
Provision for children and teenagers
Type |Persons |£ per | £per | Number | Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
studio | 1 0 0 0
1bed |[1.5 0 0 0
2-bed |2 316 632 5 3160
3-bed |3 316 948 3 2844
4-bed |4 316 1264
Total | 6004

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010) and the Cambridge City Council Open Space Standards
Guidance for Interpretation and Implementation (2010), | am
satisfied that the proposal accords with Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) policies P6/1 and P9/8,
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/8 and 10/1 and the
Planning Obligation Strategy 2010 and the Cambridge City
Council Open Space Standards Guidance for Interpretation and
Implementation (2010)

Page 89



8.37

8.38

8.39

Community Development

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to community development
facilities, programmes and projects. This contribution is £1256
for each unit of one or two bedrooms and £1882 for each larger

unit. The total contribution sought has been calculated as

follows:
Community facilities
Type of unit | £per unit Number of such | Total £
units
1 bed 1256
2-bed 1256 5 6280
3-bed 1882 3 5646
4-bed 1882
Total | 11926

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8, Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
5/14 and 10/1 and the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Waste

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the provision of
household waste and recycling receptacles on a per dwelling
basis. As the type of waste and recycling containers provided
by the City Council for houses are different from those for flats,
this contribution is £75 for each house and £150 for each flat.
The total contribution sought has been calculated as follows:

Waste and recycling containers
Type of unit | £per unit Number of such | Total £
units
House 75 3 225
Flat 150 5 750
Total | 975

Page 90



8.40

8.41

8.42

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8, Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
3/7, 3/12 and 10/1 and the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Education

Upon adoption of the Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) the
Council resolved that the Education section in the 2004
Planning Obligations Strategy continues to apply until it is
replaced by a revised section that will form part of the Planning
Obligations Strategy 2010. It forms an annex to the Planning
Obligations Strategy (2010) and is a formal part of that
document. Commuted payments are required towards
education facilities where four or more additional residential
units are created and where it has been established that there
is insufficient capacity to meet demands for educational
facilities.

In this case, eight additional residential units are created and
the County Council have confirmed that there is insufficient
capacity to meet demand for pre-school education, primary
education and lifelong learning. Contributions are not required
for pre-school education, primary education and secondary
education for one-bedroom units. Contributions are therefore
required on the following basis.

Pre-school education
Type | Persons £per | Number |Total £
of unit | per unit unit of such

units
1bed |1.5 0
2+- 2 810 8 6480
beds

Total | 6480

Primary education
Type | Persons £per | Number |Total £
of unit | per unit unit of such

units

Page 91



8.43

8.44

8.45

1bed |1.5 0
2+- 2 1350 |8 10800
beds

Total | 10800
Life-long learning
Type | Persons £per | Number |Total £
of unit | per unit unit of such

units

1bed [1.5 160
2+- 2 160 8 1280
beds

Total | 1280

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
2010, | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8, Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
5/14 and 10/1 and the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Monitoring

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the costs of monitoring
the implementation of planning obligations. The costs are
calculated according to the heads of terms in the agreement.
The contribution sought will be calculated as £150 per financial
head of term, £300 per non-financial head of term.
Contributions are therefore required on that basis.

Planning Obligations Conclusion

It is my view that the planning obligation is necessary, directly
related to the development and fairly and reasonably in scale
and kind to the development and therefore the Planning
Obligation passes the tests set by the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010.

Page 92



9.0

9.1

10.0

CONCLUSION

The proposed development would result in the replacement of
one early twentieth century house and an unsightly group of
lock up garages with new family houses and flats in a
sustainable location near to public transport and local services.
This more efficient use of land combined with a stimulating
blend of contemporary and traditional design meets the key
objectives of the local plan. | have addressed changes to
planning policy and guidance and there have been no changes
to the site context.

RECOMMENDATION

1. APPROVE subject to the satisfactory completion of a
Section 106 agreement by 31 December 2011 and subject
to the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority in writing no construction work or demolition shall be
carried out or plant operated other than between the following
hours: 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 hours
to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or
Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13)

Except with the prior agreement of the local planning authority
in writing, there should be no collection or deliveries to the site
during the demolition and construction stages outside the hours
of 0700 hrs and 1900 hrs on Monday - Saturday and there
should be no collections or deliveries on Sundays or Bank and
public holidays.

Page 93



Reason: Due to the proximity of residential properties to this
premises and that extensive refurbishment will be required, the
above conditions are recommended to protect the amenity of
these residential properties throughout the redevelopment in
accordance with policies 4/13 and 6/10 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006)

No development shall commence until a programme of
measures to minimise the spread of airbourne dust from the site
during the demolition and construction periods has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring
residential properties, Cambridge Local Plan policy 4/13.

No development approved by this permission shall be
commenced prior to a contaminated land assessment and
associated remedial strategy, together with a timetable of
works, being submitted to the LPA for approval.

(a)The contaminated land assessment shall include a desk
study to be submitted to the LPA for approval. The desk study
shall detail the history of the site uses and propose a site
investigation strategy based on the relevant information
discovered by the desk study. The strategy shall be approved
by the LPA prior to investigations commencing on site.

(b)The site investigation, including relevant soil, soil gas,
surface and groundwater sampling, shall be carried out by a
suitable qualified and accredited consultant/contractor in
accordance with a quality assured sampling and analysis
methodology.

(c)A site investigation report detailing all investigative works and
sampling on site, together with the results of the analysis, risk
assessment to any receptors and a proposed remediation
strategy shall be submitted to the LPA. The LPA shall approve
such remedial works as required prior to any remediation
commencing on site. The works shall be of such a nature as to
render harmless the identified contamination given the
proposed end use of the site and surrounding environment
including any controlled waters.

Page 94



(d)Approved remediation works shall be carried out in full on
site under a quality assurance scheme to demonstrate
compliance with the proposed methodology and best practice
guidance.

(e)lf, during the works contamination is encountered which has
not previously been identified then the additional contamination
shall be fully assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme
agreed with the LPA.

(lUpon completion of the works, this condition shall not be
discharged until a closure report has been submitted to and
approved by the LPA. The closure report shall include details of
the proposed remediation works and quality assurance
certificates to show that the works have been carried out in full
in accordance with the approved methodology. Details of any
post-remedial sampling and analysis to show the site has
reached the required clean-up criteria shall be included in the
closure report together with the necessary documentation
detailing what waste materials have been removed from site.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of future occupiers,
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13.

The facilities for on site storage of waste, including waste for
recycling, as shown on the approved drawings, shall be
provided prior to occupation of the dwellings to which the
storage facilities relate.  The facilities shall be retained
thereafter unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In order that adequate refuse facilities are provided on
the site, Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 3/12.

Prior to the occupation of the 4 dwellings to the rear of the site,
the windows in the side walls of each house shall be glazed
with obscure glass that prevents overlooking of the rear
gardens of neighbouring properties and shall be permanently
retained as such.

Reason: In the interests of neighbouring amenity, Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 policy 3/4.

Page 95



10.

No dwelling shall be occupied until the proposed vehicular
access, parking spaces, driveway, and turning spaces have
been constructed in accordance with the approved details and
finished with surfacing materials that have been approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The parking and turning
spaces provided shall thereafter be retained and shall not be
used for any other purpose.

Reason: In order that adequate car parking is provided and
retained for the development, Cambridge Local Plan 2006
policy 8/10.

No development shall take place until samples of the materials
to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the external surfaces
is appropriate. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/12 and 3/14)

No development shall take place until full details of both hard
and soft landscape works have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority and these works shall
be carried out as approved. These details shall include
proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car
parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian access and
circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and
structures (eg furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage
units, signs, lighting); proposed and existing functional services
above and below ground (eg drainage, power, communications
cables, pipelines indicating lines, manholes, supports); retained
historic landscape features and proposals for restoration, where
relevant. Soft Landscape works shall include planting plans;
written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of
plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate and an implementation
programme.

Page 96



11.

12.

13.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that
suitable hard and soft landscape is provided as part of the
development. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/11 and 3/12)

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details, and to a reasonable
standard in accordance with the relevant recommendation of
the appropriate British Standard or other recognised code of
good practice. The works shall be carried out prior to the
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with
the programme agreed by the local planning authority in writing.
The maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved schedule. Any trees or plants that, within a period of
five years after planting, are removed, die or become in the
opinion of the local planning authority, seriously damaged or
defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably
practicable with others of species, size and number as originally
approved, unless the local planning authority gives its written
consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure provision, establishment and maintenance
of a reasonable standard of landscaping in accordance with the
approved design. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/11 and 3/12)

No development shall take place until there has been submitted
to and approved by the local planning authority in writing a plan
indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary
treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall be
completed in accordance with a timetable agreed in writing with
the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an appropriate boundary treatment is
implemented. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/11 and 3/12)

The facilities for cycle storage, as shown on the approved
drawings, shall be provided prior to occupation of the dwelling
to which storage facilities relate. The facilities shall be retained
thereafter unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Page 97



14.

15.

16.

Reason: In order that adequate provision is made for bicycle
storage, Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 8/6.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details
of the following matters shall be submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority in writing.

i) contractors access arrangements for vehicles, plant and
personnel,

ii)  contractors site storage area/compound,

iii)  the means of moving, storing and stacking all building
materials, plant and equipment around and adjacent to
the site,

iv)  the arrangements for parking of contractors vehicles and
contractors personnel vehicles.

Thereafter the development shall be undertaken in accordance
with the approved detalils.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties
during the construction period. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006
policy 4/13)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or with
any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modifications) no windows or dormer windows shall be
constructed other than with the prior formal permission of the
local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the amenity of adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4 and 3/14)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any
order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification), no extensions, or additions or garages shall be
erected other than those expressly authorised by this
permission.

Page 98



17.

18.

Reason: To protect the amenity of adjoining properties, and to
prevent overdevelopment of the site. (Cambridge Local Plan
2006 policies 3/4 and 3/14)

Notwithstanding the approved plans, ©prior to the
commencement of development full details shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for an
appropriate location for the storage of wheelie bins on collection
days close to the site entrance. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order that adequate provision is made for refuse
collection, Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 3/12.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby
approved a bollard shall be introduced at the entrance of the
western access to the site to ensure that it is not used for motor
traffic.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality,
Cambridge Local Plan policy 3/4 and 8/2.

Reasons for Approval

1.This development has been approved subject to conditions
and the prior completion of a section 106 planning obligation (/a
unilateral undertaking), because subject to those requirements
it is considered to conform to the Development Plan as a whole,
particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: SS1, T2, T3, T9, T13, T14, ENV7,
WM6

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003: P6/1,
P9/8, P9/9

Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/1, 3/4, 3/7, 3/8, 3/10, 3/11,
3/12, 4/4, 4/13, 4/15, 5/1, 5/12, 8/1, 8/2, 8/6, 8/10, 10/1.

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

Page 99



These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit  our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

2. Unless prior agreement has been obtained from the Head
of Development Services, and the Chair and Spokesperson
of this Committee to extend the period for completion of
the Planning Obligation required in connection with this
development, if the Obligation has not been completed by
31 December 2011 it is recommended that the application
be refused for the following reason:

The proposed development does not make appropriate
provision for open space, community facilities, education and
Area Transport Contributions, in accordance with the following
policies, standards and proposals: policies 3/8, 8/3 and 10/1 of
the Cambridge Local Plan 2006; policies P6/1, P8/3, P9/8 and
P9/9 of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003; and as detailed in the Planning Obligation Strategy 2004,
Southern Corridor Area Transport Plan 2002 and Guidance for
Interpretation and Implementation of Open Space Standards
2006.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is
considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

Page 100



These papers may be inspected by contacting John Summers
(Ext.7103) in the Planning Department.

Page 101



oz - 12 3z
e —_— SF 2|4

AW — , ! 3
- 212

R —

TO CONSTRUCTION

T FLSIDm \\lumunr-! v

\
|

O
ol
i
|Dw1pﬂ°-
mm;mfa

™ol ananieaon

- A

Page 102



.J-Ern..___#.n...._.

I’
s
~=3

75 2 i FMEWEE.E;._ LLOZ ®
- .- - .-- -1- -




uerd 911s uoneorddy

Page 104



S
B N

N

i

S3SNOY INOJ JO UOTIBAI[D INOS

Page 105



SOSnoy
INOJ JO SUOTIBAJ[S IPIS/UONIS

Page 106



| ML O
o

SQSNOY INOJ JO UONBAJ[S YLION

Page 107



¥aore ahnges |

S1e[J JO UB[]

Page 108



South/East elevation of flats

e r

Page 109

ETUTH ELEVATION,



‘(01 02) uonejlusws|dw| pue uonelaidialu| Joj 8oueping

splepuels aoedg uadQ abpuqwe) pue 010z Abajens uonebijgo buluueld

Ay} Ul pajielap Se pue £00zZ ue|d 8injoniiS ybnologuslad pue aliysabplqued

93U} JO 8/6d Pue |/9d saldljod pue 900z ueld [ed0] abpuque) ay)

J0 L/0L pue gL/€ ‘2/€ ‘LIS ‘g/¢ saioljod yym aduepiodde ul bulojuow pue salijioe}
a)sem ‘uoneonpa ‘sailjioe) JuswdojaAsp Allunwwod ‘salljioe) suods/aoeds

uado 10} uoisinoid s)jelidoidde ayew jou saop jJuswdojaasp pasodold ay |

6,1 93ed 18 UO01103110))

Page 110



T14034 31 BOLSLN S09.5¥ £2210 (suoyd Bupyesds-uou) WO 000G £2Z10 suoydaja L
"~ roe 280 abpugque) |leyping sy jounoy A1 aBpugiuen
ﬁ‘v Buiuue|d 3 JuswIUOLALT jo Jojang
suked uowig

(5002) | uswslels Adijod
Bujuuelq ut uBisap uo soiApe pue (900Z) ueld [e90 eBpuquED By} J0 OL/E
PuUE p/g sainjjod '£00Z UEld einonag ybnologqieled pue anysabpuquen
auy jo g/l Aoljod o} Aiesjuod | jesodold ey} suosess @say) JO4 JX8jUCD
0] papuodses aAey o} Jo ‘ejdoad Joj Jeyeq eaed sy} Bupew o} Apagsod
ejngujuos pinom jey) ufisep pooB enysuca o) ‘Ajeo0| elepsww
8y Yyim pejesBejul pue 0} pejosuUC ||em Bq 0} PaiBpISucd jou s [esodoid
eyl uswdoAep jo uuoy pedwess B u ynses pinom ‘Guuansouew
pue Bupped 1eo Joj soeds pue ebesojs uilg pue opAoiq ay) ‘Buioiaies
pajeioosse sy} yuwm seyjebo} ‘pesodoud ejeos oy jo wewdojsas(
‘sesnoyBujiemp Ajwe; pesodoid By o} eoeds Ayuewe ewenbapeus
apiaod | Alepunoq eys waypou sy o) Ajwixoid yons uj ‘esse puepjoeq
llews AjgAe(es sy} ol S8SNOYy peydElap-lues [BluEISQNS jo sued
OM} JO uoonpodlu; 8y Jey) u) ejgeidesoeun si Juswdojesp pasodosd ay| g &

suosesl
Bumojjo} ey} Joy ‘uohedydde sy} jo ped uuoy yoiym sjuswnoop pue sBuwmelp
‘sueid ey pue gooz Aenuer Yz peaeocas uoneoydde noA UM 80UBpIoadE Ul

X8. 180 a1jysebpuquey sbpuque) peoy uojuly Aueyd g}

e

‘Papiacid aq ||im seoeds Bupued ojoAoq £ pue seoeds Bupued Jes pi ‘sjey
pue sesnoy ayj seates peoy uojuly Ausyg yo peol paacidde uy ‘sebeseB
ey jo eoejd U] e)s sy} JO pue WeYMOU 8y} JB SESNoYy umo} Aaiojs |aly)
‘payoEjep-jwes { Jo uoRoBaIe B jIM Jayjeboy ‘sje} g jo Bupsisuod Bujp)ng
Aeio}s sauyy e jo uopoasie ayy pue peoy uojuly Aueyy /gL J0 uopjjowaq

Joj uojssiuled ssnjes Agausy jiounog ey

SHe 180

abpuquen

USPIEQ) JUBACD GL-E)
SBJEIN0SSY ABY SBIOYDIN

IN4/SZ10/8058Y

NOISSINY3d ONINNV1d JO TvSn43y
0661 LOY DNINNY I AYLNNOD ONY NMOL

roe zgo ‘ebpuque) ‘|leypiing ey
FOATSTWYS IONNOD ALID IOANEAYD

ey
"N 4

SSL 02144

Page 111



4Y3TH3A0 SILON 338

%mc_ccm_a 2 JuswuolAUT _Esoe_oyw. rog 280 ‘eBpuquen 'lleypng

” W .ﬁ, 800Z I4dy 0 :pejeq

‘8ly uogeoydde Bujuue|d sy} uj jdey euers! (s)ueyd pasnyss ey Jo Adod v

81-1/6SEZ

:sbumelp Buwmojo} ay) o) Se)B|el 834j0U LOISIDAap SIy |

'900¢ spiepuejg sdedg uad jo uonejualwe|dw| pue uogejeldieju)
10} 8oUBDIND PpUB ZOOZ Ueld Modsuel| Baly JOPLWIGD WeYNog
‘¥00Z ABsjens uopebiqo Bujuueld ey uj pejelep se pue ‘gooz ueid
ainongg ybnosoqielad pue esusebpuquie) ey Jo 6/6d PUe 8/6d '€/8d
'H/9d sepljod ‘900z ueld [e207 eBpuquie) ey Jo 1oL pue g/g 'g/c seoljod
‘sjesedoud pue spiepuels ‘samijod Buwmojoy ey YIM eouUBpiooDE Ul
‘suognquiuo) Hodsuel| Eely pue uoneonpa ‘seijioe) Ajunwwo? 'soeds
uedo Joj uojsircid ejendoidde exew jou seop Juswdajerap pesodoud ey

Page 112



=N 000./St £2Z10 suoydeja,
roE za0 ebpuque)d BYpING 8y | pouno) Ao ebpuquied

S83jeg Juewdojeaeq Jo peay

sjawiung uyepr

Nd9 LS8 “T0LS148 'Aenp sidwe ]

‘aienbg ey z ‘ssnoy Aenp ejdwa] ‘Buipy ejbe3 gi/e ‘ejelojpadsuy| Bujuue|q eyl
-:ssauppe Buimaljo; ay) 0} ‘esuasejey ejeiopedsu) Buiuue|d ey Bunonb ‘8jLim pinouys
noA uoiswep |eadde s jo Adoo & asnbal Jo ‘sjuswWoDd [euiBuo ok o) BuiAue
Ppe 0} ysim nok pinoyg ‘papieBaisip sq sjuswWWICD 8L JBY} SHSE pue eeIopaedsy|
84} 0} sejuMm Jopelqo el sjep Bunels [eedde ey jo syeem g LM SSEUN ‘lojoadsy|
8y} Aq pesepisuco eq (M sjusWLOD snoiald JuUBjjedde ey pue ejelojoadsu|
Buiuue|d eyl o} es eq [m (|enuepyuco Alsseidxe ale Asy} ssajun) uoissiuued
Buiuueid Joj uopeondde jeuibuo ey Buwojioy epew Apeasje saWwwoo Auy

‘@ajjiWwo) ealy jseq
Aq epew sem uoisioep siyl uaissiuued Buluued jo |esnjes eu) smojjo} |jeadde ey

‘sejped sy} Aq sjuswiaie}s USHUA
Jo abueyoxe ue jo siseq ey uo pepioap eq o) si [eedde ey| ‘uoneoiidde Bujuued
anoge ey} jo joadsel ul sjeioyedsyl Buiuueld auy) o} epew useq sey |eedde uy

BlYadBLBA OINID ‘awep sjuejjaddy

800Z ¥snbny g :ajeq pe)s [eaddy
4MN/Z10Z802Z/80/V/S0S0/O/ddY  :@duaiajey ejesojoedsu) Bujuueld
INA/SZL0/80 i9oueleyey Bujuue|d

‘Papiaoid aq
1im seoeds Bupped ejohoiq 2 pue seseds Bupped Jeo
Pl "siely pue sesnoy ay) paAles peoy UoUulH Ausyo
Ho peos parcudde uy -seBeieB ey jo eseyd uj eys
ey jo pua wWsaylou 3yj B sasnoy umoj Aaio)s sauyy
‘PayoORIep-jUIas {7 JO UoHIAR By Ljm Jayebo) ‘sjey
§ jo Bupsisuoa Bujping Aeso)s eauyy B jo uonodese
a8yl pue peoy uojulH Ausys /gL jo uonijowsq juswdojersq pasodoig

X82 180 ‘ebpuque) ‘peoy uojuiy Ausyy /gi 3V puen

WEPBN/AIS 1BB(]

8002 1snbny ,/

Bujuued pue
JUBWUOIIAUT

c yn'Aob efpugues@buuued pew-3

60LLS¥ EZZ10 Xed
8¥LISY £ZZ10 |81 Jeuig
SUBAT uyor Jeed Anbus jo ases u)

Page 113



sedlAleg Juswdoleaeq] jo peeH
siewwng uyop

Ajinjuyey) sino A

‘Jeumo 8y} Jo uonusye auj 0} Jybnoug si Jejie| BUj JeL) einsue
esea|d ‘passe.ppe s| Jeps| s Yoiym o} Apedord eyl 0 JUMO By} Jou BIB NOA J|

'se.njes) pue sjoej jueAsial ay) Jno jutod UBD NOA Ing 'asea ey}
SSNASIP O} 8|g. 8q J0U [|IM NOA “JiSIA BU} JO 8wl puB 8jep auj NoA jj8} uay |im Ay
‘wey) o) sjum nod usym Joyedsu| ey 8} pinoys noA ‘Apedod nok woyy [eadde auy
@es 0} Jopadsu| ay) juem noA pue Aquesu Apsdosd B UMO NOA Ji “1IBABMOH JISIA 8IS
ay) uj ped eye) o) ajdoad Jeyjo Joj pesu ou Ajjeuuiou si esey| “lopadsu] sy} yum ob
liw eanejuesaudsl syd1 euy pue weliedde ay) ‘ejgissod Jou J JBLE J| "BUOJE elis 8l
USIA [|m 8y ‘mela aljgnd Jo peod ey} woy eys ey} Jo yBnoue ees ued Jojedsu| ey) |

(>in-aoB ejeliopedsur-Buiuueid mmm) ;epsgem sejeiopedsu)
8y} uo suojeolgnd, ybnouy Jo ‘jeyes] B jsenbes o] uondeosy Buuueld
e Buu esea|d ‘Ajeayews)y “Aepud wdogp - WegQ's Jo Aepsiny |- Aepuoy wdoo'g
pue wegQ's usemjeq efpuque) ‘Ieypin® ‘Joold puz 'uoidesey Buuueld ey
18 jse esesjd 'euo exi| pinom nok ji os ‘jeyea) ey Jo saidod Upm ew pepiroid aaey
ejeJopadsu) Buiuue|d ey) ‘ssecoud sieedde ey u) eAey Aew seiued pejselsjul jeu)
JuaweAjoaul ejqissod ey suue) ejdwis u| sueidxe jeyee| siil ,slesddy Buuueld
ul ped Bue] o) eping v, pejea jeyee| B peonpoid eaey ejeicioedsy Buwueld ey

‘8|ge|ieA. S| JUBWA)E)S S j1DUN0Y)
ay) eunsue o} 8o Aw oyu Buioo edojeq zpL /S £2210 UC eoui() UoBASIUILPY
jonuo) juewdojereq eyl yum yonoj ut 186 o) noA efin ABuals | 'JeAemoH '800Z
Jequiaydes 91 Aq 'lleypinD ey} jo Jooj{ puz ‘uopdecey Bumueld je uoldedsul
10} ejqejeAR 8q |m sjuswnaop Buluedwoooe pue juswelels s jlouno) By} Jo
Adoo v “eBpuqued ‘lleyp|ing sy Jo Jooj4 puz ‘uondecey Buluueld je uolpedsul oy
s{ge|ieAe ele sjuawnoop Builuedwooor pue uuoy leadde sjuejiedde ay) jo Adoo v

‘le{od Bujuue|d ey uo ejqejieae si siajjew Aoeaud pue uonoejaid ejep
noge UoneuLIoul pa|lejep 8Jo ‘0s op o} uoissiuled Jjey} eaey noA einsue esee|d
Aued pay) e o) BuiBuojeq uoneuuojul Alddns nok g “Aem siy) Ui sieyj0 O] s|qe|ieAe
apelu eq o] siy} Joj Addey aie nok jeyy pue nok o) BuiBuojaq uoieuLIO [euosied
Buipnjou) ‘voljeusiojul epincid Ajue nok jey; einsue eseeld Jeqwnu euoyd o
sseJppe |lews 'ssaippe 'sweu Jnok apnpoul Aew sjuswwod o (jepod Buuueld
8y} jo eese sieaddy ey} uo) jewsjul 8y} UO sjUSWWOD Jnok Jo spejep ysygnd
Aew ejeiopedsu) By | ~5o0MN AGD [EPOGBUIIUET WA 888 — [BUod Buluue)g eyy jo
Bale sjgaddy el ybnouyy aoiues ey} puy ueo noA ‘[eedde SiY) UO JUSLIWIOD O BSN
uea noA Yalym eoinies sleedde euljuo Ue peonposjul eAey ejelopedsu) Buluueld ey

Jues sauapuodsealos Aue Jo se1doa £ 8s0joUS 0] pasU ||IM NoA “800Z
saquiaydag 91 Aq ejelopsdsu| eyy 0) papiemio) eq JSNL SJUSWWOD [BUOINPRY

Page 114



W1 RN EE Y JF Yini

Apusoas e 4o abe|und ay3 jo ped 5| yoiym pue| jo duls moueu e Aq paxu

ale a)is 3y} jo syed om] ay| “sabeseb dn-dd0| pasnsip 8T pue jodsp uea weasd

22| ue Aq paidnddo s Ydiym Jeas ay) 03 pue| pue SPURIS £ oOU BuljPMP 313

auaym peod ayj 03 abejucij ayl jo Bupsisuod sped om) U Ajjeljuasse S| 3 ‘peoy

abpuiajo) pue peoy uolsiUOD YIM suordUNf By) usamiaq peoy uojulq Ausyp
40 3pIS yHou 3y3 uo eaue |eJUBP|SaL Ajueujwopald e i sl 9ys [eadde ay| ¢

suoseay

‘eaJe Bujpunouns ayy jo adueleadde pue sapeleyd
ay3 uo juswdojaaap pasodaid BY] JO 1PaY3 ayj sI |eadde siy] uj anss) uew a3yl ‘g

anss| ujen

"UOJS|23Q |eLWL0] BY] Ul MOJ3q INO0 }35
suonIpuod 03 123fgns pajuedb ueissiuuad bujuueid pue ‘pamoje 5| |eadde ayl -z

uojsidag

"Ajpieidoldde yum jeap aq pjnom sianew asayj |nyssacons buieg

|eadde ay3 Jo JusAa 33 U JBY] PAYSIIES WE | pue jpunod syy o3 ajqejdasdoe

s1 Bupjepspun sy “seil|ioe) BAOGE BY) 10§ SUOIINGLRUOD |BIURUL JO UOISIACI

ay) sabpajd yoiym Bupielepun (eba| e papwgns sey juejisdde ay; jeadde

3y3 Bupjew uj “Jlenemoy -ue|d |edoT abpuquwen paidope Byl pue ueld aJnpnis

ybBnoJog.alad pue anysabpuquen pajdope ayy jo s8pjjod JuBAS[ES yum

S0UBPJOdDR Uf SUCIINGILOD HodSuURl) BAlY PUBR UOREINPR ‘SBYY|||DR) AYUNWWoD

‘aoeds uado Joj uoisiac.d ajeudeoidde exew jou saop jesodoid By jeyl ey ayy
03 pauiajal uopesjjdde Bujuueld ay3 4o [eSNAL 40 LOSEAL PUOIDS 5,)10UN0) By T

1anel [einpadoid

(*papiaoid aq |;m saoeds Bupped SapAdlq uanas pue seoeds Bupied Jeo Usalnog

'Sley pue sasnoy Iy saAlas pecy Uojull Auay) Yo pead pascsdde uy) ‘sebeseb

3y jo aceid u) ays Y3 Jo pud LIBYHOU U] I8 sasnoy AsJiols-aauy) payoeap-jwas

4ngy jo uojpala 3yl yym Jeyiaboy ‘eoejd 53| uj s1eY Jo asnoy A210)5 234y] € Jo Uojjdasa
3l pue peoy UojulH A1aYD QT JO uonijowap au s| pasodosd Juswdojpaep Byl -

"800¢ I4dy o€
P33Ep 300U A pastyal sem ‘g0z Adenuer v pajep “INd4/SZT0/80 ‘4o uonedydde ay| .
‘Ipuned Ay abpuquie) Jo uoispap ayl sulebe ejyausp 9 JW AQ apew s| jeadde ay)

‘ugissiuad bujuueld juesb 03 |esnyal e jsujebe
066T 1Y Bujuueld Aiqunod pue uMoL 3y Jo g/ uojPas Japun apew s jeadde ay]

Xg£ 19D ‘abpuque) ‘peoy uojuly Auayd £81
LT0ZBOZ/80/V/S0S0D/ddV :joy |eaddy

6007 Asenuer 6T JUBUILIDAOD |EI0] PUL SD{HUNWLID] SOy

mgEp uomEpaq  YIMS Jo AImeises s Aq pajujodde Jopedsu) ue

An‘ho HMIDH

6136 5uid @sauinbua:ewa IdiuW d1d10 SHO IS0Y PIRMOH Aq
ZUOIUL LTTO &
z&iw_w_. 101519

Sydway o

et i 7 8002 42qWadaQg g uc apew JisiA a)s
Fsnoy »naﬂ.ﬂa_wﬂ._.ﬂ_..h
buym a1be3 T1/v

@

Page 115



SH m Aigeidaaoe u) sy Juawdoj@aap ay) Jey] 2unsua 0] Auessadsu

ale jusuieay) Alepunoq pue sjeusiew ‘Guidesspue| yum Bujjesp asoy
‘sjuspisau Bupgsixe Jo sapjuawe ay) Pajosd 0] AURSSIITU BUR SMOPUIM jo Buxy
3l pue abelojs a3sem ‘Juawdojaaap payyw.sad uo suopejwl| ‘Juawdojpaap
943 4o uejPNISUD Buunp suonelado yym Buleap asoyl ‘|nyssedns s| (eadde
B3 1By} JUIAS BY] Ul papndul 835 03 YSIM PINOM 3 Ydjym ‘uopjipuoa Bjedsawn}

P-BpUBIS BU3 03 UoKIPPE U] SUOKIPUOD Jo saquinu B paIsebBns sey |1DUNoD 3y ‘01

suoppuo)

‘eaJe buipunouins ay jo edueseadde pue

J313eleyd ayj 03 wuey |qeidaddeun ISNED JOU pINOM juawdoj@aap pasodoad
31 Jey] apnjpuod ‘aljoauayl ‘T 'sBuipunoins s3 40 sopIspaPeIRYd A3 ALY
woJy uolelidsul UMBIP pue IXBIU0D S 0} papuodsaul sey 3 jey) sejeijSuoWwap
I aseym panwuad 3q jim JuswdoRaap jey) 489y 3| Saxew Yyaiym ueid (a0
abpuque) pajdope au3 4o /¢ Adjjod yym plodde pinom |esodoud sy3 Jey) puy

‘Buiyes ayy o3 Ajejeudoidde spuodsas sbujjjamp ayj jo ubjsap ayy

Jeyy Japisuod 1 sbuipunodins snopeds AjaAi3eRa ul S| Ing Juawdojaaap bupsne
40 1B31 3y Je 5| a)Is ay3 jey3 0.y ay3 o) piebas bujaey "sjuapisal Juadelpe ayy
4o Adeand ayj Pajoud Jayuny oy paze|b 2INISQO 3q pINOM S|[BM JIBIS 0) SMOPUIM
Buoey apis Auy "peoy uojsjUO) pue peoy abpuajoD uj sepuado.d j5aieau

auy Jo Buimopeysiaao |efjualod pue BupjoolaAc ploae o3 paubisap usaq aAey
Aay3 eaue ayy u) sbuyemp Bupsixa 3y uey) 18ybiy Apybys e|iym ‘uoiessps
buioej yInos ay) uo UO[IIBS ARJIOJS 3313 40O Je| B puB uoljeAs|@ yuou ayy

03 53y6j| JOOJ YUM WIOY JOOI |RDIBLUILWASE UB Bunesodioou) ubisep aAPUNsIp

B JO 3Q pjnom ays ayj jo lea. ay] 3e sbuljamp payoeiap-|was Jo sijed omy ayl

‘3URIs 328435 ay) Ul Ajgerdsdoe

ul 3l pinom s3eyy pasododd ay) ‘abejuoyy sjy3 uo sbuyBMpP payde1ap-1was ay)

40 Juswabuerie 3yby3 sy Jo asnedaq ‘Apusnbasuo) -abejuoly ayj uo sbu)aMp
48130 ay) jo Jey] 03 Jejius 3q pjnom 1ybiay ||esaao0 s31 pue au)| Buipyng
Bupspxe sy mojjo) pinom Buiping By) “1aA3MOH  "JB31 By} Je UoNIaS A2103S
39.113 JOOu 12|} B YUM PUE UDIIBARID Juoyy BY] 03 @dueieadde A3u03s Om] pue Joou
Paymid e yum paubissp aq pinom 33s ay3 Jo Juol) Y] Je 1By AB103S BRI Ay L

"8IS Iy 0 SSEDIR AUBPUOIBS B S UIBWSJ PNOM pecy uojuly

AlBYD £8T pue 18T UsIM}Iq Bue| Molieu BusH@ 3yl *Bulj@mp paldNIISuUED
Ajjuadas ayy 03 ssa23e BURSIXE DY) YUM /8T OU O SB553238 BUSIHE ayl
bujuiqiod Aq pawuoy 3q PINOM PROJ UJBW BY) 0] S59II8 JB|NDJYBA MaU v 81i5
343 jo Jeal ay3 je sabeseb pue jodap syj soejdau pjnom sasnoy paydeap-iwas
AJ0)s @auy) jo sued omy pue asnoy Bupsixe sy adejdau oy pasodoud si siey

S JO %20|q AR4035 @a4y] v ‘sued om] u] ag pjnom juswdoj@aap pasodoid 2y

"S3BYJ JUSpNIS se woljednado |eusplsas u) Bulpling As103s a3y}
[BlJUBISqns e S| peoy uojuiH AuBsyd £6T 38 Auadoud 3yl ybnoyj ‘sAR.01s omy 0
Ajlequassa sadAy buyjjamp Jo aunixiw e AQ pasualdeleyd Si eale Buipunouins By

‘831S 243 Jo Hed Jead ayj o3

Ajpaup ssaxoe sanlb yoiym peoy uojuiH AlBYD £8T pPUB THT "SOU UIaMIaq aue|
Mmolleu e osje sl asay| “juejiadde ay) jo diysiaumo ayy uiypm ale sapadoid
@sayL "alis |eadde ay) jo Isea AjRleIpaww) peoy uojulH Auayd E6T Jo abejipno
343 Jo Ued pue aJIs Ay] JO 43I PUE JUOYJ BY] UBBMIBG BSNOY PBIFNIISUOI

£102802/80/W/50500/ddv uois|paq |eaddy

Page 116



*21Is wo bupuawwol

suogebysaau) 03 toud Ajoyine Buuued jedo) a3yl Aq pascudde

39 |leys ABajesjs ay] "Apnis 3sap ayj Aq pausAodsip uo|JeULIOU|

jueAsjal 8y} uo paseq ABajesjs uopebiiseau; @3)s e asodosd

PuE 525N 31IS 3Y3 Jo AI0IS|Y By |IEIBP ||EYS APNIS 3S3P By L

‘leacadde Joj Aptoyine Buiuueld [e20| a3y 03 PeRIWgNS Bq 0
Apnjs %sap e apn|aul ||eys JUBLUSSBSSe PUE| PIIEUIWEIUOD B L (6]

:Aoyine bujuued

|e20) ay3 Aq Buijum uy pasoidde pue oy PRIIWQNS 8Q ||BYS SHJOM JO

S|qeawl e yum Jayyabo) ‘AGajens |eipawal paje|dosse pue JuaWSsSasse
pue| pajeulwejuod e ‘Juawdo|aAsp JO JUBWAIUBWWOD By} 63 Joud (g

"BWayds pasosdde ay] ym aduepiodde

ui pajuawajdwi aq |eys juaiudojasap ayl *Ajioyine Bujuueld [edo| ay3 Agq

Bunum u) pasoidde pue oy papjwgns uaaq sey spoiad LOINISUOD pue

uonjowsp ayj Bulnp as syl Wouj 1SNp auloqe Jo pealds By3 IS|WUIW
03 sainseaw jo awwelbosd e |jun aduawwod ||eys juaiwdoPazp o (

*SABPI|OH 3||qNd PUE jUegQ JO SARPUNS UO SBLIBAIRP

40 “WOJ) SUD(IDB||0D OU 3 ||BYS AIBY) PUR ABPINIES 0) Aepuop sinoy posT

pue sunoy QLo jo sinoy ay3 apisino ‘sabeis uo|PNJISUCD pue uop|jowap

3y} Bunnp 3315 8Y) ‘o) SALIBAISP 40 ‘WO UOHIB||O OU Bq [|BYS BI18Y]
‘AyjJoyine Buluueld [edo] By} 4o JUswWwaaI6e UBNLUM Joiid ayl yuwm ydaoxg (g

*sAepijoH 21qnd 40 jueg ‘sAepuns uo

ai1} ou Je pue ABpINIES LD SINOY QOET O3 UNOY O8O ‘Aepud 03 Aepuoyy

sinoy Q08T 03 sUnoy Q8O :sinoy Buimojio) 3y} usamIag uey] Jaulo

pajesado jued 10 Jn0 paLLed Bq j|EYS UOMHIOWDP 10 HJOM UORINIISUCD Ou
‘Ajuoyine Buiuued |edo| By} jo Juswaalbe USLM Jo14d ay3 yym jdaoxg (z

"UoIS|23p SIY] JO B1ep BY) Wwoy
SieaA 83JU) uey) J21e| Jou uibaq jjeys papiwiad Agaay juawdopasp ayr (1

:suoiipuod Buimojjo) ayy 03 Palqns ‘3 yum pajywgns sued
343 pue ‘800z Asenuel $Z paIep “IN4/SZ10/80 "Jau ‘ucpeddde ay) 40 suuBR)
343 yam sdueplodde uf s) uoissiwsad syt X8/ 19D ‘ebpuquien ‘peoy uojulH
AlBYD £87T SI @Ys By L “(pepiacid aq [lim sededs Bupued $3|2A21q uaaas pue
sadeds bupjled Jeo usapnod °'Sie|j pue Sasnoy ayj SaAIS peoy uoluH AssyD
#0 peoJ panocldde uy) sabeseb sy o adeid ul 3315 BY3 Jo puD WBYMOU ayy
1B SB5N0Y A31015-89.Y] PRYIEIDP-JLUBS JN0Y JO LOJDBIB ay) Yum Jayiaboj ‘acejd
51| Ul s3ey4 Jo Isnoy AS.10)S BaUY] B JO U010 By} pue peoy UojulH ALBYD

48T 0 uonjjowap sy Joj uoissiuuad bujuued Juelb pue ‘jeadde ay) mojje 1 7T

uoispaq jewdoyq

‘pamojje aq pjnoys |eadde ayj eyl apnjouod

13A0qe uanb suoseal By) Jo4 °UO|SPIAP AW 03 BwW pa) aAeY Jey) SUDJIBIap|SU0D

urew ay3 ybamino Jou op Aayy Inq pasiel sIsNRW JBYJ0 {|B 4O JUNCIIe

uaXe] JARY [ "BS|MIBYJ0 BIBDIPU] PINOM YDIYM SUOCIIRIBPISUOD [BLSIEW OU BIR
212y} pue ueid Juawdol@ARp BY3 YlImM pJodde pinom juswdo@aap pasodosd ay) 1T

Sug|snauodn

'Pue| @yj jo asn pasodoud By} 0] Jueas|al pue Alessadau ase Abojoaeydie
pue Asains pue| pajeulwelucd ‘a6eI0)s 3943 yum Bulesp asoy) ‘sBuipunouins

£70Z802/80/¥/50500/ddY UoIsPaQ jeaddy

Page 117



Aqasay juswdoanap ay jo SSJBUNS |_WIZIXA BY] JO UOIIINLSUOI BY] U|
Pasn 2q 03 sjelajew ayj jo sajdwes |un aoejd avey Ileys juswdojaaap oN

‘asodind Jayjo Aue Joj pasn aq jou ||eys pue paulejad

9q 1ayeasay] j|leys papiaocad seoeds Bujwiny pue Bupued ayl ‘Ajdoyine
Bujuueyd jeao] ay3 Aq Bupum i pasocudde u2aq aAey jeyj sjeualew
BuideLNs yym pays|uy pue s|eep pescidde syl yIm aduepione

Ul papniisuod uaaq asey ssdeds Gujuing pue ‘ABmaalp ‘saseds

Bupiled ‘ssasde tejndjyan pasedoud auyy 13un paidnaoe aq |jeys Gujjlemp oN

‘Yyans se paulejas Ajusueuuad aq |leys pue sajuadold

Bunogy6iau jo suapieb Jeal aly) jo BupooBA0 SjuaaRid jey) sse|b
24nasqo yum paze|b aq ||eys asnoy yoea JO S||EM 2PIS B4} Ul SMOPUIM
2y3 ‘alis 8y} Jo Jeal 3y} O] sBuy@mp Jnoy ayj jo uopednano o) lojg

Ajuoyine

Bujuueid [edo| ayj Aq Bugm uj paasbe 558|UN tayeaiay] paujeias

24 |Ieys saiyjioe) 8y *alejad sani|iey abelols ay3 yaiym o) Bujemp ay) jo
uopednaoo 03 Joud papiacid aq jjeys ‘sBbuimelp pasosdde ayj uo umoys se
‘Bu||2A231 10§ 215EM BUIpNpDU) ‘B3SEM JO BbRI0)S ©315-U0 J0J S8p1j12e) By L

‘BJIS WO PRAOLWSI udaq
Ay s|euajew ajsem jeym bujesp uonejuawniop Alessssu
343 ym 13y3960] Hodas BINsSopP 3Y3 u| PApNaU; aq [|BYS BRI
dn-ueap paiinbal ay) payseas sey ais ay) Moys 03 s|sAjeue
pue Bujdwes |ejpawa.-jsod Aue jo s||e3ag ‘ABojopoyjaw
pasaidde Bu1 yum 2dURPICIIE LY [Ny U| N0 PaLLIED UBaq
SABY $310M Y] Jey3 MOoYs 0} S21edyy e aduelnsse Ajenb pue
$HI0M uojjeipalwal pasodoid ay3 Jo 5|[eIBP ApNjou| ||BYs Woda
ainsop 8yl “Ajuoyine Bujuueld (30 ayy Aq Bunum ul paacidde
pue 0} papiwqns usaq sey podal a.nso|d e |un pabueydsip

2q Jou ||BYs uonRipuod siy} ‘syuom ay) jo uolgeidwod uodn (1a)

*Aueyine bujuueld |edo| ayl ym paasbe awaydas uone|pawal
ajeudoidde ue pue passasse Ajjnj aq [[BYS UO|JEUILIBILOD
|euoippe a3 uay} ‘payiuapl usaq Ajsnoiaaid Jou

SBY YoIym pai3lunodus S| UOFRUILIEIUOD SyJom ay]y Buunp 41 (A)

"@auep|nb sd10e.d 3saq pue ABojopoylaw pasodoid ayy yum
20ue)|dWOoD )eSUOWSP 0] BLUBYIS BDURINSSE Ayjenb e sapun
9IS U0 ||nj U] IN0 paILIED Bq ||_YS S3I0M UO)je|paLual paAoiddy (m)

‘S4218M pajjojuod Aue Bulpnpul JuswuouAua Bujpunouns pue

23S 3y Jo asn pua pasodo.d ay3 uaaib uofeujLIElUCD PaLIUSP]

olf ss3|wiey Japual 0] SB 3INJeU B YINS JO 3] ||BYS SHJOM

3yl "3Ys uo Bunuawwod uopelpawal Aue 0} Joud paJinbal

SE S)oMm [elpawal yons daoldde [jeys Ajuoyjne Bujuueld |edo)

3yl -Aydoyjne Bujuue|d |eao] By} o) pangns aq lleys Abajens

uope/pawal pasodold e pue s103dadas Aue 03 JusliSSasse

Asi ‘s|sAjBuUE BYJ JO S}NSaJ BYY yYM Y3160y ‘axs uo bundwes
pue siom aannebpssauy e Buljielap Jodad uoiebisaaul ays ' (un)

*ABojopoyisw sisAjeue pue Bujjdwes painsse Ayenb e yym

SJUBPJ0II. U} J0JDEIJU0D /JUBYNSUOD Pajipaldde pue payljenb

Alqejins e Aq Ino paLied aq |jleys ‘buydwes saempunolb pue
8oeuns ‘seb |ios ‘|jos Jueaajas Buipnjou; ‘uoijebiisaau] ajs 3yl ()

(6

(8

(£

(9

£10280Z/80/v/50S0D/ddY uoispaq |eaddy

O

Page 118



|suuostad
pue jueyd ‘s3|21yaa 10) sjuawabuelle ssadde s10IEIJUOD )]

:Ajuoyine Bujuued [eaoj
a3 Ag 6unum ur pascsdde pue 0} paniwgns aq |jeys ssenew buimojjoy
2yl Jo sjielap ‘pasuswiwod i payjwaad Agaley juawdolaAsp ayy aioseg

‘Auoyine Bujuueld |edo] ay3 Aq Bupyam

u| paaJbe ssajun Jayealay] pauleIad aq ||BYS S3N|i0e) BYL 'Ble[ad S|Ie)
90.J035 Y3 Ydiym 03 Buyjlemp a3 Jo uoprednado o3 Joud papiaoid aq

lleys ‘sbuime.p pancsdde 8y uo umoys se ‘abeiols 31942 10y SBIII|19.) BYL

‘sliejap

paacudde ay] y3im 33UBpIOIdE Ul IN0 PaLLIED 3q [|BYS juawdol@aaq
*Ajuoyine Bujuueid |eoo] 243 Aq Bupium uj pasibe S| uopeuea Aue

SSB|Un Jajjealay] pauielas pue paidnodo s| papiuuad Agasay juswdoPAsp
8y} aJ0j2q paie|dwod aq jjeys Juswieasy Alepunog ayl -Audoyine
Gujuueyd [e30| 3y3 Aq Bunm ug pasoidde pue o3 pajwqns usag

BABY paldala aq 0] juswieal] Atepunoq jo adA3 pue sjeuajew ‘Jybiay
‘ubsap ‘suopyisod ay3 jo sjie3ep |Iun aoe|d 23e3 |jeys juswdoEAsp oN

‘uoljeleA Aue 03 Juasuod

uanuMm s 5aal6 Aypoyine Bujuueld |edo) ayj ssejun ‘pascidde Ajjeuibuo
S Jequinu pue 8z|s ‘sa|dads Jo sI9Y10 yim 3jqed3desd Ajgeuoseas

5| S U0Os se paoejdas 3q ||eys BAII34ap 1o pebewep Ajsnopas ‘Ajyloyine
Bujuued jedel au3 Jo uojuido BY3 Ul ‘aWwo3aqg Jo BIP ‘pIACLWRI Aue Gunyued
J2Le siead § Jo poad e uyym ‘1ey) sueid 1o sead) Auy ajnpayds
paacudde 3y 3im SJURPIODIE Ul JNO PaLIEI B4 ||BYS BIURURJUIRW D]
*Ajuoyine Bujuueld |eo| ayj Aq Bujum u) paasbe awwesboid ayy yum
BouepJ0dIe Ul 1o Juawdoj@Aap ayj jo Hed Aue Jo uopednado ayjy o3 toud
1IN0 pajued aq ||eys SHOM 3yl aondesd poob jo 8pod pasiubodad Jayjo
40 piepuels yspug ajeirdoidde ayj Jo uoIIEPUBLLILLIOIBI JUBARIRS DY YIIM
BDUBPJOIDE U| pJEpUR)S B|qEUOSEdd B 0] pue ‘siejap paacidde syl yum
82UEBPI0dDE Ul N0 pBLLIED Bq ||eys Siom Buidedsspue) yos pue piey ||y

dwwesboid

uopejuawaldw) ue pue ajeudosdde aieym sanisuap/siaquinu pasodoud
pue sazs Jued ‘sajpads Bujjou ‘sjueld jo saNpayds {(JuaLiysiqelss sselb
pue juejd ym pajeidosse suoljesado Jayjo pue uoneayna buipnpur)
suoneoyidads uajium ‘sueid Buigueld apnjou) |jeys SyJom adeaspue|

HOS "jueA3(RJ BJBYM UO|JRI0ISAL 1oy sjesodoud pue saunjesy adedspue|
Ji03s1y paulelas {(spoddns ‘sejoyuew ‘saul buneaipu) saujedid

‘s3|qed suopesjunwwoed ‘jemod ‘ebeuesp ‘6-3) punolb ayy mojaq pue
anoge sa2|AauBs |euofouny bupsixa pue pasodoid {(6unyby ‘subis ‘syun
abe10ys Jaylo pue asnjes “quawdinba Aejd ‘sunyjwiny 6'a) sainjaniis

pue spejape Joujw !sieelew bupeuns piey fseale uone|ndan

Pue ssadde uepysapad pue 32Iy3A JBY10 ‘sjnoAe| Bupped Jed ‘ainsopua
JO sueaw {5IN0JU0D 10 S|aAl| paysiuly pasadosd apnpdu jjeys sjielsp
@sayl -pesoidde se Jno paiued 3q ||eys oM asay) pue Buideaspue| Yyos
pue piey jo awayds e Ajuoyine Buuueld |eao| ayy Aq Buplum u) pascudde
pue 03 paniwqns uaaq sey 213y |jun 22e(d axe) ||eys juswdojEAsp ON
‘s|iejap paaoJdde ayy

Y}M 20UBpIOIDE U| N0 pallied 89 J|eys juswdo@aag -Ajuoyine Buiuueid
|e20| ayj Aq Buipim u pasoidde pue oy paniwgns usaq aaey papiwiad

(b1

(g1

(z1

(1t

(o1

£10ZB0Z/B0/Y/S0S0D/ddY UoisPaQ |eaddy

Page 119



"OLD3dSNI

250Y; paomoys;

*2{4jeuy J0JOW JOJ PasN J0uU S| 3| JBY) BINSUD 0] BYS
3U) 0] 553208 WIBISAM BU] JO BDUBUB BY] JB PIINPOIIUI BG ||BYS PiBjjoq
e panosdde Agasay juswdojaAsp 3yl JO JUBWSIUBWILWOD BY] 0] J0Ld

's|ie33p pascidde 3y3 yim 22UBPI0IIE Ul JnO pauled ag j|eys Juawdopaap
YL ‘Sdueljud BYS BY] 0} 3502 SABP UOPIR||02 UO SUIq B|BAYM

4o abeuojs ay) 10} uonedo| syesdosdde ue o) Ajuoyine Bujuued |[e20] ay3
Aq Buplam ui panoidde pue 03 paywigns aq [[BYS S[1eIBp ([N} juawdojpasp
JO JuBwadUBLIWOD 3y) 03 Joud ‘sue|d paacidde ay] BujpuesylmioN

‘uoissiwiad syl Aq pasioyine

Ajsseidxa asoyy uey) 19y1o pajdada aq ||eys sabeleb 1o suopippe

10 suOISUBIX® OU ‘(UOIIEDYIPOW JNOYUM JO YUM J3pI0 Jey3 Burpdeus-al
pue BupjoAas 18pJo Aue J0) §66T J3pI0 (auawdoferag paniuued |eJauag)
Bujuueld Anuno) pue umoy @yl jo suojsiacid ayy BupueisyIIMION

“uoissiuuad syl Aq pasjoyine

Ajssaidxa 3soyj uey) 1330 PRIINIISUOI 3] ||BYS SMOPUIM JBLLLIOD

10 5MOpUIM OU ‘(UOIEIYIPOW JNOYIM 1O YIM JBPIQ Jey) Buipseus-as

pue Bupjoaas 1apio Aue 1o) 5661 48pJ0 (Juswdoaag paljiuag [es3uan)
Bujuueld Aqunod pue umol 9yl Jo suoisiaosd ayy Bujpuesyymion

‘Sjleiap paaoidde
Y3 iIm BDUBPIOIDE U UBNEBPUN Bq ||eys Juswdojaaap By Jayealay

SapPIYDA [Puuosiad S10)0813U00

pue saPIyaA s1030e43u00 Jo Bupyied ay) 10) suawabuedie ay) (A1)

93is 8y3 03 Juadefpe pue punocie Juawdinba pue jued ‘sjeusiew
Buip|ing |je Bupoels pue Bulols ‘Buiacw Jo sueaw 3L (un)
punocdwod/eale abeio}s 331 S10]DBIJUCD [(D)]

(81

(21

(o1

(st

£10Z80Z/80/v/50500/ddY UoIS|39Q |eaddy

Page 120



Agenda ltem 11b

EAST AREA COMMITTEE 15™ December 2011

Application 11/0535/FUL Agenda

Number Iltem

Date Received 13th May 2011 Officer Mr John
Evans

Target Date 8th July 2011

Ward Petersfield

Site 14 Emery Street Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB1
2AX

Proposal Single storey side extension, dormer to loft and

dormer to side (following demoltion of existing
single storey perspex leanto).

Applicant Dr Angeles Carreres And Prof Jaideep Prabhu
14 Emery Street Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB1
2AX

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1 Emery Street is a mid-terrace, two-storey dwelling situated on
the eastern side of Emery Street, about 100 metres north of the
junction with Mill Road.  The house is finished in Cambridge
stock brickwork under a slate roof.

1.2 The site falls within the Central Conservation Area and the
Controlled Parking Zone.

2.0 THE PROPOSAL

2.1 The application follows the earlier grant of planning permission
for a rear dormer and single storey rear extension
(09/1031/FUL, 10/1274/FUL) and again seeks permission for a
single storey rear extension and a loft conversion involving the
insertion of a rear box dormer within the roof slope.

2.2 The design of the proposed dormer window now includes a third

storey  flat roof extension projecting 1.7m beyond the roof
plane.

Page 121



2.3

2.4

3.0

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

The dormer will be lead lined with timber sash windows. The
ground floor extension will be constructed in matching
brickwork.

The application is accompanied by the following supporting
information:

1. Design and Access Statement

SITE HISTORY
Reference Description Outcome
09/1031 Single storey rear extension and  Approved

roof extension.

10/1274/FUL Single storey side extension and  Approved
rear dormer roof extension.

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: Yes
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: Yes
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development (2005): Paragraphs 7 and 8 state that national
policies and regional and local development plans (regional
spatial strategies and local development frameworks) provide
the framework for planning for sustainable development and for
development to be managed effectively. This plan-led system,
and the certainty and predictability it aims to provide, is central
to planning and plays the key role in integrating sustainable
development objectives. Where the development plan contains
relevant policies, applications for planning permission should be
determined in line with the plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic
Environment (2010): sets out the government's planning

Page 122



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

policies on the conservation of the historic environment. Those
parts of the historic environment that have significance because
of their historic, archaeological, architectural or artistic interest
are called heritage assets. The statement covers heritage
assets that are designated including Site, Scheduled
Monuments, Listed Buildings, Registered Parks and Gardens
and Conservation Areas and those that are not designated but
which are of heritage interest and are thus a material planning
consideration. The policy guidance includes an overarching
policy relating to heritage assets and climate change and also
sets out plan-making policies and development management
policies. The plan-making policies relate to maintaining an
evidence base for plan making, setting out a positive, proactive
strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic
environment, Article 4 directions to restrict permitted
development and monitoring. The development management
policies address information requirements for applications for
consent affecting heritage assets, policy principles guiding
determination of applications, including that previously
unidentified heritage assets should be identified at the pre-
application stage, the presumption in favour of the conservation
of designated heritage assets, affect on the setting of a heritage
asset, enabling development and recording of information.

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions: Advises that conditions should be necessary,
relevant to planning, relevant to the development permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

Circular 05/2005 - Planning Obligations: Advises that
planning obligations must be relevant to planning, necessary,
directly related to the proposed development, fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind and reasonable in all other
respect.

East of England Plan 2008

ENV6: The Historic Environment
ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment

Cambridge Local Plan 2006
3/4 Responding to context
3/14 Extending buildings

Page 123



5.8

4/11 Conservation Areas
Material Considerations
Central Government Guidance

Draft National Planning Policy Framework (July 2011)

The National Planning Policy Framework (Draft NPPF) sets out
the Government’s economic, environmental and social planning
policies for England. These policies articulate the
Government’s vision of sustainable development, which should
be interpreted and applied locally to meet local aspirations.

The Draft NPPF includes a set of core land use planning
principles that should wunderpin both plan making and
development management (précised form):

1. planning should be genuinely plan-led

2. planning should proactively drive and support the
development and the default answer to development

proposals should be . yes. , except where this would

compromise the key sustainable development principles set
out in the Draft NPPF

3. planning decisions should take into account local
circumstances and market signals such as land prices,
commercial rents and housing affordability and set out a
clear strategy for allocating sufficient land which is suitable
for development in their area, taking account of the needs of
the residential and business community

4. planning decisions for future use of land should take account
of its environmental quality or potential quality regardless of
its previous or existing use

5. planning decisions should seek to protect and enhance
environmental and heritage assets and allocations of land for
development should prefer land of lesser environmental
value

6. mixed use developments that create more vibrant places,
and encourage multiple benefits from the use of land should
be promoted

Page 124



7. the reuse of existing resources, such as through the
conversion of existing buildings, and the use of renewable
resources should be encouraged

8. planning decisions should actively manage patterns of
growth to make the fullest use of public transport, walking
and cycling, and focus significant development in locations
which are or can be made sustainable

9. planning decisions should take account of and support local
strategies to improve health and wellbeing for all

10. planning decisions should always seek to secure a good
standard of amenity for existing and future occupants of land
and buildings.

The Draft NPPF states that the primary objective of
development management is to foster the delivery of
sustainable development, not to hinder or prevent development.

Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (27 May 2010)

The coalition government is committed to rapidly abolish
Regional Strategies and return decision making powers on
housing and planning to local councils. Decisions on housing
supply (including the provision of travellers sites) will rest with
Local Planning Authorities without the framework of regional
numbers and plans.

Written Ministerial Statement: Planning for Growth (23
March 2011)

Includes the following statement:

When deciding whether to grant planning permission, local
planning authorities should support enterprise and facilitate
housing, economic and other forms of sustainable development.
Where relevant and consistent with their statutory obligations
they should therefore:

(i) consider fully the importance of national planning policies
aimed at fostering economic growth and employment, given the
need to ensure a return to robust growth after the recent
recession;

Page 125



6.0

6.1

6.2

(i) take into account the need to maintain a flexible and
responsive supply of land for key sectors, including housing;

(i) consider the range of likely economic, environmental and
social benefits of proposals; including long term or indirect
benefits such as increased consumer choice, more viable
communities and more robust local economies (which may,
where relevant, include matters such as job creation and
business productivity);

(iv) be sensitive to the fact that local economies are subject to
change and so take a positive approach to development where
new economic data suggest that prior assessments of needs
are no longer up-to-date;

(v) ensure that they do not impose unnecessary burdens on
development.

In determining planning applications, local planning authorities
are obliged to have regard to all relevant considerations. They
should ensure that they give appropriate weight to the need to
support economic recovery, that applications that secure
sustainable growth are treated favourably (consistent with policy
in PPS4), and that they can give clear reasons for their
decisions.

City Wide Guidance

Roof Extensions Design Guide (2003) — Guidance on roof
extensions.

CONSULTATIONS
Cambridgeshire County Council (Transport)

The Highway Authority has no comment to make on this
application.

Historic Environment Manager
The dormer proposed is cumbersome, covering the majority of
the width of the roof and meeting the ridge height of the main

building. It comes down to the eaves, being only minimally set
back from them. Our preferred style is one or two pitched slate

Page 126



6.3

6.4

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

roof dormers, with slate or lead cheeks. The windows should be
timber, either sliding sash or side hung casements. The
dormer(s) should be set back from the eaves so that it reads as
a subservient addition to the main building. One or two dormers
of this style may be acceptable on this building, in this location.
There are very few dormers on other roofs in this area and any
that are permitted should set a good precedent for any future
development that may come forward.

The additional extension over the flat roof is not supported. This
proposal is not in keeping with the character of the area and
would be detrimental to the appearance of the conservation
area. The proposals for the roof of this property are not
supported as they are deemed to be detrimental to the
character and appearance of the conservation area.

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

Councillor Brown has commented on this application. The
representation is set out below:

| am of the view that this application, "Single storey side
extension, dormer to loft and dormer to side) is likely to be raise
issues relating to section 3/14 (Extending Buildings) of the Local
Plan. Specifically, | believe there are questions relating to
overlooking, overshadowing or visually dominating neighbouring
properties that are likely to be somewhat subjective, having had
the chance to examine the site.

| am therefore requesting that it be heard at committee,
whether it is recommended for refusal or not.

ASSESSMENT

From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

1. Context of site, design and external spaces

Page 127



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

2. Residential amenity
3. Third party representations

Context of site, design and external spaces

The key design issue is the design and appearance of the
extension and dormer window in relation to the terraced
property and wider Conservation Area.

Extensions to existing buildings will be permitted if they reflect
or successfully contrast with their form, use of materials and
architectural detailing as set out within Local Plan policy 3/14.
Roof extensions of this scale and proportion, which project
beyond the rear roof plane forming a 3 storey extension, are
rarely acceptable in a Conservation Area. The rear roofscape is
partially visible from both the historic park and garden of Mill
Road Cemetery, and from Emery Road. This proposal is
identical to the originally submitted application in 2009 for a rear
dormer window and 3 storey extension.

The previous case officer negotiated removal of the third storey
projection from the 2009 application, which was considered out
of scale with the character of the property and to detract from
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. |
agree with this assessment. The size and scale of the rear
dormer and third storey extension would dominate the roof of
this modest terraced property, and set an undesirable
precedent for similar roof extensions in the vicinity.

The proposed ground floor extension is identical to that
approved in 2010 and in my view is acceptable.

Residential Amenity

Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers

The proposed box dormer window will have some visual impact
on the adjoining neighbours numbers 13 and 15 Emery Street.
| do not however consider the harm to be so significant as to
justify refusal.

The ground floor rear infill extension will have some visual

impact upon number 15 Emery Street. However the eaves level
is relatively low at 2.3m and will not in my view create a harmful

Page 128



8.8

8.9

9.0

9.1

10.0

visual impact. The 8m depth is identical to that approved in
2010.

In my opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential
amenity of its neighbours and the constraints of the site and |
consider that it is compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4 and 3/7.

Third Party Representations

The issues raised in the representation received have been
considered in above report.

CONCLUSION

The proposed rear dormer window with its third storey rear
projection, will, in my view, detract from the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area. REFUSAL is
recommended.

RECOMMENDATION
REFUSE for the following reason:

The proposed rear box dormer window, by reason of its size,
scale, and third storey rear projection beyond the roof plane,
would result in a disproportionate roof extension in relation to
the terraced property, detracting from the character and
appearance of the dwelling and the wider Conservation Area.
As such, the development has not used the key characteristics
of the locality to inform its design and is therefore contrary to
Cambridge Local Plan policies 3/4, 3/14 and 4/11.

Page 129



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.
4

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is
considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

These papers may be inspected on the City Council website at:
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess

or by visiting the Customer Service Centre at Mandela House.

Page 130



11/0535/FUL
14 Emery Street Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB1 2AX

Page 131




" e e~ L s 1 s
i i v = e o Iz
T e S
0 L b
e 1w 2 pevv
: # 0 Svwm
T o P

i-n! .1,.. lh!;,r!!lﬂl!i zghﬁﬁ.mmtmz zOE-_..E.-m._.-ﬂtu
| T ] T L

S,
= | ™ = A | 1 = =i
: |1 T =1 - e : e e s =
] i - - = =1 T i — — e — . -
W BT TR i G | e =t ol b | . — ] = T
T I S H Y ‘ %JI e _ | _ = . R i AR
- 7 el | | T —— { - PR
o — o | . —_— i - etl =
1 A AT — i — g Rsmrutie xran e e p— — — — ey I ¥y
e !.-ld.atl o sl A o s G M b s A e | e e et |
e o e e - i 1 ——
— a \ T T . —
o e Y0 » .iu:t....!i.l
TN U A e e
3 Wit i iV

L AVIN H3WH0O NEN13Y
3 A3Y 20d £80¥ ‘OO - 004} B NOILO3S ANV SNOLLYAZ13 A3S0d0Hd
STUIHLEYD STTIONV - LIFHLE AHINT vi



Agenda ltem 11c

EAST AREA COMMITTEE 15" December 2011

Application 11/1097/EXP Agenda

Number Item

Date Received 19th September 2011 Officer Miss
Catherine
Linford

Target Date 14th November 2011

Ward Abbey

Site 71 - 73 New Street Cambridge CB1 2QT

Proposal Extension of time for the implementation of

planning permission reference 09/0063/FUL for
change of use of existing vehicle workshop and
storage site to residential to create six flats with five
car parking spaces, refuse and cycle storage.

Applicant
20 Water Lane Histon Cambridge CB24 9LR

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1 The application site forms an irregular quadrilateral on the
north-eastern corner of the junction of New Street and
Occupation Road. It is currently used as a vehicle repair
workshop. The vehicle access is off New Street, and the single-
storey building occupies the western third of the site, with the
remainder of the site area being open and in use for parking
and storing vehicles.

1.2 The area is one of mixed use, in which residential and business
uses are intermingled. A terrace of two-storey houses lies to the
east. To the north is a workshop building, which does not
appear to be in use at present. Across Occupation Road to the
west is a three-storey building providing student residential
accommodation. To the south, on the other side of New Street,
and partly screened by trees, is the Howard Mallett Centre, part
of which is in use as offices. The car park of the Centre lies
between the building and New Street.

Page 133



1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

At the south-west corner of the site is a large advertising
hoarding, 4.5m high and 13m long. The hoarding is aligned
diagonally, at about 30° to New Street, further from the
carriageway at the western end. This advertising hoarding, and
the narrow triangle of land on which it stands, do not form part
of the application site, and are not in the same ownership.

The site lies within the boundary of site 7.01 of the Proposals
Schedule in the Cambridge Local Plan (2006), which is
allocated for employment B1 use, housing and student
accommodation. The site lies outside, but immediately adjacent
to, the City of Cambridge Conservation Area No.1 (Central), the
boundary of which runs along the median line of New Street.
The site also lies within the Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ).

THE PROPOSAL

This application seeks the replacement of an existing
permission, reference 09/0063/FUL, with a new permission to
allow longer for implementation. The permission was
considered by East Area Committee on 12 March 2009 and was
approved following the completion of a section 106 Agreement
on 20 March 2009. The consent expires on 20 March 2012.
The details of the application are unchanged and the
development is described as change of use of existing vehicle
workshop and storage site to residential to create six flats with
five car parking spaces, refuse and cycle storage.

The development was described in the previous report as
follows: -

The application proposes a building 21m by 17m. It would have
four storeys, the plan area of each being smaller than that
below. The main pedestrian entrance to the development
would face New Street, slightly towards the eastern end of the
site. The entrance lobby would be served by narrow windows to
each side of the door, and a further window to the rear court.
Two blank window spaces to the New Street elevation could be
opened up in the event that the hoarding was removed. The
main stairs and lift would lead off the entrance lobby. To the
west on the ground floor would be a single one-bedroom flat
(Unit 2) measuring 8.5m x 8m, with a ‘front’ door and
kitchen/living room and bedroom windows facing Occupation
Road, and a small kitchen window looking on to the rear of the

Page 134



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

advertising hoarding. Beyond this unit along the Occupation
Road frontage would be the gated access drive, and, within the
same void beneath the first floor, 13 cycle parking spaces
served by a pedestrian gate. To the east of the entrance lobby
would be the two bedrooms of Unit 1, whose living space would
be reached by a private staircase to the first floor. The
remainder of the site, to the rear of the building, would be
occupied by car parking for four cars, including one space
suitable for disabled users, and a waste and recycling store.

Part of the western section of the first floor would be occupied
by a single-bedroom flat (Unit 3), with bedroom and living room
windows overlooking Occupation Road. There would also be a
two-bedroom flat with the windows of one bedroom on the
Occupation Road side, and the living/kitchen and second
bedroom served by windows leading onto a 5m x 2.5m deck
above the car parking court. The south-eastern part of the first
floor would be occupied by the living rooms of Unit 1. They
would be reached by a private staircase, and would look out
onto a small deck between two bays of the building. The
living/kitchen would also overlook New Street and the Howard
Mallett Centre.

The second floor would have a more limited 14m x 13m floor
plan, and would form two two-bedroom flats. The living room of
the northern flat (Unit 5) would look out on to a small deck area
above Unit 4; the bedrooms would be served by windows
overlooking Occupation Road. The southern flat (Unit 6) would
also have bedroom windows overlooking Occupation Road, and
internal stairs leading to a 6m x 6.5m kitchen/living area which
would take up the whole of the third floor of the building, with a
balcony overlooking Occupation Road.

A 2m x 14m landscaped strip would separate the building from
Occupation Road, and a similar 2m x 6.5m strip would separate
the main entrance from the path to the bin store, on the New
Street frontage.

From Occupation Road the building would appear as a main
block with a hipped roof, 7.7m above ground level at the eaves,
and 9.3m at the ridge. To the south side, the elevation,
projected slightly forward, would extend up to the fourth storey,
surmounted by its own hipped roof (eaves 10.5m above ground,
ridge 12m). From New Street, the building would step up from

Page 135



3.0

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

east to west, with the 6.5m high ridge of Unit 1 on the east side
of the main entrance, and the 9.2m high central section, and
12m high fourth storey further west, appearing above the
advertising hoarding.

SITE HISTORY

Reference Description Outcome

91/0491 Outline application for business Withdrawn

use, 34 dwellings and car parking

91/0790 38 Flats Withdrawn

07/0626 Five flats Refused,
appeal
dismissed

09/0063/FUL Change of use of existing vehicle A/C
workshop and storage site to
residential to create six flats with
five car parking spaces, refuse
and cycle storage

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: No
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: No
Public Meeting/Exhibition No
DC Forum No
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development (2005): Paragraphs 7 and 8 state that national
policies and regional and local development plans (regional
spatial strategies and local development frameworks) provide
the framework for planning for sustainable development and for
development to be managed effectively. This plan-led system,
and the certainty and predictability it aims to provide, is central
to planning and plays the key role in integrating sustainable
development objectives. Where the development plan contains
relevant policies, applications for planning permission should be
determined in line with the plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Page 136



5.3

5.4

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (2006): Sets out to
deliver housing which is: of high quality and is well designed;
that provides a mix of housing, both market and affordable,
particularly in terms of tenure and price; supports a wide variety
of households in all areas; sufficient in quantity taking into
account need and demand and which improves choice;
sustainable in terms of location and which offers a good range
of community facilities with good access to jobs, services and
infrastructure; efficient and effective in the use of land, including
the re-use of previously developed land, where appropriate. The
statement promotes housing policies that are based on
Strategic Housing Market Assessments that should inform the
affordable housing % target, including the size and type of
affordable housing required, and the likely profile of household
types requiring market housing, including families with children,
single persons and couples. The guidance states that LPA’s
may wish to set out a range of densities across the plan area
rather than one broad density range. 30 dwellings per hectare is
set out as an indicative minimum. Paragraph 50 states that the
density of existing development should not dictate that of new
housing by stifling change or requiring replication of existing
style or form. Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate a
positive approach to renewable energy and sustainable
development.

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing has been reissued
with the following changes: the definition of previously
developed land now excludes private residential gardens to
prevent developers putting new houses on the brownfield sites
and the specified minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare
on new housing developments has been removed. The
changes are to reduce overcrowding, retain residential green
areas and put planning permission powers back into the hands
of local authorities. (June 2010)

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport (2001): This
guidance seeks three main objectives: to promote more
sustainable transport choices, to promote accessibility to jobs,
shopping, leisure facilities and services, by public transport,
walking and cycling, and to reduce the need to travel, especially
by car. Paragraph 28 advises that new development should
help to create places that connect with each other in a

Page 137



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

sustainable manner and provide the right conditions to
encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transpori.

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions: Advises that conditions should be necessary,
relevant to planning, relevant to the development permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respecis.

Circular 05/2005 - Planning Obligations: Advises that
planning obligations must be relevant to planning, necessary,
directly related to the proposed development, fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind and reasonable in all other
respect.

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 — places a
statutory requirement on the local authority that where planning
permission is dependent upon a planning obligation the
obligation must pass the following tests:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

East of England Plan 2008

SS1: Achieving Sustainable Development

E2: Provision of Land for Employment

T1: Regional Transport Strategy Objectives and Outcomes
T2: Changing Travel Behaviour

T4 Urban Transport

T9: Walking, Cycling and other Non-Motorised Transport
ENV6: The Historic Environment

ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment

WM6: Waste Management in Development

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003
Planning Obligation Related Policies

P6/1 Development-related Provision
P9/8 Infrastructure Provision

Page 138



5.9

5.10

P9/9 Cambridge Sub-Region Transport Strategy
Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3/1 Sustainable development

3/4 Responding to context

3/6 Ensuring co-ordinated development
3/7 Creating successful places

3/11 The design of external spaces
3/12 The design of new buildings

4/11 Conservation Areas

4/13 Pollution and amenity

5/1 Housing provision

7/3 Protection of industrial and storage space
8/2 Transport impact

8/4 Walking and Cycling accessibility
8/6 Cycle parking

8/10 Off-street car parking

Planning Obligation Related Policies

3/8 Open space and recreation provision through new
development

5/14 Provision of community facilities through new development
8/3 Mitigating measures

10/1 Infrastructure improvements

Supplementary Planning Documents

Cambridge City Council (May 2007) — Sustainable Design
and Construction: Sets out essential and recommended
design considerations of relevance to sustainable design and
construction. Applicants for major developments are required to
submit a sustainability checklist along with a corresponding
sustainability statement that should set out information indicated
in the checklist. Essential design considerations relate directly
to specific policies in the Cambridge Local Plan 2006.
Recommended considerations are ones that the council would
like to see in major developments. Essential design
considerations are urban design, transport, movement and
accessibility, sustainable drainage (urban extensions), energy,
recycling and waste facilities, biodiversity and pollution.
Recommended design considerations are climate change

Page 139



5.11

adaptation, water, materials and construction waste and historic
environment.

Material Considerations
Central Government Guidance

Draft National Planning Policy Framework (July 2011)

The National Planning Policy Framework (Draft NPPF) sets out
the Government’s economic, environmental and social planning
policies for England. These policies articulate the
Government’s vision of sustainable development, which should
be interpreted and applied locally to meet local aspirations.

The Draft NPPF includes a set of core land use planning
principles that should underpin both plan making and
development management (précised form):

1. planning should be genuinely plan-led

2. planning should proactively drive and support the
development and the default answer to development
proposals should be “yes”, except where this would
compromise the key sustainable development principles set
out in the Draft NPPF

3. planning decisions should take into account local
circumstances and market signals such as land prices,
commercial rents and housing affordability and set out a
clear strategy for allocating sufficient land which is suitable
for development in their area, taking account of the needs of
the residential and business community

4. planning decisions for future use of land should take account
of its environmental quality or potential quality regardless of
its previous or existing use

5. planning decisions should seek to protect and enhance
environmental and heritage assets and allocations of land for
development should prefer land of lesser environmental
value

6. mixed use developments that create more vibrant places,
and encourage multiple benefits from the use of land should
be promoted

Page 140



7. the reuse of existing resources, such as through the
conversion of existing buildings, and the use of renewable
resources should be encouraged

8. planning decisions should actively manage patterns of
growth to make the fullest use of public transport, walking
and cycling, and focus significant development in locations
which are or can be made sustainable

9. planning decisions should take account of and support local
strategies to improve health and wellbeing for all

10. planning decisions should always seek to secure a good
standard of amenity for existing and future occupants of land
and buildings.

The Draft NPPF states that the primary objective of
development management is to foster the delivery of
sustainable development, not to hinder or prevent development.

Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (27 May 2010)

The coalition government is committed to rapidly abolish
Regional Strategies and return decision making powers on
housing and planning to local councils. Decisions on housing
supply (including the provision of travellers sites) will rest with
Local Planning Authorities without the framework of regional
numbers and plans.

Written Ministerial Statement: Planning for Growth (23
March 2011)

Includes the following statement:

When deciding whether to grant planning permission, local
planning authorities should support enterprise and facilitate
housing, economic and other forms of sustainable development.
Where relevant and consistent with their statutory obligations
they should therefore:

(i) consider fully the importance of national planning policies
aimed at fostering economic growth and employment, given the
need to ensure a return to robust growth after the recent
recession;

Page 141



(i) take into account the need to maintain a flexible and
responsive supply of land for key sectors, including housing;

(iii) consider the range of likely economic, environmental and
social benefits of proposals; including long term or indirect
benefits such as increased consumer choice, more viable
communities and more robust local economies (which may,
where relevant, include matters such as job creation and
business productivity);

(iv) be sensitive to the fact that local economies are subject to
change and so take a positive approach to development where
new economic data suggest that prior assessments of needs
are no longer up-to-date;

(v) ensure that they do not impose unnecessary burdens on
development.

In determining planning applications, local planning authorities
are obliged to have regard to all relevant considerations. They
should ensure that they give appropriate weight to the need to
support economic recovery, that applications that secure
sustainable growth are treated favourably (consistent with policy
in PPS4), and that they can give clear reasons for their
decisions.

Cambridge City Council (2004) - Planning Obligation
Strategy: Sets out the Council’s requirements in respect of
issues such as public open space, transport, public art,
community facility provision, affordable housing, public realm
improvements and educational needs for new developments.

Cambridge City Council Open Space Standards Guidance
for Interpretation and Implementation (2010) Sets out how all
residential developments should make provision for public open
space, if not on site then by commuted payments. It
incorporates elements from the Planning Obligations Strategy
Supplementary Planning Document (2010) and the Open Space
and Recreation Strategy (2006).

Page 142



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0

8.1

CONSULTATIONS

Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering)

No objection.

Highways Agency

No objection.

Head of Environmental Services

No objection.

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations:

o Petersfield Area Community Trust
The representations can be summarised as follows:

o The existence of the hoardings impedes good design
The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.
ASSESSMENT
From the consultation responses and representations received

and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

1. Principle of development

2. Context of site, design and external spaces
3. Disabled access

4. Residential amenity

5. Refuse arrangements

Page 143



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

6. Highway safety

7. Car and cycle parking

8. Third party representations
9. Planning Obligation Strategy

Principle of Development

This application should be assessed against current
Development Plan policy, taking into account any changes in
policy or circumstance since the approval of planning reference
09/0063. The Development Plan has not changed but the
Planning Obligations Strategy 2010, the CIL Regulations 2010
and the draft NPPF and other government guidance have been
produced. | do not consider that this guidance affects the
principle of development, which remains acceptable.

Policy 7/3 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2006) states that loss
of industrial and storage floorspace will not be permitted except
in certain circumstances. However the application premises are
part of allocated site 7.01 in the Cambridge Local Plan (2006).
The site is allocated for mixed use comprising B1 employment,
housing and student accommodation. The application premises
only form a small part of the allocated site, and there is no
requirement that any particular mix of the allocation uses be
provided on any particular part of the overall site. In his decision
on 07/0626/FUL, the inspector made it clear that he considered
use of the site for residential development to be appropriate.

In my opinion, the principle of the development is acceptable
and in accordance with policies 5/1 and 7/3 of the Cambridge
Local Plan (2006) and the allocation of site 7.01 in the
proposals schedule at Appendix F of that plan.

Context of site, design and external spaces

The continued presence of the advertisement hoarding on this
corner is an impediment to the creation of a well-designed
building. However, the building approved under reference
09/0063 is in my view successful in meeting the requirement for
a design that not only responds as positively as possible to the
severe constraint created by the hoarding, but also offers the
possibility of an enhancement of the townscape if the later
removal of the hoarding can be secured.

Page 144



8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

The proposal creates an active street frontage on New Street
through the siting of the principal entrance on that street, but
also retains some vitality on the Occupation Road frontage by
the insertion of a separate ‘front’ door for Unit 2 and the creation
of a separate pedestrian and cycle gate. The possibility for
natural surveillance of the street is exploited to the maximum by
siting the windows of habitable rooms along the whole of the
frontage not obscured by the hoarding, and the possibility is
retained of the insertion of additional windows to living rooms,
bedrooms and the entrance lobby if the hoarding is removed.

The height, massing and roof forms of the building proposed
are in most respects similar to the earlier residential scheme
that was dismissed at Appeal. At the appeal on that application
(07/0626/FUL), the inspector indicated that these aspects of the
building were acceptable and dealt well with the change in scale
from the terrace of houses on the east of the site to the student
accommodation on the opposite side of Occupation Road. In
my view, the same view must be taken of the building proposed
here.

Although the arrangements for providing sunlight to rooms
currently obscured by the hoarding are unorthodox, | do not
consider that they would result in unacceptable living conditions
for future occupiers. Similarly, although the decks and terraces
to provide outdoor amenity spaces are very limited in scale, and
in some cases awkwardly configured, | accept the applicants’
contention that these spaces are carefully designed to allow
privacy, and that the provision of outdoor amenity space, even if
very limited, is desirable.

The context of the site has remained unchanged. In my opinion
the design is appropriate and compliant with East of England
Plan (2008) policy ENV7, and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4, 3/7, 3/11 and 3/12.

Disabled access

The application proposes flush thresholds to all entrances, a lift
providing access to the doors of all the flats proposed, and a
disabled parking space. The City Council’'s access officer
suggests that the car park layout does not conform to Part M of
the Building Regulations, and also recommends that the vehicle

Page 145



8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

entrance gates be automatic. These matters can in my view be
addressed by informatives.

The arrangements for disabled access are unchanged and in
my opinion the proposal is compliant with East of England Plan
(2008) policy ENV7, and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
3/7 and 3/12.

Residential Amenity

There are no residential premises to the south, and no amenity
issues arise with respect to the land uses in these directions.

There are currently no residential premises to the north. The
owner of the land immediately to the north has previously
indicated that the site might be redeveloped in the near future
and that all windows in the north elevation should be omitted.
The application drawings are unclear as to whether these
windows are blanked out, or actual windows. In my view, the
existence of windows in this elevation would not seriously
prejudice appropriate development on the land to the north, but
since all the rooms concerned have alternative sources of
daylight, | suggest that a condition to ensure that these windows
are at high level or have outward visibility otherwise limited
could avoid any possibility of hindering co-ordinated
development.

The proposed building would lie between 12m and 14m from
the student accommodation on the opposite side of Occupation
Road. As it would be significantly taller than the existing
building, this might result in some reduction of morning sunlight
to the existing building, but | do not consider that this is likely to
be significant. With respect to privacy, the separation across
Occupation Road, window-to-window, is relatively small.
However, such proximity is characteristic of residential streets in
the Petersfield area of the city, and | do not consider this to
represent an unacceptable loss of privacy for occupants of the
student accommodation opposite.

N° 77 New Street has a second-floor dormer window in the
hipped roof facing the application site. This window would only
be 6.5m from the kitchen window of the proposed Unit 4.
Although this distance is quite small, the dormer is on the floor
above the small kitchen window, and any views would be at an

Page 146



8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

upward angle, | do not consider that an unacceptable loss of
privacy would result. The dormer window at No.77 would be
9.5m from the edge of the second-floor deck of the proposed
Unit 5, and 13.5m from the hall window of that unit. Given that
the deck would be screened up to about 1.7m above floor level
by the roof of the kitchen of Unit 4, | do not consider the
potential for overlooking to be significant; the issue could be
resolved by a condition to ensure that the balustrade of this
deck is high enough to limit overlooking.

The application drawings are not clear with regard to the
eastern edge of the second-floor deck to Unit 6. The floor plans
appear to show glazing at this point, whereas the elevation
does not. Glazing at this point might give an opportunity for
overlooking the neighbouring window. However, a condition
would be sufficient to resolve this issue. | do not consider these
are any other issues of privacy, overshadowing or visual
domination in this direction.

The relationship between the new development and existing
residential development is unchanged and in my opinion,
subject to conditions, the proposal adequately respects the
residential amenity of its neighbours and | consider that in this
respect it is compliant with East of England Plan (2008) policy
ENV7, and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/4.

Refuse Arrangements

The application proposes space for two wheeliebins for each
unit, with space above for recycling boxes. Space is also
available for additional bins to accommodate the city’s move
away from boxes for recycling. | do not consider that the space
allocated for waste storage is ideally placed, but it is reasonably
convenient for users and collection teams, and will not impinge
on the street scene. This provision remains unchanged in
comparison with the extant application.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with East of England

Plan (2008) policy WM6 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policy 3/12.

Page 147



8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

Highway Safety

Although the Highway Authority has reservations about the
access drive and gates, | do not consider that these constitute a
reason for refusal. Occupation Road is a cul-de-sac, and it is
my view that vehicle movements associated with the
development would be conducted at low speed. | do not
consider there is a serious danger to cyclists from sudden
reversing. The highway authority does not recommend refusal
on these grounds.

| concur with the view of the highway authority that
manoeuvring in the parking court would be difficult. In my view
this would encourage low speeds. | do not consider that this
shortcoming of the application is sufficiently serious as to
warrant refusal.

Access arrangements remain unchanged and in my opinion the
proposal is compliant with East of England Plan (2008) policy
T1 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 8/2.

Car and Cycle Parking

The proposal provides four car parking spaces for six units. This
is within the maximum permitted under the City Council’s car
parking standards. | note the view of the highway authority that
car parking provision at a level less than one per unit could lead
to additional pressure on on-street car parking, but | also
consider it likely that future occupants, given the proximity of the
site to bus routes and the city centre, might choose not to keep
a car.

The City Council cycle parking standards in Appendix D of the
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) require 10 cycle parking spaces
for a development of four two-bedroom units and two one-
bedroom wunits. The application proposes thirteen secure
spaces under cover for residents and two further spaces
outside the front entrance for visitors.

The arrangements for car and cycle parking remain unchanged
and in my opinion the proposal is compliant with East of
England Plan (2008) policies T9 and T14, and Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policies 8/6 and 8/10.

Page 148



8.26

8.27

Third Party Representations

| have addressed the issue of constraining development on the
site to the north under the heading of residential amenity.
Although | share the view of the local Community Trust that the
hoarding represents an impediment to good design, the
Inspector’s decision on 07/0626/FUL does not provide any
support for the view that residential development on the site is
unacceptable unless the hoarding is removed. This situation
remains unchanged in the context of this application to allow for
an extended time period.

Planning Obligation Strategy
Planning Obligations

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 have
introduced the requirement for all local authorities to make an
assessment of any planning obligation in relation to three tests.
If the planning obligation does not pass the tests then it is
unlawful. The tests are that the planning obligation must be:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

In bringing forward my recommendations in relation to the
Planning Obligation for this development | have considered
these requirements. The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010)
provides a framework for expenditure of financial contributions
collected through planning obligations. The Affordable Housing
Supplementary Planning Document 2008 provides guidance in
terms of the provision of affordable housing and the Public Art
Supplementary Planning Document 2010 addresses
requirements in relation to public art (amend/delete as
applicable). The applicants have indicated their willingness to
enter into a S106 planning obligation in accordance with the
requirements of the Strategy and relevant Supplementary
Planning Documents. The proposed development triggers the
requirement for the following community infrastructure:

Page 149



8.28 The Planning Obligation strategy

Open Space

requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the provision or
improvement of public open space, either through provision on
site as part of the development or through a financial
contribution for use across the city. The proposed development
requires a contribution to be made towards open space,
comprising formal open space, informal open space and
children’s play areas. The total contribution sought has been
calculated as follows.

8.29 The application proposes the erection of four two-bedroom flats

and two one-bedroom flats. No residential units would be
removed, so the net total of additional residential units is six. A
house or flat is assumed to accommodate one person for each
bedroom, but one-bedroom flats are assumed to accommodate
1.5 people. Contributions towards children’s play space are not
required from one-bedroom units. The totals required for the
new buildings are calculated as follows:

Outdoor sports facilities
Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number |Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
1bed |15 238 357 2 714
2-bed |2 238 476 4 1904
3-bed |3 238 714
4-bed |4 238 952
Total | 2618
Indoor sports facilities
Type |Persons |£ per £per Number | Total £
of unit | perunit | person | unit of such
units
1bed |1.5 269 403.50 | 2 807
2-bed |2 269 538 4 2152
3-bed |3 269 807
4-bed |4 269 1076
Total | 2959

Page 150




Informal open space
Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number |Total£
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
1bed |1.5 242 363 2 726
2-bed |2 242 484 4 1936
3-bed |3 242 726
4-bed |4 242 968
Total | 2662
Provision for children and teenagers
Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number |Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
1bed |1.5 0 0 2 0
2-bed |2 316 632 4 2528
3-bed |3 316 948
4-bed |4 316 1264
Total | 2528

8.30 Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to

8.31

secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010) and the Cambridge City Council Open Space Standards
Guidance for Interpretation and Implementation (2010), | am
satisfied that the proposal accords with Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) policies P6/1 and P9/8,
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/8 and 10/1 and the
Planning Obligation Strategy 2010 and the Cambridge City
Council Open Space Standards Guidance for Interpretation and
Implementation (2010)

Community Development

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to community development
facilities, programmes and projects. This contribution is £1256
for each unit of one or two bedrooms and £1882 for each larger
unit. The total contribution sought has been calculated as
follows:

Page 151



8.32

8.33

8.34

Community facilities

Type of unit £per unit Number of such Total £

units
1 bed 1256 2 2512
2-bed 1256 4 5024
3-bed 1882
4-bed 1882

Total | 7536

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8, Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
5/14 and 10/1 and the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Waste

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the provision of
household waste and recycling receptacles on a per dwelling
basis. As the type of waste and recycling containers provided
by the City Council for houses are different from those for flats,
this contribution is £75 for each house and £150 for each flat.
The total contribution sought has been calculated as follows:

Waste and recycling containers
Type of unit | £per unit Number of such | Total £
units
House 75
Flat 150 6 900
Total | 900

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8, Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
3/7, 3/12 and 10/1 and the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Page 152



8.35

8.36

Education

Upon adoption of the Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) the
Council resolved that the Education section in the 2004
Planning Obligations Strategy continues to apply until it is
replaced by a revised section that will form part of the Planning
Obligations Strategy 2010. It forms an annex to the Planning
Obligations Strategy (2010) and is a formal part of that
document. Commuted payments are required towards
education facilities where four or more additional residential
units are created and where it has been established that there
is insufficient capacity to meet demands for educational
facilities.

In this case, six additional residential units are created and the
County Council have confirmed that there is insufficient capacity
to meet demand for pre-school education/primary
education/secondary education/lifelong learning (delete as
applicable). Contributions are not required for pre-school
education, primary education and secondary education for one-
bedroom units. Contributions are therefore required on the
following basis.

Pre-school education
Type | Persons £per | Number | Total £
of unit | per unit unit of such
units
1bed [1.5 0 2 2
2+- 810 4 3240
beds
Total | 3240
Life-long learning
Type | Persons £per | Number | Total £
of unit | per unit unit of such
units
1bed |1.5 160 2 320
2+- 160 4 640
beds
Total | 960

Page 153




8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
2010, | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8, Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies
5/14 and 10/1 and the Planning Obligation Strategy 2010.

Transport

Contributions towards catering for additional trips generated by
proposed development are sought where 50 or more (all mode)
trips on a daily basis are likely to be generated. On the basis
that each residential unit can be expected to generate 8.5 trips
per day by all modes, the total daily trip generation of the
proposed building would be 51. Since the existing use of the
building clearly generates more than one trip daily, the proposal
would not result in a net growth in trips large enough to require
contributions to ECATP.

Monitoring

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the costs of monitoring
the implementation of planning obligations. The costs are
calculated according to the heads of terms in the agreement.
The contribution sought will be calculated as £150 per financial
head of term, £300 per non-financial head of term.
Contributions are therefore required on that basis.

Planning Obligations Conclusion

It is my view that the planning obligation is necessary, directly
related to the development and fairly and reasonably in scale
and kind to the development and therefore the Planning
Obligation passes the tests set by the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010. | have adjusted the commuted sums
that are necessary to reflect the guidance contained in the
Planning Obligations Strategy 2010.

Page 154



9.0

9.1

10.0

CONCLUSION

In my view, by creating a satisfactory elevation on the New
Street frontage, incorporating a main entrance, and enabling the
possibility of a much greater enhancement of the street scene if
the hoarding is removed, this application overcomes the sole
reason given by the Inspector for the dismissal of the appeal on
07/0626/FUL. This application to allow a further period of time
for the commencement does not raise any additional issues and
therefore | conclude that it should be approved.

RECOMMENDATION

1. APPROVE subject to the satisfactory completion of
the s106 agreement by 15™ March 2012 and subject to the
following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

No development shall take place until samples of the materials
to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the external surfaces
is appropriate. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/12 and 3/14)

The eastern balustrade of the second-floor deck to Unit 5 shall
be at a level at least 1.7m above the floor level of the deck, and
shall be so maintained unless agreement to any variation is first
given in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the privacy of neighbouring occupiers.
(Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/4)

Page 155



The side panel on the east side of the second-floor deck to Unit
6 shall be constructed of either an opaque material or obscure
glazing, and shall be so maintained unless agreement to any
variation is first given in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the privacy of neighbouring occupiers.
(Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/4)

Notwithstanding the approved drawings, if windows are to be
inserted in the positions shown on the north wall of Units 4 and
6, their design, including sill height and glazing, shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning
authority, before occupation of those units. Windows shall only
be inserted in these positions subject to the approved details.

Reason: To avoid prejudicing co-ordinated development over
the wider area. (Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/6)

No development approved by this permission shall be
commenced prior to a contaminated land assessment and
associated remedial strategy, together with a timetable of
works, being submitted to the LPA for approval.

(a)The contaminated land assessment shall include a desk
study to be submitted to the LPA for approval. The desk study
shall detail the history of the site uses and propose a site
investigation strategy based on the relevant information
discovered by the desk study. The strategy shall be approved
by the LPA prior to investigations commencing on site.

(b)The site investigation, including relevant soil, soil gas,
surface and groundwater sampling, shall be carried out by a
suitable qualified and accredited consultant/contractor in
accordance with a quality assured sampling and analysis
methodology.

Page 156



(c)A site investigation report detailing all investigative works and
sampling on site, together with the results of the analysis, risk
assessment to any receptors and a proposed remediation
strategy shall be submitted to the LPA. The LPA shall approve
such remedial works as required prior to any remediation
commencing on site. The works shall be of such a nature as to
render harmless the identified contamination given the
proposed end use of the site and surrounding environment
including any controlled waters.

(d)Approved remediation works shall be carried out in full on
site under a quality assurance scheme to demonstrate
compliance with the proposed methodology and best practice
guidance.

(e)lf, during the works contamination is encountered which has
not previously been identified then the additional contamination
shall be fully assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme
agreed with the LPA.

(lUpon completion of the works, this condition shall not be
discharged until a closure report has been submitted to and
approved by the LPA. The closure report shall include details of
the proposed remediation works and quality assurance
certificates to show that the works have been carried out in full
in accordance with the approved methodology. Details of any
post-remedial sampling and analysis to show the site has
reached the required clean-up criteria shall be included in the
closure report together with the necessary documentation
detailing what waste materials have been removed from site.

Reason: To avoid pollution (Cambridge Local Plan 2006, policy
4/13)

In the event of the foundations for the proposed development
requiring piling, prior to the development taking place the
applicant shall provide the local authority with a report / method
statement for approval detailing the type of piling and mitigation
measures to be taken to protect local residents noise and or
vibration. Potential noise and vibration levels at the nearest
noise sensitive locations shall be predicted in accordance with
the provisions of BS 5228 Part 4: COP for noise and vibration
control applicable to piling operations.

Page 157



10.

11.

Reason: To avoid noise pollution (Cambridge Local Plan 2006,
policy 4/13)

Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority in writing no construction work or demolition shall be
carried out or plant operated other than between the following
hours: 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 hours
to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or
Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13)

Except with the prior agreement of the local planning authority
in writing, there should be no collection or deliveries to the site
during the demolition and construction stages outside the hours
of 0700 hrs and 1900 hrs on Monday - Saturday and there
should be no collections or deliveries on Sundays or Bank and
public holidays.

Reason: Due to the proximity of residential properties to this
premises and that extensive refurbishment will be required, the
above conditions are recommended to protect the amenity of
these residential properties throughout the redevelopment in
accordance with policies 4/13 and 6/10 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006)

No development shall commence until a programme of
measures to minimise the spread of airborne dust and mud
from the site during the demolition / construction period has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved scheme.

To avoid harm to residential amenity. (Cambridge Local Plan
2006 policy 3/4)

No units shall be occupied until full details of the proposed
landscaping, including a planting plan and a 5-year
management plan, have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The approved details
shall be implemented before occupation takes place, and shall
be maintained in accordance with the approved plan.

Page 158



12.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory external spaces (Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 policy 3/11)

No development shall take place until details at 1:50 or larger of
the pedestrian/cycle gate have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority. The gate shall be
installed only in accordance with the approved details, and shall
be so maintained unless agreement to any variation is first
given in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that access for cycles is adequate.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 8/6)

INFORMATIVE: The applicant / agent should make the
following contacts:

Building Control at The Guildhall, 01223 457200 with regard to
noise insulation

Jen Robertson, Waste Strategy Officer, Mandela House, 4
Regent Street, 01223 457658 with regard to waste provision.

The Housing Standards Team, Mandela House, 4 Regent
Street, 01223 457880.

INFORMATIVE: The applicant is advised that to provide for the
needs of disabled occupiers or visitors, all toilet and bathroom
doors should either open outwards or slide. The applicant is
also advised that the parking layout should conform with Part M
of the Building Regulations, and that the needs of disabled
drivers would be best served by automatic gates to the access
drive.

Reasons for Approval

1.This development has been approved subject to conditions
and the prior completion of a section 106 planning obligation (/a
unilateral undertaking), because subject to those requirements

it is considered to conform to the Development Plan as a whole,
particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: policies ENV7 and WM6

Page 159



Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003:
policies P6/1 and P9/8

Cambridge Local Plan (2006): policies 3/1, 3/4, 3/6, 3/7, 3/11,
3/12,5/1 and 7/3

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

2. Unless prior agreement has been obtained from the
Head of Development Services, and the Chair and
Spokesperson of this Committee to extend the period for
completion of the Planning Obligation required in
connection with this development, if the Obligation has not
been completed by 15th March 2012 it is recommended that
the application be refused for the following reason.

The proposed development does not make appropriate
provision for open space/sports facilities, community
development facilities, education and life-long learning facilities,
waste facilities and monitoring in accordance with Cambridge
Local Plan 2006 policies 3/7, 3/8, 3/12, 5/14 and 10/1,
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003 policies
P6/1 and P9/8 and as detailed in the Planning Obligation
Strategy 2010 and the Open Space Standards Guidance for
Interpretation and Implementation 2010.

Page 160



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.
4

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is
considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

These papers may be inspected on the City Council website at:
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess

or by visiting the Customer Service Centre at Mandela House.

Page 161



11/1097/EXP
71 - 73 New Street Cambridge CB1 2QT

Page 162




B it i e bt g oot b B 1, ..Eft.b.ll-irrﬁ

Ltu men. st ON Bwg NV 4 H#001: Q45CH0ns  Bummig |
fjeag 137415 #IN Ovda KOV 0 18I0y

] g n o 5]
HOVE segeaon apg MEYID {3 g 4 sy
> W 1 MmUYy palhuy
T ATiwh o otr e M HED Ao el R3S VML 1L SAVENISSY X1ViN

[ 5 v
. ~
5 i
! # 5 - e 3 i 5 u +
- e 1 +
t. >

B ¥ ! — % .
,, N
i G

JOH #runauy

ries — 181 e
: | (0 [ D 7—‘ ,
e 5415, NI Y B 11 O

Page 163




Page 164

e gy
Fiim .—-A—*r

Lo,

‘ {'H

""T\
Hl‘l

09/0063/FUL

NEALE ASSOCIATER
€ By

Sermrl An

ThiE TRAM SHED, Eont Roud Cartisdgr UB1 18G 1%

Date

€ p JotLhee

Clant

cLeuP sTign

Project

[TRE

DOwg No.

SMEE®

ELEVAT'ONYG

Drawing

g

e a8 $rAe O ks b B gy



o - e RS,

236 weoynu ON Bug L1dany HOLTAIT Bumwig
e e Ll T4JHLE WON a¥Gd NOUvandd0 1aalosgy
007 eaGLL el 4TI 1 % a3 wayg
5 — arenuy grney
Tsiicn wimmraitissn DUV 18 Spurem pro g GEIHS VAL T SLLVLIOSSY TIVIN

N

nd 7 €900/ 60

1
B
po
L7
S i | o
,.,. _..¢i i )
7 W L,
] I p—
e il N .-

Page 165

TRV




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



Agenda ltem 11d

EAST AREA COMMITTEE Date: 15" December 2011

Application 11/0872/FUL Agenda

Number Item

Date Received 25th July 2011 Officer Mr John
Evans

Target Date 19th September 2011

Ward Romsey

Site 292 Mill Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB1 3NL

Proposal Erection of 5 houses and conversion/extension to

provide student accommodation (sixteen units).
Applicant

C/o 6 New Street Square New Fetter Lane London

EC4A 3BF

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1 The application site is a broadly rectangular shaped plot
situated at the junction of Mill Road and Malta Road, occupied
by the former Royal Standard Public House.

1.2 The existing building was previously occupied by an Indo-Thai
restaurant but is currently vacant. To the rear is the former car
park for the restaurant which is accessed from Malta Road and
forms part of the application site.

1.3 The area is predominantly residential in character, with terraced
houses along the length of Malta Road and Cyprus Road.
There are some other uses such as retail and a community
centre on Mill Road, close to the site.

1.4 The site falls within the Central Conservation Area. There is 1
significant tree on the site, a Malus tree in the north west
corner, which is protected from felling by reason of being within
a Conservation Area. The site is not within a Local or District
Centre.

Page 167



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

THE PROPOSAL

This application seeks consent for the erection of a terrace of 5
houses, and the conversion and extension of the existing
restaurant to provide 16 student units.

The proposed extensions to the former Royal Standard provide
2 new wings projecting 11.2m to the south and 8.5m to the
west, containing 3 levels of accommodation.

The proposed terraces have an eaves height of 5.2m and an
overall ridge height of 9m.  They contain 5 pitched roof front
dormer windows within each roof plane.

The materials of construction for the extensions to the former
Royal Standard are to match the existing building. The terraces
are to be constructed with a buff brick with a slate roof.

The application is accompanied by the following supporting
information:

1. Design and Access Statement

Amended Plans

Since the original submission amended plans have been
received making minor alterations to the detailed design of
the development. These changes were not so significant as
to justify further consultation. The changes are as follows:

- Provision of downpipes to divide each property vertically.

- Retention of ‘Royal Standard’ lettering and lamps to the
front elevation.

- Details of proposed public art to the south west elevation
of the extended student accommodation.

SITE HISTORY

Reference Description Outcome
C/95/0812 Single storey side extension to Approved
provide new bar extension and
toilets, at existing Public House
07/1285/FUL  Single storey side extension. Approved

Page 168



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

09/0946/FUL  Partial change of use of an Refused
existing restaurant car park to a
use to operate a daytime car

washing
PUBLICITY
Advertisement: Yes
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: Yes
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development (2005): Paragraphs 7 and 8 state that national
policies and regional and local development plans (regional
spatial strategies and local development frameworks) provide
the framework for planning for sustainable development and for
development to be managed effectively. This plan-led system,
and the certainty and predictability it aims to provide, is central
to planning and plays the key role in integrating sustainable
development objectives. Where the development plan contains
relevant policies, applications for planning permission should be
determined in line with the plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (2006): Sets out to
deliver housing which is: of high quality and is well designed;
that provides a mix of housing, both market and affordable,
particularly in terms of tenure and price; supports a wide variety
of households in all areas; sufficient in quantity taking into
account need and demand and which improves choice;
sustainable in terms of location and which offers a good range
of community facilities with good access to jobs, services and
infrastructure; efficient and effective in the use of land, including
the re-use of previously developed land, where appropriate. The
statement promotes housing policies that are based on
Strategic Housing Market Assessments that should inform the
affordable housing % target, including the size and type of
affordable housing required, and the likely profile of household
types requiring market housing, including families with children,

Page 169



5.4

5.5

single persons and couples. The guidance states that LPA’s
may wish to set out a range of densities across the plan area
rather than one broad density range. 30 dwellings per hectare is
set out as an indicative minimum. Paragraph 50 states that the
density of existing development should not dictate that of new
housing by stifling change or requiring replication of existing
style or form. Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate a
positive approach to renewable energy and sustainable
development.

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing has been reissued
with the following changes: the definition of previously
developed land now excludes private residential gardens to
prevent developers putting new houses on the brownfield sites
and the specified minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare
on new housing developments has been removed.

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic
Environment (2010): sets out the government’s planning
policies on the conservation of the historic environment. Those
parts of the historic environment that have significance because
of their historic, archaeological, architectural or artistic interest
are called heritage assets. The statement covers heritage
assets that are designated including Site, Scheduled
Monuments, Listed Buildings, Registered Parks and Gardens
and Conservation Areas and those that are not designated but
which are of heritage interest and are thus a material planning
consideration. The policy guidance includes an overarching
policy relating to heritage assets and climate change and also
sets out plan-making policies and development management
policies. The plan-making policies relate to maintaining an
evidence base for plan making, setting out a positive, proactive
strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic
environment, Article 4 directions to restrict permitted
development and monitoring. The development management
policies address information requirements for applications for
consent affecting heritage assets, policy principles guiding
determination of applications, including that previously
unidentified heritage assets should be identified at the pre-
application stage, the presumption in favour of the conservation
of designated heritage assets, affect on the setting of a heritage
asset, enabling development and recording of information.
Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological
Conservation (2005)

Page 170



5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions: Advises that conditions should be necessary,
relevant to planning, relevant to the development permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respecis.

Circular 05/2005 - Planning Obligations: Advises that
planning obligations must be relevant to planning, necessary,
directly related to the proposed development, fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind and reasonable in all other
respect.

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 — places a
statutory requirement on the local authority that where planning
permission is dependent upon a planning obligation the
obligation must pass the following tests:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;
(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

East of England Plan 2008

ENV6: The Historic Environment
ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003
Planning Obligation Related Policies

P6/1 Development-related Provision
P9/8 Infrastructure Provision

Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3/4 Responding to context

3/7 Creating successful places
3/10Subdivision of existing plots
3/11 The design of external spaces
3/12 The design of new buildings
4/4 Trees

Page 171



5.12

5.13

4/11 Conservation Areas

4/12 Buildings of Local Interest

5/1 Housing provision

5/2 Conversion of large properties

5/7 Supported Housing/ Housing in Multiple Occupation
8/2 Transport impact

8/6 Cycle parking

Planning Obligation Related Policies

3/7 Creating successful places

3/8 Open space and recreation provision through new
development

3/12 The Design of New Buildings (waste and recycling)

10/1 Infrastructure improvements (public open space,
recreational and community facilities, waste recycling)

Supplementary Planning Documents

Cambridge City Council (March 2010) — Planning Obligation
Strategy

Material Considerations

Central Government Guidance
Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (27 May 2010)

The coalition government is committed to rapidly abolish
Regional Strategies and return decision making powers on
housing and planning to local councils. Decisions on housing
supply (including the provision of travellers sites) will rest with
Local Planning Authorities without the framework of regional
numbers and plans.

Written Ministerial Statement: Planning for Growth (23
March 2011)

Includes the following statement:
When deciding whether to grant planning permission, local

planning authorities should support enterprise and facilitate
housing, economic and other forms of sustainable development.

Page 172



6.0

6.1

Where relevant and consistent with their statutory obligations
they should therefore:

(i) consider fully the importance of national planning policies
aimed at fostering economic growth and employment, given the
need to ensure a return to robust growth after the recent
recession;

(i) take into account the need to maintain a flexible and
responsive supply of land for key sectors, including housing;

(iii) consider the range of likely economic, environmental and
social benefits of proposals; including long term or indirect
benefits such as increased consumer choice, more viable
communities and more robust local economies (which may,
where relevant, include matters such as job creation and
business productivity);

(iv) be sensitive to the fact that local economies are subject to
change and so take a positive approach to development where
new economic data suggest that prior assessments of needs
are no longer up-to-date;

(v) ensure that they do not impose unnecessary burdens on
development.

In determining planning applications, local planning authorities
are obliged to have regard to all relevant considerations. They
should ensure that they give appropriate weight to the need to
support economic recovery, that applications that secure
sustainable growth are treated favourably (consistent with policy
in PPS4), and that they can give clear reasons for their
decisions.

CONSULTATIONS

Historic Environment Manager

The Mill Road area is characterised by its densely built
properties with very few gaps. The Royal Standard car park is
not an important gap and the proposed development of this

area is in keeping with the character and appearance of the
conservation area. This application is supported.

Page 173



6.2

6.3

6.4

Cambridgeshire County Council (Transport)

Whilst the car parking spaces on Malta Road are close to the
junction, they are outside the 10 metres minimum that the
Highway Authority would normally require, and so no objection
is raised to the proposal on these grounds.

Similarly the frontage access has removed the bollard
obstruction and has thus addressed the Highway Authority’s
concern.

The proposal provides parking spaces at less than one space
per dwelling, which has potential to increase parking demand
on the surrounding residential streets in direct competition with
existing residential uses.

The area suffers intense competition for on-street parking and
this proposal would exacerbate the situation.

Head of Environmental Services

No objections regarding noise and contaminated land, subject
to appropriate conditions.

Waste: Drawing P-1084-02, shows a proposed bin store, but as
the number of bins needed is not known it cannot be
determined if this will be adequate.

There is insufficient information in the application to show that
the waste and recycling provision will be adequate. Inadequate
waste and recycling provision will harm the amenity, through
litter, vermin and odours.

Arboriculture

The tree on the north boundary is a Pear. It is only protected by
its Conservation Area location as there is no TPO on the tree. |
would not describe it as being in poor health but do not consider
it to be of sufficient value to be a significant constraint to, an
other acceptable, development.

Providing adequate provision is made, therefore, for the tree's
replacement, | have no formal objection to the proposal.

Page 174



6.5

Design and Conservation Panel (Meeting of 26 October
2011)

The erection of 5 houses and conversion/extension to provide
student accommodation (16 units). Presentation by Philip Kratz
of Birketts LLP.

The site is within the newly extended Mill Road & St Matthews
Conservation Area, which now includes Malta Road. The
scheme proposes the retention of the former Royal Standard
Public House (designated as a Building of Local Interest). It was
noted that the concerns expressed previously by the Senior
Conservation & Design Officer had been addressed by the
applicants.

Carolin Gohler declared an interest as Cambridge PPF have
submitted a letter of objection.

The Panel’'s comments are as follows:

[1  The presentation of the scheme was marred by the limited
use and reference made to drawn material.

[1 The Panel regard the BLI's Malta Road and Mill Road
elevations to be of equal importance. The chimneystacks
currently visible are an example of late Victorian high quality
design and should not be obscured.

[0 The Panel expressed doubt as to whether the Malta
Road/Mill Road corner should be developed at all, as a
landscaped space would be appropriate to both the setting of
the BLI and make a positive contribution to the amenity of the
area. The Panel noted the assertion made by the presenter that
the proposed extension onto the corner plot had ‘marginal
viability’. The creation of a landscaped area at this corner
location would also provide scope to re-position the proposed
southern extension to the BLI towards Malta Road and thereby
provide more generous space at its eastern boundary.

[1 Faux Dutch gables. The Panel would urge caution here,
as pastiche has to be of the highest quality in order to be
successful.

[1 Terraced accommodation (along Malta Road). These
were seen as acceptable in general terms although the detailing
would need to be precise e.g. flushed bonds and snapped
headers etc. Although not a requirement, solar panels on the

Page 175



6.6

6.7

south facing roofs should be explored, as they would not impact
adversely on the Conservation Area.

L] ‘Secure by Design.” The gates providing access from /to
Malta Road and Mill Road should be brought forward to be in
line with best practice.

[1  Visitor cycle parking. The Panel questioned the adequacy
of the provision.

Conclusion.

The proposal suggests an upstaging of the Royal Standard PH
by the perceived dominance of the proposed extensions The
opportunity to provide landscaped open space on the corner
plot should be thoroughly examined for the reasons stated.

VERDICT - RED (1), AMBER (6) with 1 abstention.
Cambridge City Council Access Officer

All toilet/bathroom doors to open outwards.

Good colour contrast required.

Cambridgeshire County Council Archaeology

Our records indicate that the site lies in an area of high
archaeological potential. The plot is situated within an area of
known Roman occupation, with contemporary findspots to the
south and north (such as Historic Environment No.s MCB5886
& MCB5582), a possible Roman military camp to the west (HER
No. MCB6256), and the Roman road Via Devana to the sites
south-west (HER No. MCB9602). It is suspected that remains
from this period onwards will be found within the bounds of the
new application area.

We therefore consider that the site should be subject to a
programme of archaeological investigation and recommend that
this work should be commissioned and undertaken at the
expense of the developer. This programme of work can be
secured through the inclusion of a negative condition such as
the model condition 'number 55' contained in DoE Planning
Circular 11/95.

Page 176



7.0

7.1

7.2

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations: 7 Montreal Road, 6a, 9, 11, 13, 17, 28, 39, 47
Malta Road, 6, 10 Cyprus Road, 17, 18 Romsey Road, 273 Mill
Road, 80 Brackyn Road, 13 Sedgwick Street,

The representations can be summarised as follows:

Obijections in Principle

- Obiject in the strongest possible terms.

- Overdevelopment of the site.

- Demand for student accommodation is decreasing in the
area.

- The loss of the pub is detrimental to the area. There is no
reason why the pub should not be viable.

- The beer garden around the pub is an important green space
and part of the setting of the Royal Standard. As an amenity
and a visual highlight it should be preserved.

- There is nowhere in Malta Road for young children to play.

- The loss of the open space around the pub is of great
concern.

- The site should be used as a community area.

- Numerous beautiful old trees have been removed from the
site.

- The building and land should be put to community use.

- The Localism Bill is to give people greater say in what is
wanted in an area.

Design comments

- The poor quality additions will detract from the character of
the Royal Standard.

- The proposal would change the standalone character of the
former Royal Standard.

Amenity Concerns

- Students have no consideration for other residents.

Page 177



Student residents will generate music and noise at night.

The overturn of student accommodation is short term which
is ruining the community.

Noise pollution for number 10 Cyprus Road.

Further student housing will bring more management and
rubbish problems.

The houses are too high and will overlook and block light to
number 6 Cyprus Road.

There is little landscaping and open space for the students.
Concerns regarding rear lighting of the student
accommodation.

Concerns regarding noise and safety during the works.

Parking concerns

All of the proposed new occupants will bring cars which will
make car parking more difficult.

Campaign for Real Ale (CAMRA)

Although the premises is a restaurant, it was used as a pub
for many years.

There is no obvious reason why it could not be restored as a
pub.

Bringing the Royal Standard back into a pub would give local
people an increased choice of places to meet and socialise.

Mill Road Society

The proposal is clearly contrary to Council policy regarding
buildings in Conservation Areas and buildings of Local
Interest.

The extensions would damage the appearance of the Royal
Standard.

Significant overdevelopment of the site.

Failure to provide sufficient car parking would generate a
negative impact upon surrounding streets.

SUSTRANS

Cycle parking for 4 of the houses is very inconvenient.
Cycle parking should be improved on the scheme.
The student block should be served with more cycle parking.

Page 178



7.3

8.0

8.1

8.2

Cambridge Past Present and Future

- Strongly object.

- Object to the loss of green space.

- CPPF believe that in the right hands the pub could be a
successful business.

- The building should be retained for community use.

- The extensions are an overdevelopment of the site.

- The garden for the new flats in too small.

A petition has been received by 152 local residents who
wish to see the open space on the Royal Standard site
preserved or improved.

The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.

ASSESSMENT

From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

Principle of development

Context of site, design and external spaces
Residential amenity

Refuse arrangements

Highway safety

Car and cycle parking

Disabled access

Third party representations

Planning Obligation Strategy

e e AR il ol S

Principle of Development

The provision of higher density housing in sustainable locations
is generally supported by central government advice contained
in Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 3: Housing. Policy 5/1 of
the Cambridge Local Plan 2006 allows for residential
development from windfall sites, subject to the existing land use
and compatibility with adjoining uses, which is discussed in

Page 179



8.3

8.4

8.5

more detail in the amenity section below. The proposal is
therefore in compliance with these policy objectives.

This site is a former pub beer garden, rather than a domestic
dwelling, so the site should not in my view be considered as
‘garden land’. The proposal nevertheless involves the
subdivision of an existing plot for residential purposes, whereby
the criteria of policy 3/10 is relevant.

Local Plan policy 3/10 sets out the relevant criteria for
assessing proposals involving the subdivision of existing plots.
Such proposals will not be permitted where: a) there is a
significant adverse impact on the amenities of neighbouring
properties, through loss of privacy, loss of light, an overbearing
sense of enclosure and the generation of unreasonable levels
of traffic or noise nuisance; b) they provide inadequate amenity
space, vehicular access arrangements and car parking spaces
for the proposed and existing properties; ¢) where they detract
from the prevailing character and appearance of the area; d)
where they adversely affect the setting of Listed Buildings; e)
where there is an adverse impact upon trees, wildlife or
architectural features within or close to the site; f) where
development prejudices the comprehensive development of the
wider area, of which the site forms part. The scheme
represents a ‘windfall’ development and could not form part of a
wider development in accordance with 3/10 (f). The character
and amenity sections of policy 3/10 are considered in the
relevant subsections below.

The criteria of Local Plan policy 5/2, Conversion of large
properties, is also a material consideration, many of the
principles of which closely relate to policy 3/10. Local Plan
policy 5/7 permits the development of supported housing and
houses of multiple occupation subject to; the potential impact
upon residential amenity; the suitability of the building or site;
and the proximity of bus stop cycle routes and other services.
The site is in relatively close proximity to ARU East Road
campus and bus connections and is therefore in a suitable
location. An analysis of the design and amenity issues
associated with this form of housing is considered in the
relevant subsections below.

Page 180



8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

Some concerns have been raised regarding the potential loss of
the building as an A4 Use, drinking establishments. The
premises was however last used as an Indo-Thai restaurant
falling within Use Class A3. Local Plan policy 5/11 does not
offer protection to A3 uses because they are not defined as
‘community facilities’. | also do not consider the existing
restaurant to fall within the scope of a ‘leisure facility’ which are
protected under Local Plan policy 6/1.

Local Plan policy 7/10 states that the development of
speculative purpose-built student hostels will only be permitted
if there are occupancy conditions restricting the facility to The
University of Cambridge or Anglia Ruskin students. In addition,
that there are suitable management arrangements in place to
ensure students do not keep cars. The proposed student
accommodation will be formerly linked by condition to ARU in
accordance with policy 7/10.

There is no policy justification for preserving this previous pub
beer garden for community use. In my opinion, the principle of
the development is acceptable and in accordance with policies
5/1, 5/2, 5/7 and 7/10.

Context of site, design and external spaces

The key design issue relates to the detailed design and
appearance of the proposed extensions to the former Royal
Standard, a Building of Local interest, and the design of the new
terraces within their setting.

Extensions to the former Royal Standard

New buildings should have a positive impact upon their setting
in terms of height, scale, form, materials, detailing and wider
townscape views, in accordance with Local Plan policy 3/12.
New developments should also demonstrate that they have
drawn positive inspiration from their setting in accordance with
Local Plan policy 3/4. In addition, development within
Conservation Areas should preserve or enhance its setting by
faithfully reflecting its context or providing a successful contrast
within it. In my view the proposed 2 storey rear extension to the
former Royal Standard will not detract from the character and
appearance of the original building. The gap in the street scene
between the existing former Royal Standard and the existing

Page 181



8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

terraces of Malta Road is not considered so important as to
justify refusal. The 2 storey extension is set back from Malta
Road by 9m and would not therefore be unduly intrusive in the
street scene. The gables and roof form would reflect the
existing building which | consider a positive design response.

The proposed side extension to the former Royal Standard has
been designed as a subservient addition. The eaves level and
overall ridge height is subordinate in size and scale to the
former Royal Standard. | note concerns from the Council’s
Design and Conservation Panel regarding the obscuring of the
late Victorian chimney stacks. On balance, | do not feel that
significant harm would result to the character and appearance
of the Locally Listed Building. The proposed extensions
incorporate chimneys which will break up the roofline and make
a positive contribution. | recognise the symmetry of the former
Royal Standard would be altered as a result of these proposals,
but | do not consider this to be unduly harmful.

Internally, the scheme is subdivided in a logical fashion. The 3
wings of the extended Royal Standard would have 3 separate
entrances, 2 of which are accessed from Malta Road. This
arrangement results in no more than 3 flats being accessed off
each landing, avoiding an overly institutional layout, to the
benefit of the living accommodation of future occupiers in
accordance with Local Plan policy 5/2.

In terms of detailed design, materials are intended to match the
existing building which can be ensured through the imposition of
a suitable planning condition. The amended plans retain the
lettering and lamps on the main elevation of the former Royal
Standard as requested by the Council’s Conservation Officer.
The amended plans also indicate proposed public art positioned
on the south west elevation of the extended Royal Standard.
Public art is not a formal requirement of ‘minor’ applications; the
proposal would nevertheless make a positive contribution to the
development.

The development will involve the loss of the Malus tree to the
north west corner of the site. The tree contributes to the
amenity of the street scene but it should not constrain
development of the site. | consider its replacement acceptable,
which can be ensured through the imposition of a suitable
planning condition.

Page 182



8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

The proposed terrace

The proposed new terrace is a logical extension of the existing
residential terraces along Malta Road. Their siting and layout
abutting the pavement edge is in my opinion the correct
approach, as compared with the adjacent terraces on the west
side of Malta Road, which provide off street car parking.

Their design and appearance, with modest traditionally
designed front dormer windows is similar to houses approved in
2001 at the southern end of Malta Road. In my view they will
make a positive contribution to the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area. The loss of open space from the
existing car park would not in my view be harmful to character
of the street scene.

The Council’s Conservation Officer has some concerns with the
detailed design of the terrace. Amended plans have been
received detailing the drainpipes to ‘divide’ the properties so
that they read as separate dwellings within the street scene.
The small canopy over each front door has also been removed
because it is considered unnecessary clutter to the front
elevation.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policies 3/4, 3/7, 3/11, 3/12 and 4/11.

Residential Amenity

Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers

Extensions to the former Royal Standard

The proposed extensions will have some visual impact and will
create some overshadowing on the rear garden of the flats at
number 292 Mill Road, and number 2 Cyprus Road to the east
of the site. | do not however consider the proportions of the
new rear extension to be so unneighbourly as to justify refusal.

Numerous concerns have been raised regarding the increase in
general noise and disturbance from the use of the extended
building for student accommodation. The proposed student
accommodation will be a managed facility by ARU and in my

Page 183



8.21

8.22

8.23

8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

view the potential noise from coming and goings of future
occupants is not so significant as to justify refusal of the
application.

The proposed new Terrace

The rear projecting wing of the southern end of terrace property
will not in my view create a harmful visual impact for the
occupants of number 5 Malta Road. Given number 5 is to the
south of the new terrace, there will not be any overshadowing
created. | consider this relationship acceptable.

The rear wing of the proposed southern most end of terrace will
also create some overlooking upon number 10 Cyprus Road to
the east. However, given the distances involved, which total
22m between the rear outlook of each property, and roughly
17m to the centre of the rear garden of number 10 Cyprus
Road, | do not consider the harm to be so great as to justify
refusal.

In my opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential
amenity of its neighbours and the constraints of the site and |
consider that it is compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4, 3/10, 3/12 and 5/2.

Amenity for future occupiers of the site

The proposed student accommodation offers a satisfactory level
of amenity for further occupiers. The development provides 2
communal garden areas of adequate size.

The proposed new terraced houses are served with useable
rear garden areas and provide appropriate levels of floorspace

In my opinion the proposal provides appropriate standard of
residential amenity for future occupiers, and | consider that in
this respect it is compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/7 and 3/12.

Refuse Arrangements
The proposed student accommodation provides refuse storage

in 2 separate outbuildings to the east and west and of the site.
While | note concerns from the Council’s Waste Officer that the

Page 184



8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

application does not contain waste capacity calculations, this
can be adequately controlled through the imposition of a
suitable planning condition. In my opinion the proposal is
compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/12.

Highway Safety

The County Council has considered the scheme and do
consider any significant adverse impact on highway safety to
result. The parking spaces are outside the minimum 10m
distance to the junction. In my opinion the proposal is
compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 8/2.

Car and Cycle Parking

The development provides 1 off street disabled car parking
space to serve the student accommodation, and 3 off street car
parking spaces for the new terraced houses. Two of the new
terraced properties will not therefore have any off street car
parking.  On street car parking on Malta Road is in high
demand, so this proposal would exacerbate competition with
existing residents. However, the site is located in close
proximity to public transport links and local shops and services.
As such, | consider a scheme with a reduced car parking
provision acceptable in this location.

The proposed student accommodation provides 2 separate
bicycle stores, providing parking for 20 cycles. This is in
accordance with the Council’s adopted standards.

The proposed terraced houses have adequate space within
their rear garden to accommodate a shed outbuilding for
bicycles. In my opinion the proposal is compliant with
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 8/6 and 8/10.

Disabled access
The Council's Access Officer has commented on internal
fixtures and fittings which has been brought to the attention of

the applicant. In my opinion the proposal is compliant with
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/7 and 3/12.

Page 185



8.33

8.34

9.0

9.1

Third Party Representations

The issues raised in the representations received have been
discussed in the above report.

Planning Obligation Strategy
Planning Obligations

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 have
introduced the requirement for all local authorities to make an
assessment of any planning obligation in relation to three tests.
If the planning obligation does not pass the tests then it is
unlawful. The tests are that the planning obligation must be:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

In bringing forward my recommendations in relation to the
Planning Obligation for this development | have considered
these requirements. The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010)
provides a framework for expenditure of financial contributions
collected through planning obligations. The applicants have
indicated their willingness to enter into a S106 planning
obligation in accordance with the requirements of the Strategy
and relevant Supplementary Planning Documents. The
proposed development triggers the requirement for community
infrastructure and | will set out the details of this on the
Amendment Sheet.

CONCLUSION

The proposed development would not in my view be harmful to
either the character and appearance of the former Royal
Standard or the wider Conservation Area. | do not consider
there to be significant adverse harm to the amenities of
neighbour residential properties. APPROVAL is recommended.

Page 186



10.0 RECOMMENDATION
APPROVE subiject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.  No development shall take place until samples of the materials
to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the external surfaces
is appropriate. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/12 and 3/14)

3.  Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority in writing no construction work or demolition shall be
carried out or plant operated other than between the following
hours: 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 hours
to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or
Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13)

4.  Except with the prior agreement of the local planning authority
in writing, there should be no collection or deliveries to the site
during the demolition and construction stages outside the hours
of 0700 hrs and 1900 hrs on Monday - Saturday and there
should be no collections or deliveries on Sundays or Bank and
public holidays.

Reason: Due to the proximity of residential properties to this
premises and that extensive refurbishment will be required, the
above conditions are recommended to protect the amenity of
these residential properties throughout the redevelopment in
accordance with policies 4/13 and 6/10 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006)

Page 187



Prior to occupation of the development, full details of all
proposed replacement tree planting (to replace the pear tree),
and the proposed times of planting, to be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority, and all tree
planting shall be carried out in accordance with those details
and at those times.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory implementation of tree
planting in the interests of visual amenity. (East of England Plan
2008 policy ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4,
3/11, 3/12 and 4/4)

No development shall take place within the site until the
applicant, or their agent or successors in title, has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work in
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has
been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the
local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that an appropriate archaeological
investigation of the site has been implemented before
development commences. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy
4/9)

Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved, full
details of the on-site storage facilities for waste including waste
for recycling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. Such details shall identify the
specific positions of where wheelie bins, recycling boxes or any
other means of storage will be stationed and the arrangements
for the disposal of waste. The approved facilities shall be
provided prior to the commencement of the use hereby
permitted and shall be retained thereafter unless alternative
arrangements are agreed in writing by the local planning
authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of future occupiers,
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 3/12.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details

of the following matters shall be submitted to and approved by
the local planning authority in writing.

Page 188



10.

11.

i) contractors access arrangements for vehicles, plant and
personnel,

i) contractors site storage area/compound,

iii)  the means of moving, storing and stacking all building
materials, plant and equipment around and adjacent to
the site,

iv)  the arrangements for parking of contractors vehicles and
contractors personnel vehicles.

Thereafter the development shall be undertaken in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties
during the construction period. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006
policy 4/13)

No development shall commence until a programme of
measures to minimise the spread of airborne dust from the site
during the demolition / construction period has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved scheme.

Details of any proposed external lighting shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority before
the use hereby permitted commences. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring
residents, Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 3/4.

The change of use and extended former Royal Standard hereby
permitted shall be used only as a hostel for the provision of
residential accommodation for students attending full-time
courses of education at Anglia Ruskin University.

Page 189



12.

Reason: Inadequate off-street parking provision is available on
the site to meet the car parking standards of the City Council for
any use other than a sui generis hostel use, the occupation of
which is restricted to students who are subject to a system of
parking control administered by the Anglia Ruskin University.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 8/10).

Prior to occupation of the approved student accommodation, full
details of both hard and soft landscape works have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority and these works shall be carried out as approved.
These details shall include proposed finished levels or contours;
means of enclosure; car parking layouts, other vehicle and
pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing
materials; minor artefacts and structures (eg furniture, play
equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting);
proposed and existing functional services above and below
ground (eg drainage, power, communications cables, pipelines
indicating lines, manholes, supports); retained historic
landscape features and proposals for restoration, where
relevant. Soft Landscape works shall include planting plans;
written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of
plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate and an implementation
programme.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that
suitable hard and soft landscape is provided as part of the
development. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/11 and 3/12)

INFORMATIVE: New development can sometimes cause
inconvenience, disturbance and disruption to local residents,
businesses and passers by. As a result the City Council runs a
Considerate Contractor Scheme aimed at promoting high
standards of care during construction. The City Council
encourages the developer of the site, through its building
contractor, to join the scheme and agree to comply with the
model Code of Good Practice, in the interests of good
neighbourliness. Information about the scheme can be obtained
from The Considerate Contractor project Officer in the Planning
Department (Tel: 01223 457121).

Page 190



Reasons for Approval

1.This development has been approved subject to conditions
and the prior completion of a section 106 planning obligation (/a
unilateral undertaking), because subject to those requirements
it is considered to conform to the Development Plan as a whole,
particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: ENV6, ENV7

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003: P6/1,
P9/8

Cambridge Local Plan (2006):  3/4, 3/7, 3/10, 3/11, 3/12, 4/4,
4/11, 4/12, 5/1, 5/2, 5/7, 8/2, 8/6

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is
considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

Page 191



5. Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

These papers may be inspected by contacting John Summers
(Ext.7103) in the Planning Department.

Page 192



292 Mill Road Cambridge

11/0872/FUL

Page 193



PR REsIEY PRy B deETy
$2(]) 137 {54MESN)
L)W A ) BLpAR g MR Drp Y
oz.tﬁ.?__;x.a!..-u!ﬁ

oo/l [TATL
TIVIS 1L

PIT AR EOopa e[/ ue 1] pesas )
183D

sueyd avoy pum ey pariiiog
Wl 14RI75 30

g gy

001:T NV1d d00Td ANNOYAD dISOd0dd

Page 194



Agenda ltem 11e

EAST AREA COMMITTEE Date: 15" December 2011

Application 11/0288/FUL Agenda

Number Item

Date Received 16th March 2011 Officer Miss Amy
Lack

Target Date 11th May 2011

Ward Abbey

Site 15 Swann's Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire

Proposal Change of use to car hire business and erection of

associated office and wash down canopy on land
off Swann's Road.

Applicant Roundwood Restorations Ltd.
Unit 9 Martells Quarry Slough Lane Ardleigh
Colchester Essex CO7 7RU

INTRODUCTION

0.1 This matter is being brought back to Committee because in the
interval between your resolution to accept the officer
recommendation to approve and issuing the decision notice a
letter was received from solicitors acting for an objector which
threatened judicial review.

0.2 Insummary this letter argued that the Council had failed to:

1 carry out a comprehensive screening assessment

1 publish the screening questionnaire which it had
carried out .

1 consider the project cumulatively with other
operations on the rest of the area.

0.3 Officers did not and do not think it necessary to carry out a
comprehensive screening exercise as the preliminary exercise
(the screening questionnaire) led to the conclusion that the
application project did not fall within the relevant statutory
criteria which would trigger a screening. At their last meeting the
Committee did not address the other operations (i.e. the scrap
metal storage and sorting ) on the rest of the area (“the Area”)
because it was not thought to be material.

Page 195



0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

However in the light of this letter and further information
supplied since 18" August, the Committee has the opportunity
to consider the following matters and if necessary review their
earlier resolution. Officers have also looked at this additional
material but remain of the opinion that this application does not
present the risk of any significant environmental impact either
alone or in conjunction with the current lawful activities on the
remainder of the site.

Further information.

The Area is shown on the attached plan (Appendix A). The red
line denotes the application site (“the Site”) which together with
the blue line comprises the Area which the objector’s solicitors
maintain is the area in respect of which the Council should
consider whether there is the likelihood of a significant
environmental impact.

Land to the northern part of the Area is used (under a
Certificate of Lawful Use or Development 1994) for a scrap
metal yard for non-ferrous metals and materials. The southern
part of the Area has planning permission from the City Council
(planning permission C/81/0033 dated March 1981) for storing
of scrap metal, waste skips and heavy goods vehicles, shearing
and baling of scrap metal. This application to the City Council is
on 0.18 hectares of land adjacent to the scrap yard and would
share access with it.

There is a history of civil litigation on the Area .In 2010
Objectors/Claimants brought an action for nuisance arising from
the level of noise emanating from the scrap yard .The decision
of the High Court judge was that Nationwide Metal Recycling
Ltd had been committing a noise nuisance but this discontinued
when they erected acoustic barriers along the boundary. In July
2011 the Objectors appealed to the Court of Appeal on a point
of law which failed .As part of this action a Noise Impact Report
and Synopsis on barrier effects were commissioned by the
Claimants, which were sent to this Council on 11 November
2011 (Appendix B).

Subsequently a retrospective planning application was made, in
December 2010, to the County Council to retain the noise
barriers :48m length of 5m high fence and 42m length of 5.1m
high stacked shipping containers. Prior to deciding the

Page 196



0.9

0.10

0.11

1.0

1.1

application, the objectors required the County Council to make
a Screening Opinion but the County was of the opinion that this
was not needed as it did not reach the statutory trigger points
under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment)(England and Wales) Regulations 1999. The
objectors went to the Secretary of State to challenge the County
decision .The Secretary of State decided (his letter of 22
September 2011) that the erection of the barriers was not likely
to have a significant environmental impact. In reaching his view
the Secretary of State considered the location of the
development .He was not persuaded that the barriers when
considered cumulatively with the scrap yard would result in
significant environmental effects .He directed that the County
planning application could proceed without the submission of an
environmental statement. The objectors asked the Secretary of
State to review his screening direction by letter dated 25
October 2011, but the Secretary of State declined by letter
dated 9 November 2011. The County application for the
retention of the barriers is yet to be decided.

We understand that the scrap metal yard operates under the
terms of a license issued and monitored by the Environment
Agency.

In summary, the objector’s solicitors say that in deciding this
application the Council should take into account the cumulative
impact of the change of use from car sales to car hire (and
associated development) on the whole Area and whether all the
activities together would give rise to a likely significant
environmental impact.

In the light of the above officers remain of the view that the
application should be supported for the reasons set out in this
report. The contents of the report and the recommendation set
out a paragraph 10 remain unchanged

SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

Swann’s Road is accessed off the northern side of Newmarket
Road, immediately west of railway sidings and the bridge of
Newmarket Road which passes over the railway line. Swann’s
Road joins Mercers Row to the northwest.

Page 197



1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

The application site shares access off the east of Swann’s
Road with Nationwide Metal Recycling Limited (NMR). This
recycling scrapyard currently operates from two defined areas
linked by a private road. In a similar way the application site is
comprised of two separate areas which use the same private
road to link the two. This has resulted in an elongated site, a
significant proportion of it along the shared boundary with the
railway sidings to the east because the irregular shape
stretches from Newmarket Road northwards between the
sidings and the scrapyard.

The site falls within a wider area which includes development
along Mercers Row and Swann’s Road that is allocated as a
Protected Industrial Site under policy 7/3 in the Cambridge
Local Plan (2006).

THE PROPOSAL

This application seeks permission for a change of use from car
sales, to use by a car hire company. Ancillary provisions to the
use are proposed which include an office, a canopy over a car
washing area and car parking for the hire fleet and staff.

The submitted plans separate the application site into Area A
and Area B. Area A is the parcel of land which sits closest to
Newmarket Road. Area B is the parcel of land which sits
furthest from the road, to the north of the NMR scrapyard.

Under the proposal, Area A will accommodate the office,
canopy and 8 car parking spaces, inclusive of one disabled car
parking space. The proposed office is a single storey building.
This has a flat roof with a very shallow mono-pitch to the south
and south-west elevations which slopes towards Newmarket
Road with an eaves height of 3.6 metres. The building has a
maximum height of 4.4 metres. It is ‘L’ shaped, with each length
of the building 5.5 metres in depth and a maximum length of
10.4 metres. It will be constructed of white facing brick and blue
semi-engineering brick with metal sheet roof.

To the east of the office building a 3.1 metre high canopy is
proposed, Smetres in width and 5.5metres in depth, constructed
of galvanised steel with a fabric roof coloured grey. This will
provide a washing facility for the car hire fleet.

Page 198



2.5

2.6

3.0

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Area B is designated for car parking for staff and the car fleet.
This makes provision for the parking of 18 vehicles. 2.1 metre
high palisade fencing and gates demarcate the boundary and
secure this area.

The application is accompanied by the following supporting
information:

1. Design and Access Statement;
2. Trip data.

SITE HISTORY

Reference Description Outcome
C/80/0445 Use of land for display and sale ~ A/C
of motor vehicles

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: No
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: No
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development (2005): Paragraphs 7 and 8 state that national
policies and regional and local development plans (regional
spatial strategies and local development frameworks) provide
the framework for planning for sustainable development and for
development to be managed effectively. This plan-led system,
and the certainty and predictability it aims to provide, is central
to planning and plays the key role in integrating sustainable
development objectives. Where the development plan contains
relevant policies, applications for planning permission should be
determined in line with the plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution
Control (2004): States that ‘any consideration of the quality of
land, air or water and potential impacts arising from
development, possibly leading to impacts on health, is capable

Page 199



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

of being a material planning consideration, in so far as it arises
or may arise from or may affect any land use’. It highlights the
fact that the planning system has a key role in determining the
location of development which may give rise to pollution.
Appendix A sets out those matters which may be material in
taking decisions on individual planning applications including
the environmental benefits of reducing the need for travel and
the existence of Air Quality Management Areas.

Planning Policy Guidance 24 - Planning and Noise (1994):
States at paragraph 12, that planning authorities should
consider carefully whether new noise-sensitive development
would be incompatible with existing activities. At paragraph 13,
a number of mitigation measures are suggested which could be
introduced to control the source of, or limit exposure to, noise.

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions: Advises that conditions should be necessary,
relevant to planning, relevant to the development permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

East of England Plan 2008

SS1: Achieving Sustainable Development

T1: Regional Transport Strategy Objectives and Outcomes
T9: Walking, Cycling and other Non-Motorised Transport
T14 Parking

ENV7: Quality in the Built Environment

WM6: Waste Management in Development

Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3/1  Sustainable development

3/4 Responding to context

3/7 Creating successful places

3/12 The design of new buildings

4/13 Pollution and amenity
4/15 Lighting

Page 200



5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

7/2  Selective management of the economy
7/3  Protection of industrial and storage space

8/2 Transport impact
8/6 Cycle parking
8/10 Off-street car parking

Supplementary Planning Documents

Cambridge City Council (May 2007) — Sustainable Design
and Construction: Sets out essential and recommended
design considerations of relevance to sustainable design and
construction. Applicants for major developments are required to
submit a sustainability checklist along with a corresponding
sustainability statement that should set out information indicated
in the checklist. Essential design considerations relate directly
to specific policies in the Cambridge Local Plan 2006.
Recommended considerations are ones that the council would
like to see in major developments. Essential design
considerations are urban design, transport, movement and
accessibility, sustainable drainage (urban extensions), energy,
recycling and waste facilities, biodiversity and pollution.
Recommended design considerations are climate change
adaptation, water, materials and construction waste and historic
environment.

Material Considerations
Central Government Guidance

Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (27 May 2010)

The coalition government is committed to rapidly abolish
Regional Strategies and return decision making powers on
housing and planning to local councils. Decisions on housing
supply (including the provision of travellers sites) will rest with
Local Planning Authorities without the framework of regional
numbers and plans.

Written Ministerial Statement: Planning for Growth (23
March 2011)

Includes the following statement:

Page 201



6.0

When deciding whether to grant planning permission, local
planning authorities should support enterprise and facilitate
housing, economic and other forms of sustainable development.
Where relevant and consistent with their statutory obligations
they should therefore:

(i) consider fully the importance of national planning policies
aimed at fostering economic growth and employment, given the
need to ensure a return to robust growth after the recent
recession;

(ii) take into account the need to maintain a flexible and
responsive supply of land for key sectors, including housing;

(iii) consider the range of likely economic, environmental and
social benefits of proposals; including long term or indirect
benefits such as increased consumer choice, more viable
communities and more robust local economies (which may,
where relevant, include matters such as job creation and
business productivity);

(iv) be sensitive to the fact that local economies are subject to
change and so take a positive approach to development where
new economic data suggest that prior assessments of needs
are no longer up-to-date;

(v) ensure that they do not impose unnecessary burdens on
development.

In determining planning applications, local planning authorities
are obliged to have regard to all relevant considerations. They
should ensure that they give appropriate weight to the need to
support economic recovery, that applications that secure
sustainable growth are treated favourably (consistent with policy
in PPS4), and that they can give clear reasons for their
decisions.

CONSULTATIONS
Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering)

31 March 2011

Page 202



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

It is unclear from the submission how the site will operate. Will
customers be able to park their own vehicles on site whilst
hiring a vehicle, and if so, is the customer parking and vehicle
storage adequate for the number of customers? Details are
required of the vehicle classes that are available for hire and
details of the trip generation of all modes for a 24 hour day,
existing and proposed use.

21 June 2011

From the trip generation data supplied the proposal would not
trigger the requirement for payments under ECATP.

Head of Environmental Services

Environmental Health have investigated complaints of lighting
and noise from this area. Whilst this is a largely commercial
area bordering a busy road and railway line there are domestic
properties close to the site. Their amenity should be protected
by the imposition of conditions.

The wash down area is assumed to be for washing cars down
with detergent. Paragraphs 4.05 and 6.02 of the Design and
Access Statement state areas A and B of the application site
will be covered in loose chippings and self-drain, the
Environment Agency should be consulted.

There is no objection to the principle of the application but it is
advised that conditions to: restrict the hours of construction and
demolition; provide details of commercial waste; provide details
of lighting; and assess land contamination should be imposed.

Environment Agency

A narrow strip along the site’s eastern boundary is identified as
being with flood zones 2 (medium) and 3 (high risk). The agent
has satisfactorily demonstrated that the site is not at risk of
flooding and confirmed that in any event no raising and
confirmed no raising of the ground level will be carried out by
this proposal.

In terms of pollution control, wash water and parking specifically

are acceptable in principle. In view of the site’s previous
commercial usage and its proximity to the railway it is

Page 203



6.8

7.0

7.1

7.2

recommended that either conditions be imposed to satisfy the
requirements of PPS23, or a desktop study prior to the
determination of the application.

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations:

- Station House and Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction,
Cambridge c/o Richard Buxton, Environmental & Public Law,
19B Victoria Street, Cambridge CB1 1JP.

The representations can be summarised as follows:
Noise nuisance and disturbance

- It is understood that there are currently extensive building-
type operations taking place in an area close to the
application site and on land adjacent to the scrapyard. This
requires the use of heavy building and moving equipment
and the movement of considerable amounts of earth and
gravel. These operations are causing considerable noise and
disturbance to occupiers of Station House and Station
Lodge. These operations appear to be carried out without
planning permission. These operations and those proposed
by this application will cumulatively have a significant impact;

- There is a history of seeking to prevent noise and nuisance
from the scrapyard. High court judgements in 2009 and
2010, both of which have recognised a nuisance, have failed
to remedy this and the matter is now before the Court of
Appeal. On balance a car hire business would be preferable
to the scrapyard use but this is for a car hire in addition to the
scrapyard;

- The car hire will operate up until 18:00 and on Saturday
mornings. The scrapyard operates Monday to Friday until
16:30. The proposed use will therefore reduce the quiet time
which is so important to these nearby occupiers;

- The proposed use will result in additional vehicular
movements directly opposite Station House and Station

Page 204



7.3

8.0

8.1

Lodge, some vehicles may also have automated warning
messages or beep when reversing. On a gravel surface this
is made noisier and generates dust;

- Potential sources of noise from loud radios, security alarms,
pressure washers, vacuum cleaners and car alarms;

Lighting

- Light intrusion from powerful security lights, left on
throughout the night at the scrapyard (which has been raised
with the City Council’s Environmental Health Department) is
likely to be made worse by the car hire business with
additional security lighting and vehicle headlights

Signage

- The excessive amount of signage on the junction of Swann’s
Road and Newmarket Road, of which it is likely some do not
have permission, is likely to be added to by another company
operating from this site.

Privacy

- The elevated position on the site and the glazing on the

entrance elevation is likely to result in a loss of privacy for
the occupiers of Station House and Station Lodge;

Visual impact

- The proposed new building is likely to reflect glare back
towards the occupiers of Station House and Station Lodge.

The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.

ASSESSMENT

From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

1. Principle of development
2. Context of site, design and external spaces

Page 205



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Disabled access
Residential amenity
Refuse arrangements
Highway safety

Third party representations

N O AW

Principle of Development

The application site is allocated as a Protected Industrial Site.
Therefore policy 7/3 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
applies. This seeks to retain floorspace within Use Classes
B1(c), B2 and B8. The current car sales use which operates
from the site and the proposed vehicle hire use are both sui
generis uses, which do not fall within these classifications. The
proposed change of use from car sales to vehicle hire will
therefore not result in the loss of any Class B1, B2 or B8
floorspace, and will not be in conflict with Cambridge Local Plan
(2006) policy 7/3.

Policy 7/2 of the Cambridge Local Plan (2006) sets limits on the
type of employment development  proposals which are
appropriate to ensure a balanced economy. This proposal
would increase employment at the site from three full-time
equivalent to six full-time equivalent, and it is therefore an
employment development proposal albeit a very limited one.
Subsection (c) of policy 7/2 supports employment development
within Use Classes B1(c), B2 and B8 where it would contribute
to a greater range of local employment opportunities. The use
here proposed does not fall within these specific use classes,
but in my view, it is comparable, and the increase in
employment proposed here would be in line with the objectives
of Policy 7/2.

| consider the proposal acceptable in principle, and in
accordance with policies 7/2 and 7/3 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006).

Context of site, design and external spaces
The application site sits within a protected industrial estate.
This is accommodates commercial and industrial uses and

includes existing vehicle hire businesses similar to that
proposed. As such, | consider the proposed use in keeping with

Page 206



8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

its immediate context and the character or Swann’s Road and
Mercer’s Row.

Area A of the application site, positioned adjacent to Newmarket
Road, is more visible to the higher footfall and vehicular
movement along this main arterial road than the other units
along Swann’s Road but despite the utilitarian, industrial form of
the proposed office building | consider it a significant
improvement upon the existing building on the site. This is a
single storey semi-permanent structure, finished in white, which
appears tired and requires maintenance. This existing building
is detrimental to the character of the surrounding area. The
proposed building is designed for purpose and whilst rather
uninspired it is appropriate to its context.

Whilst it is located on a corner plot, 2.1-metre-high paladin
fencing demarcates the shared boundary between the site and
the footpath along this section of Newmarket Road which
screens the site to a greater extent than might be expected. The
ground level of the site also falls away from Newmarket Road,
which means the proposed building is unlikely to rise much
above the existing fencing when viewed from Newmarket Road.
When | conducted my site visit, nine cars were parked in this
location of the application site. The proposed use proposes the
parking of eight vehicles in this area, the single storey office
building and canopy. As such, | believe the character of the site
will be improved by the new building but on the whole largely
appear as existing.

In my opinion the proposal is in keeping with the character of
the context and the function of the proposed use. | therefore
consider it compliant with East of England Plan (2008) policies
SS1 and ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/1,
3/4, 3/7 and 3/12.

Disabled access

The proposed single storey building is orientated on 'Area A’ so
the entrance would be clearly visible. It is likely that this will be
emphasised by corporate signage but this will be subject to the
consideration of an application for Advertisement Consent,
submitted independently of this application for planning
permission. The entrance door has an opening width of 0.90
metres compliant with the requirements of Approved Document

Page 207



8.10

8.11

8.12

M of the Building Regulations (Access to and Use of Buildings).
A dedicated customer car parking space for disabled people is
allocated adjacent to the building entrance. | am satisfied that
the proposal has satisfactorily given consideration to inclusive
access for all and the requirements for disabled access and is
therefore compliant with East of England (2008) policy ENV7
and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/7 and 3/12.

Residential Amenity
Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers

The buildings in the immediate surrounding area are occupied
by commercial uses, extending along Swann’s Road and
Mercer’s Row to the north and west. To the east are the railway
sidings which run the length of the eastern boundary of the site;
and to the south is Newmarket Road, a busy arterial road. In
view of these surroundings the application site sits within an
active and relatively noisy context. Given this setting and the
character of the protected industrial site, my view when visiting
the site was that the proposed use and number of staff and
vehicles proposed was well suited to this location, and | am
satisfied that the proposal is unlikely to have any significant
impact upon any neighbouring residential occupiers.

A third party representation has been received from occupiers
of two residential properties to the east of the site objecting to
the proposal. They are of the view that in principle the proposal
is acceptable and would be preferable to the existing metal
recycling scrapyard use, but if implemented in addition to the
scrapyard use, would have a cumulative impact upon the
residential amenity of the occupiers at Station Lodge and
Station House in terms of noise and disturbance.

| acknowledge that these nearby residents currently suffer from
noise and disturbance from the scrapyard. However, | do not
consider that the proposed use would have any significant
impact in this respect in the context of the busy Newmarket
Road to the south, the industrial nature of Swann’s
Road/Mercer’s Row to the north and west and the railway to the
east. | appreciate the cumulative impact which developments
can have. However, the residential site concerned is in excess
of from 30 metres from Area B, which will serve only as a
parking area, and almost 150 metres from Area A, where the

Page 208



8.13

8.14

8.15

8.16

majority of the operator’s activity will be. Furthermore, | do not
consider that the proposed car hire use is likely to generate
significantly more noise and disturbance from headlights,
alarms, security lighting, and movement across gravel than the
existing car sales use.

The representation received considered an Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA) necessary. | have undertaken an EIA
screening questionnaire and am satisfied that that the proposed
use does not require an EIA.

In my opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential
amenity of its neighbours and the constraints of the site.
Conditions to restrict the hours of construction and demolition
(condition 2) and to provide details of any external lighting
(condition 3) should be imposed to safeguard the nearby
occupiers from any unreasonable nuisance. Subject to such
conditions, | consider that it is compliant with East of England
Plan (2008) policy ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/4 and 3/7.

Amenity for future occupiers of the site

Given a number of different commercial uses on this site it has
been recommended by the Environmental Health Officer and
the Environment Agency that conditions be imposed (conditions
4 and 5) in order to safeguard future customers and staff at the
site from any ground contamination, and to protect the water
environment. Subject to these conditions, | am satisfied that the
proposed use on this site will provide an appropriate level of
amenity for these users and consider in this respect it is
compliant with East of England (2008) policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/12.

Refuse Arrangements

No refuse provision has been indicated on the submitted plans.
| am satisfied that there is ample room on site to find a
successful location to position a dedicated refuse and recycling
store and that this can be secured by a condition (condition 7).
Subject to agreeing these details by condition | am satisfied that
the proposal is compliant with East of England Plan (2008)
policies ENV7 and WM6 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policy 3/12.

Page 209



8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

9.0

9.1

Highway Safety and trip generation.

The highway authority has raised no objection to the proposal
on highway safety grounds, and | consider the proposal is
compliant with East of England Plan (2008) policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 8/2.

The highway engineer consulted on the proposal requested
further information with regard to the proposed vehicle fleet and
the number of trips generated as to whether on not the
proposed use would require contributions towards the Eastern
Area Corridor Transport Plan. Further information has been
submitted and the highway authority has now confirmed that no
contributions are required for this proposal.

Third Party Representations

| have addressed the concerns raised by the third party
representation received under the heading ‘Residential Amenity’
above, from paragraph 8.7.

| have also consulted with the planning enforcement team with
regard to any possible ongoing unlawful development as
implied in the third party representation received. It is our
understanding that the clearance works referred to in the
representation as being ‘an area close to the application site
and on land adjacent to the scrapyard’ were enabling works in
conjunction with this current application in ‘Area B’. We are
satisfied that this has ceased pending the outcome of this
application. With regard to the various banner advertisement
signs that have been attached to the boundary fencing fronting
Newmarket Road, the planning enforcement team have been
made aware and are assessing the situation.

CONCLUSION

The proposed use is acceptable in principle and in keeping with
the industrial use on the wider Mercer’s Row industrial estate. |
believe it will result in a visual improvement relative to the
existing use of the site and subject to conditions will not have
any significant adverse impact upon any nearby residential
occupiers. | recommend the application be approved.

Page 210



10.0 RECOMMENDATION
APPROVE subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority in writing no construction work or demolition shall be
carried out or plant operated other than between the following
hours: 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 hours
to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or
Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13)

3.  Details of any proposed floodlighting or external lighting shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority before the use hereby permitted commences.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of amenity. (Cambridge Local Plan
2006 policies 3/11 and 4/15)

4. No development approved by this permission shall be
commenced prior to a contaminated land assessment and
associated remedial strategy, together with a timetable of
works, being submitted to the local planning authority for
approval.

(@) The contaminated land assessment shall include a
desk study to be submitted to the local planning authority for
approval. The desk study shall detail the history of the site uses
and propose a site investigation strategy based on the relevant
information discovered by the desk study. The strategy shall be
approved by the local planning authority prior to investigations
commencing on site.

Page 211



(b) The site investigation, including relevant soil, soil
gas, surface and groundwater sampling, shall be carried out by
a suitable qualified and accredited consultant/contractor in
accordance with a quality assured sampling and analysis
methodology.

(c) A site investigation report detailing all investigative
works and sampling on site, together with the results of the
analysis, risk assessment to any receptors and a proposed
remediation strategy shall be submitted to the local planning
authority. The local planning authority shall approve such
remedial works as required prior to any remediation
commencing on site. The works shall be of such a nature as to
render harmless the identified contamination given the
proposed end use of the site and surrounding environment
including any controlled waters.

(d)  Approved remediation works shall be carried out in
full on site under a quality assurance scheme to demonstrate
compliance with the proposed methodology and best practice
guidance.

(e) If, during the works contamination is encountered
which has not previously been identified then the additional
contamination shall be fully assessed and an appropriate
remediation scheme agreed with the local planning authority.

(f)  Upon completion of the works, this condition shall
not be discharged until a closure report has been submitted to
and approved by the local planning authority. The closure
report shall include details of the proposed remediation works
and quality assurance certificates to show that the works have
been carried out in full in accordance with the approved
methodology. Details of any post-remedial sampling and
analysis to show the site has reached the required clean-up
criteria shall be included in the closure report together with the
necessary documentation detailing what waste materials have
been removed from site.

Reason: To avoid adverse effects of pollution. (Cambridge
Local Plan (2006) policy 4/13)

Page 212



No development shall commence until such time as full details
of a scheme for the provision and implementation of pollution
control to the water environment which shall include foul and
surface water drainage has been submitted to, and agreed in
writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory method of foul and surface
water drainage and to prevent the increased risk of pollution to
the water environment (Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy
4/13).

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the
on-site storage facilities for waste including waste for recycling
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. Such details shall identify the specific
positions of where wheelie bins, recycling boxes or any other
means of storage will be stationed and the arrangements for the
disposal of waste. The approved facilities shall be provided
prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted and
shall be retained thereafter unless alternative arrangements are
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers
and in the interests of visual amenity. (East of England Plan
2008 policies ENV7 and WM6, and Cambridge Local Plan 2006
policy 3/12)

Reasons for Approval
1. This development has been approved, conditionally, because
subject to those requirements it is considered to conform to the

Development Plan as a whole, particularly the following policies:

East of England plan 2008: Policies SS1, T1, T9, T14, ENV7
and WM6

Cambridge Local Plan (2006): Policies 3/1, 3/4, 3/7, 3/12, 4/13,
4/15, 8/2, 8/6 and 8/10

Page 213



2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Under Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972, the following
are “background papers” for each report on a planning application:

1.
2.

3.

The planning application and plans;

Any explanatory or accompanying letter or document from the
applicant;

Comments of Council departments on the application;
Comments or representations by third parties on the application
as referred to in the report plus any additional comments
received before the meeting at which the application is
considered; unless (in each case) the document discloses
“exempt or confidential information”

Any Structure Plan, Local Plan or Council Policy Document
referred to in individual reports.

These papers may be inspected by contacting John Summers
(Ext.7103) in the Planning Department.

Page 214






e

mmreetie AR o T e o)

chartered architects

o — g v s

SCPRTHE

LAND AT NEWMARKET ADAL, CAMBRIDOE MAR 11
1546

SITE LDCATION PLAN

Page 216

@ Crown Copynight 2007, All rights reserved. Licence number 100020449



| SW\Docombees 2012

/

Bamwall Junciion

LI

\\///// V/
/8

Car hire use / Former second hand car m&%//

-Ogmﬁ.?__:n%mza?.%nm. wr
"E T ST S ST BVES R B W

=
LAND AT NEWMARKET ROAD, CAMBRIDGE

NOV 11 11250 @ Ad

SITE USE PLAN
=

1599 206 |

0
L.

50m

= T 5 = = _

0.0545ha  Application 11/0288/FUL Area A —

Car hire vehicle compound
0.0594ha  Application 11/0288/FUL Area B

Access between 2 portions of car hire use (shared with other users)
0.0935ha

Waste transfer operation - ferrous
0.107ha

Waste transfer operation - non ferrous
0.123ha

Open space
0.0218ha

Not currently in use
0.224ha

Land in ownership of applicant beyond fenced site - not in use, no likely future use
0.0195ha

Application Site 11/0288/FUL  0.1843ha

Land in same ownership as application site

© Crown Copyright 2007. All ights reserved. Licence number 100020449



HILSON
MORAN

consulting engineers

Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge

Noise Impact Assessment Report

Issue Date

1.0 7 July 201

HILSON MORAN
ONE DISCOVERY PLACE
COLUMBUS DRIVE
SOUTHWOOD WEST
FARNBOROUGH
HAMPSHIRE GU14 ONZ

engineering the future
for the built environment

Page 218



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge

Noise Impact Assessment Report

Project: 12384.02.02

Issue: 1.0

Status: Final

Date: 7 July 201
Originator: Mark Brightwell

Principal Acoustic Consultant

Approved: Nicholas Jones

Head of Acoustics

Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law
Copies to:

hmp104 — Acoustics

This report is confidential to the party to whom it is addressed and their professional advisers for the specific
purpose to which it refers. No responsibility is accepted to third parties, and neither the whole nor any
part of this report nor reference thereto may be published or disclosed.

12384.02.02 HILSON MORP&@'@IEEI‘IIIQIMITED

Issue 1.0



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

Contents

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2 INTRODUCTION

21  Background

2.2 Content

3 SITE DESCRIPTION

4 ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE SURVEY

5  SURVEY RESULTS & OBSERVATIONS
51 Noise Survey Results

52 Observations

6  NOISE IMPACT ASSESSMENT CRITERIA
7 ANALYSIS OF MEASURED NOISE LEVELS AND RECORDED OBSERVATIONS 10

O 00 0 00 O U N M BN~ W

APPENDIX A: ACOUSTIC TERMINOLOGY 12

APPENDIX B: NOISE MONITORING RESULTS 13

DOCUMENT CONTROL & REFERENCES 18

Change History 18

Changes Forecast 18

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 2 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 220



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Hilson Moran has been instructed to assess the noise impact associated with activities at the NMR Ltd scrap
metal site, Swanns Road, Cambridge (referred to hereafter as NMR Ltd) .

Station Lodge is a residential property located on the western side of Barnwell Junction, a private residential
road accessed off Newmarket Road in Cambridge. The NMR Ltd site is located to the west of Station Lodge
beyond a railway line.

Hilson Moran has undertaken a fully manned noise survey at the site and subsequent assessment of the noise
impact of noise from activities on the NMR Ltd site.

Throughout the survey period, the noise climate was generally dominated by activities at the NMR ltd site.
The majority of noisy events noted are due to one, or a combination of the following:

e Crane operations in southern scrap yard (moving/crushing and loading scrap metal onto trucks)

o Forklift loading scrap metal onto trucks

e Vehicle (trucks and forklift) movements.
Noise impact assessment criteria have been proposed based on BS 4142 guidance.

The results of the noise levels measurements and assessment indicate that during key periods of activity on
the NMR site, the noise impact was greater than the BS 4142 “complaints are likely’ threshold a positive
indication of a noise nuisance.

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 3 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 221



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

2 INTRODUCTION
21  Background

Hilson Moran has been instructed to assess the noise impact associated with activities at the NMR Ltd scrap
metal site, Swanns Road, Cambridge (referred to hereafter as NMR Ltd).

Station Lodge is a residential property located on the western side of Barnwell Junction, a private residential
road accessed off Newmarket Road in Cambridge. The NMR Ltd site is located to the west of Station Lodge
beyond a railway line.

Noise measurements and subjective observations have therefore been made in order to quantify the noise
levels from NMR Ltd, so as to assess the extent of any noise nuisance.

2.2 Content

Following this introductory section, a description of the area around Station Lodge, including the NMR Ltd site,
is given in Section 3. Section 4 gives a description of the environmental noise survey methodology, with results
presented in Section 5 and Appendix B. Section 6 proposes noise impact assessment criteria whilst Section 7
analyses in detail the measured noise levels in conjunction with noted observations.

Appendix A presents an explanation of the acoustic terminology used in this report.

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 4 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 222



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

3 SITE DESCRIPTION

Station Lodge is a residential property located on the western side of Barnwell Junction, a private residential
road accessed off Newmarket Road in Cambridge. The NMR Ltd site is located to the west of Station Lodge,
beyond the railway line.

Figure 3.1 shows the locations of Station Lodge and the NMR Ltd site.

Figure 3.1 Site Plan

L n
Railway

S ;
V&

Station
Lodge

NMR Ltd “’

&% / f Barnwell
Junction
/ 8m

Newmarket Road

J

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 5 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 223



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

4 ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE SURVEY

A fully manned environmental noise survey was undertaken by Hilson Moran between approximately 08:00
hours and 12:30 hours on Monday 4™ July 2011.

Lamax, Laeq @nd Lago (dB) noise levels were measured throughout the environmental noise survey. The
measurements were undertaken over contiguous 100 millisecond intervals.

The noise measurements were undertaken with the measurement sound level meter and microphone attached
to a tripod in the rear garden of Station Lodge, to the south of the house. The microphone was mounted
approximately 1.4m above the level of the ground towards the centre of the garden, approximately 5m from
the house facade.

The measurement position is indicated on Figure 4.1 by the symbol® .

Figure 4.1 Site Plan Indicating Measurement Position

h, ¥
'-..."

Station
Lodge

Barnwell
Junction

Newmarket Road

a J

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 6 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 224



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

The measurement position was selected as being the most appropriate position that would be representative
of noise levels affecting Station Lodge.

The equipment used for the noise survey is summarised in Table 4.2.

Table 4.2 Description of Equipment used for Noise Survey

Equipment Description Quantity Serial Number
01 dB Solo Type 1automated logging sound . 60673
level meter
15" mi -
01dB PRE 21 Type 172" microphone and pre 1 103452/14979
amplifier
01dB CAL 21 Calibrator 1 35183004

There was only light wind during the noise survey (less than 3m/s) generally from a southerly direction, the sky
was generally clear with patchy cloud. There was no rainfall during the survey and the roads were dry.

The noise monitoring equipment used was calibrated before and after the noise survey. No significant change

was found.

12384.02.02
Issue 1.0

HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

Page 225

Page 7 of 18



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

5 SURVEY RESULTS & OBSERVATIONS

51  Noise Survey Results

Appendix B presents time history graphs showing the Lamax Laeq and Laso (dB) noise levels measured by Hilson
Moran throughout the noise survey. Noise levels have been measured in 100 millisecond intervals, but are
shown as 10 second periods for presentation purposes.

5.2 Observations

Observations of significant events throughout the survey are annotated on the time history graphs in
Appendix B.

Throughout the survey period, the noise climate was generally dominated by activities at the NMR Ltd site,
including vehicle movements (trucks and forklift truck), crane activities (moving/crushing scrap metal, as well as
loading trucks with scrap metal), as well as forklift operations also (moving/crushing scrap metal, as well as
loading trucks with scrap metal).

In addition to the key periods of activity noted on the time history graphs, intermittent noises were noted to
emanate from the NMR Ltd site throughout the entire survey period. These included noise from occasional
vehicle movements (trucks and forklift) as well as occasional “crashes” of materials being moved around site.

During periods when noise from the NMR Ltd scrap yard was not audible, the background noise level was
noted to be dominated by noise from traffic movements on surrounding roads (predominantly Newmarket
Road), as well as bird noise and occasional planes and trains passing by.

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 8 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 226



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

6 NOISE IMPACT ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

For noise sources of an industrial nature (such as those associated with the activities at the NMR ltd scrap
yard), it is typical to assess the noise impact in accordance with the methodology and guidance given in British
Standard (BS) 4142: 1997 “Rating Industrial Noise affecting Mixed Residential and Industrial Areas’.

BS 4142 presents a method for assessing the likelihood of complaints due to a current or future noise source,
based on a comparison of the noise levels due to the source and the existing background noise level, both of
which are measured/predicted at a noise sensitive receiver e.g. a residential property.

The specific noise level due to the source is determined as an Laeq 7 (the noise level due specifically to the
source in question, in the absence of ambient levels) and a correction added if the source is tonal, intermittent
or emits distinguishable rattles, clicks, bangs, etc. The specific noise level plus the correction gives the rating
level. The rating level is then compared to the background noise level (Laso, 1) and the likelihood of complaints
determined in accordance with BS 4142 advice as follows:

- if the rating noise level is 10 dB greater than the background noise level, this indicates that “complaints are
likely’

- if the rating noise level is 5 dB greater the background noise level, then this is of “marginal significance’

- if the rating noise level is 10 dB less than the background noise level, then this is a positive indication that
“complaints are unlikely’.

BS 4142 advises that the reference time period, T, should be 1 hour for daytime periods (07:00 —23:00 hours).

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 9 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 227



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law
Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

7 ANALYSIS OF MEASURED NOISE LEVELS AND RECORDED OBSERVATIONS
Appendix B presents time history graphs showing the Lamax Laeq and Laso (dB) noise levels measured by Hilson
Moran throughout the noise survey.
The graphs also describe the noise sources that were noted to affect the measured noise levels.
The significant periods of activity observed and the associated measured noise levels are summarised in Table
7.1
Table 7.1 Summary of Significant Activities
Time Period Measured Total Corrected Total
T ’ Observations Noise Level Laeq, Noise Level Laeq i hour
(dB) (dB)
Trucks arriving and manoeuvring. Crane
08:24 — 09:34 operating in southern yard 54 54
(moving/crushing materials and loading
trucks)
09:45 —10:57 Truck manoeuvring near boundary, 55 54
forklift operating and loading truck
Trucks manoeuvring.
Crane operating in southern yard
M:26 —=12:26 | (moving/crushing materials and loading 54 54
trucks).
Forklift operating
The Laeq Noise levels presented in Table 7.1 are the total Laeq Noise levels for each measurement period, with
noise from train movements excluded.
During periods of little or no activity at the NMR Ltd site the Laso background noise level (excluding noise from
train movements) was noted to be approximately 46dBA.
In addition to the key periods of activities described in Table 7.1, intermittent noises were noted to emanate
from the NMR Ltd site throughout the entire survey period. These included noise from occasional vehicle
movements (trucks and forklift) as well as occasional “crashes” of materials being moved around site.
The following sections present a BS 4142 assessment for each of the key periods of activity presented in Table
7.1
JAR 08:24 — 09:34 hours
Activities observed at the NMR Ltd site during this period included trucks arriving and manoeuvring as well as
crane operations in the southern yard (moving/crushing materials and loading trucks).
The Laeq 1 nouy Measured during this period was 54 dB. As noted above, during periods of little or no activity at
the NMR Ltd site the Laso background noise level (excluding noise from train movements) was noted to be
approximately 46 dB. The Specific Noise Level during this hour can therefore be calculated to be 53 dB.
Given the nature of the noise, i.e. containing distinct, impulses (bangs, clicks, clatters, or thumps), the BS 4142
feature correction (+5 dB) would apply, resulting in a Rating Level of 58 dB.
Using the Background Noise Level of 46dB it can be seen that the difference is + 12 dB.
12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 10 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 228



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

According to BS 4142 guidance, this would indicate that “complaints are likely’.

712 09:45 —10:57 hours

Activities observed at the NMR Ltd site during this period included trucks manoeuvring as well as forklift
operations (loading truck parked close to eastern boundary of NMR site).

The Laeq (nowy Measured during this period was 54 dB. As noted above during periods of little or no activity at
the NMR Ltd site the Laso background noise level (excluding noise from train movements) was noted to be
approximately 46 dB. The Specific Noise Level during this hour can therefore be calculated to be 53 dB.

Given the nature of the noise, i.e. containing distinct, impulses (bangs, clicks, clatters, or thumps), the BS 4142
feature correction (+5 dB) would apply, resulting in a Rating Level of 58 dB.

Using the Background Noise Level of 46 dB it can be seen that the difference is + 12 dB.

According to BS 4142 guidance, this would indicate that “complaints are likely’.

713 11:26 —12:26 hours

Activities observed at the NMR Ltd site during this period included trucks arriving and manoeuvring, crane
operations in the southern yard (moving/crushing materials and loading trucks) and forklift operations.

The Laeq oy Measured during this period was 54 dB. As noted above during periods of little or no activity at
the NMR Ltd site the Laso background noise level (excluding noise from train movements) was noted to be
approximately 46 dB. The Specific Noise Level during this hour can therefore be calculated to be 53 dB.

Given the nature of the noise, i.e. containing distinct, impulses (bangs, clicks, clatters, or thumps), the BS 4142
feature correction (+5 dB) would apply, resulting in a Rating Level of 58 dB.

Using the Background Noise Level of 46 dB it can be seen that the difference is + 12 dB.

According to BS 4142 guidance, this would indicate that “complaints are likely’'.

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 11 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 229



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law
Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

APPENDIX A: ACOUSTIC TERMINOLOGY

Parameter
Decibel (dB)
Sound Pressure
Level (L)
A-weighting

(La or dBA)

Lnr

LAeq,T

LAmax

Description

A logarithmic scale representing the sound pressure or power
level relative to the threshold of hearing (20x10°¢ Pascals).

The sound pressure level is the sound pressure fluctuation
caused by vibrating objects relative to the threshold of hearing.

The sound level in dB with a filter applied to increase certain
frequencies and decrease others to correspond with the average
human response to sound.

The noise level exceeded for n% of the time over a given period
T.

e.g. Lyo, the noise level exceeded for 90% of the time
(background noise level).

The A-weighted equivalent continuous noise level over the time
period T. This is the sound level that is equivalent to the average
energy of noise recorded over a given period.

The A-weighted maximum noise level measured during the
measurement period.

12384.02.02
Issue 1.0

HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

Page 230

Page 12 of 18



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

MORAN

APPENDIX B: NOISE MONITORING RESULTS

=
g € 8§
- - -
:<=_3§ =
.
S T "
o <7 < o Vo)
£ —~ > 0
2 N e £ 3
9]
jz <
=cr =
_ 23 o
=} LN
UED = o
S 3 e & °
== s 8 "
= % o e %
— ~ (©
[ § L s
— o 8
/ = _F £ g %-’
c = 5@ S
'E y 1 ——> (7 o
= . S §
= ES 2
= T ® &
P c 3 o
w 3
— - c
=—7F s E
1 = Q E
— 5 8 E
S © £
] e
-< = P
— n S
N =
&
S
—@ 2
4 &
o
sl A4 —7 — 2
1 I = S
<
= ©
=
S
3
60
S
o
=
&
o o o o o o o o o o ©
9 o [ee] M~ O [T} < o ~ —
dp 19A37 24Nssald PUNOS PaINSEdN
12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 13 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 231



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

MORAN

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

9560 0560 G760

0¥:60 G¢60

(wwiyy) swny

0¢:60 SC60 060 Sl'60 0160 5060

00:60

! 0

3onJ3 Suipeo| pue Suiesado
WiPo4 ‘Adepunoq uaaisea
Jeau SuuAnsouew yanJd |

(s¥an43 Suipeo) pue sjelsalew 3uiysnid /Suirow)
paeA uiayinos uiunnesado aues) ‘Suuansouew pue SuiAlIe SYINIL

0¢

06V1——

xewy | ——

bay1—

0¢

I

oy

_ ?/\%i Y }}>3>§§<,<>3<><

ISP L Y

09

09

0L

7

\

08

\

uoI393]|0)
215e/M\

uleJ] uleJ)

06

0oL

gp 12A87 24nssa.d pPUnos paJnseap

Page 14 of 18

HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED

12384.02.02
Issue 1.0

Page 232



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report MORAN

=
g & ¥§
=
o <‘§ -
i wn
—=¢ A
r o
£ ?3 L
o [T
T~ — — i
L o
— =3 [ve)
== &
i z L
7 —=4 3 2
= —= < = i S
E —=§, b L —
== | |2 '
= & o g
= == 2 | S
© L
— B _
S g F A
— 4 )
> s TS
: &£ 3
= < [
b o —_
5 g E
— ﬁ% © L2 £
c ZD 2 3 :'E.,
95 . 3 - 2
S 5 = = o " £
T2 %2 = P =
f‘é i o I
< < = L
] 8 o
c I
é 20 ]
o 2 -
c = [}
S == & o
~ © - S
== : )
o L
< o]
€>§"‘ L g
:\C_ L ©
P — L
—=
/ Eg " n
c | - ©
KRN -
'_
\ éij |
== i
> I
T o
o o o o o o o o o o o —
9 o o] M~ O N < [aa] ~ —
dp |9A97 24nssaid punos painsesy
12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 15 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 233



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report MORAN

=
g €& K
—_— K
<} ;; B
<>
= i
E - % i
— _? % L
—~ S -
- 1= . < et
b =
= .5 I
— e—= A._ [¥e)
— = =3¢ - 8
SEZ g -
=3 ST wo .
/ € 2 £ E -
< |1 E,} 2% 2
o I B S —= S22 [ =
L s L
— o |
1= —F 2 L
<- <; E L
=1 = . g [
o £
- == ()] - O
& L2 E
N (@] i -é
<-; | CIE)
—<=__= B
—— i
—] o
£ §> I
- == :
= i
[T
> = = F
= = |
f——— - Q
<>§ -
<*=_§ 3 i
| L
g
© =
(= _— i
=+ |
= E T o
S & 8 R 8 & § g & =2 o
dp |9A87 2INssa.d PUNOS painses
12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 16 of 18

Issue 1.0

Page 234



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report MORAN

@
g £ ¥§
- - -
r
n
r
L o
n
Fo
[Fa]
r
s
=
L X
[
£ S I =
& X A
l_ -
— B g E
L &N £
— =
L <
)
E F . E
@ r 8 F
L = |
%]
>
— -
O
5 L
£ = 4
8 2 [ A
= L
= .&D; 5w
= =5 2E
2 >% 9o F
£ r o £ © v -
— = o F N
© S o L 5 —
— K £ § 'g E L
L o3 -
= Scw @
S i =)
= =g L A
£
= o E -
53 ()
5 8- |
£ Q F O
© ; c ~N
- © L —
- (@]
? -
> L
o
e
i i =
o o o o o o o o o o o
o loN ) = INe) n < ) ~N =
dp 19A37 24Nssald puUNos painsesyy
12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 17 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 235



Richard Buxton Environmental & Public Law

Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction, Cambridge — Noise Impact Assessment Report

DOCUMENT CONTROL & REFERENCES

Hilson Moran Partnership Limited, One Discovery Place, Columbus Drive, Southwood West, Farnborough, Hampshire
GU14 ONZ

Copyright @ Hilson Moran Partnership Limited 2011. All rights reserved.

Change History

Issue 0.1 6 July 201 Document prepared by Mark Brightwell and forwarded to Nicholas
Jones for review.

Issue 0.2 7 July 201 Document reviewed by Nicholas Jones and returned to Mark Brightwell
with some minor comments and amendments.

Issue 1.0 7 July 201 Document issued.

Changes Forecast

None.

12384.02.02 HILSON MORAN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Page 18 of 18
Issue 1.0

Page 236



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

Synopsis on barrier effects
Station Lodge, Barnwell Junction

Monitoring of metals handling noise
arising from NMR site

Swanns Road Cambridge

Monitoring 8 September 2010
and 4 October 2010

Mike Stigwood, MAS Environmental

Report date 11" January 2011

1.0 Purpose of this synopsis

1.1 This synopsis report has been prepared following a request by Richard
Buxton Solicitors, the legal representatives of residents of Barnwell
Junction. It reports on the assessment of noise levels received at Station
Lodge following the installation of two barriers at the NMR Ltd scrap
metal site Swanns Road, Cambridge. This analysis follows nuisance
proceedings in the High Court in 2010 where the installation and
apparent benefit of the barriers were an important aspect of the findings

of the court.

Page 237

Page 1 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

2.0 Discussion on noise impact

2.1 Just prior to the hearing in relation to the nuisance proceedings, two
barriers were erected on the NMR site which the Defendant intended
would help to mitigate the noise nuisance. Joint monitoring was
undertaken by Sharps Redmore and MAS Environmental to assess the
resulting mitigation provided by these barriers. | expressed concern
during the nuisance proceedings that any finding using the
measurements at the joint monitoring in relation to the effectiveness of
the barriers was preliminary. This concern arose because: (i) the post
construction measurements were undertaken with full knowledge of the
operators, (ii) the materials which generate worst-case noise were not
handled, and (iii) the atmospheric conditions did not reflect worst-case
propagation. Consequently, the joint post-barrier monitoring exercise
did not allow a like-with-like comparison of noise levels before and after
the installation of the barriers. The joint measurements were also
conducted on a day when nearby traffic flow was high and so

background noise levels were at their highest.

2.2 At the joint assessment, the experts had agreed a typical or average
noise level emanating from the ferrous (southern yard) during crane
operations was about 61dB LAeq without the barriers, for the duration
of an operation / event, when measured in the south garden of Station
Lodge. It was generally considered the event duration was about 40
minutes. This gave an hourly value of 59dB LAeq. Subsequent
measurements on 8" September 2010 and 4™ October 2010 have
produced an hourly value of 56dB LAeq (1hour). This is only a 3dB

improvement.

2.3 In my report to the court of 21% March 2010 | addressed in detail noise
attenuation predictions and the limited measurements. The predictions
suggested a reduction in the range of 5-7dB was probable but |
identified this could be lower, especially when taking downwind effects

into account as was required for comparison. The monitoring results

Page 238

Page 2 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

obtained from the three separate periods, assessed since the
construction of the barriers and without any knowledge of monitoring by
the operators indicate a reduction of only 3dB compared to the existing /
previous screens / fences. This supports my analysis that any noise
attenuation benefits may be relatively small and insufficient to render
noise what was otherwise accepted to be a nuisance not to be a
nuisance. The main reason the benefits are nominal are because there
was existing screening at two separate points; there was reduction due
to the garden fencing and also the site fencing, the joint monitoring
assessment was not originally undertaken under downwind conditions
and the operators were aware of the tests and handled materials which

generate less noise.

24 To ensure correct comparison of results the procedures set out in
BS7445 2003 need to be followed.

2.5 BS7445 2003 effectively provides two measurement procedures; one
addresses long term values averaged over a prolonged period, typically
of several months or seasons. This is not used in the UK. The second
is for short-term noise measurements typically of a day or less. In this
case measurements are used for comparison with the complaint
prediction levels provided in BS4142 1997 which looks at short duration
noise levels of an hour for daytime noise. In these circumstances, to
compare with the guidance in BS4142 1997 and meet BS7445 2003,
the receiver needs to be downwind of the source. Where this does not
arise the levels determined need to be increased to reflect the
difference. The joint test undertaken before the hearing was not under

downwind conditions and thus reduction in noise was partly due to wind.

2.6 The data obtained from the joint monitoring procedure identified a
complaint prediction level, determined using BS4142 1997 prior to the

construction of the barriers of 18dB and post the barrier a reduction in

Page 239

Page 3 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

the southernmost garden of Station Lodge to a complaint prediction
value of 16dB."

2.7 In order to check the resulting noise impact arising post the decision of
the court visits were undertaken on Wednesday g™ September 2010
and Monday 4™ October 2010. The measurements and data analysis is
set out below but the outcome of the assessment is that the resulting
complaint prediction level obtained is consistently at about 16dB, which
indicates an improvement of only 2dB and source noise reduction of
only 3dB. This is 4dB less than identified in the judgement and a very

positive indication of complaints remains.
3.0 Summary of findings

3.1 Noise measurements were undertaken at Station Lodge in the garden

on three occasions.

3.2 On 8" September 2010 measurements were made between 9.25-
10:00 hours. On 4™ October 2010 measurements were between
09:54-11:00 hours and again between 11:54-12:45 hours. On 8"
September and the first occasion on 4™ October scrap metals were
being handled by the crane in the area marked in blue below. This is
the area screened by the shipping containers. The corresponding
noise monitoring location is marked by the blue square and is
representative of the noise levels in the main garden and the position
used for joint monitoring undertaken by Sharps Redmore and MAS
Environmental for the nuisance proceedings. These measurements

are therefore directly comparable.

3.3 The second measurement period on 4™ October 2010 recorded scrap
metals being handled by the crane in the area marked in red below.

The corresponding noise monitoring location is marked by the red

' This is only a 2dB reduction compared to a 3dB reduction in source noise. This arises as
background noise varies and complaint prediction depends on which background noise value is used.

Page 240

Page 4 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

square and is representative of noise levels at the kitchen patio of
Station Lodge. It should be noted that as the barrier for this area is
open to its southern end then noise levels are likely to be higher in the
southern garden of Station Lodge than at this location. The complaint

prediction analysis is therefore conservative.

3.4 Although there was no rainfall during the monitoring periods there had
been heavy rainfall in the night prior to 4th October 2010. The roads
were still wet and traffic noise is expected to be higher than under dry

conditions?.

3.5 On 8" September 2010 the wind was northerly. On 4™ October 2010 it
was south-westerly but not strong (less than 5m/s) during both
assessments. Thus, the September values will be higher under

downwind conditions. The downwind criterion for October are met.

2 Tyre noise interaction with a wet road leads to increased noise emission.

Page 241

Page 5 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

3.6 The noise from the scrap yard dominated the noise environment on all
occasions, when the scrap yard noise did cease briefly, road traffic
noise was the main contributor to the ambient noise environment.
There was some noise from the occasional plane and wildlife noise
from birds although there was no significant contribution from these
sources to the average noise level (LAeq). Trains passing by were
infrequent but did significantly impact the LAeq; as a result all train-
affected noise has been removed from calculations along with the road

traffic noise.

3.7 Noise monitoring 9.25-10:00, g September 2010. The noise was
operating some time before | started recording. The event continued in
excess of 50 minutes. The background noise level was obtained after

crane operations ceased at 45dB LA90.

Total noise from all sources 60.1dB(A)

Specific noise level LAeq(60min) — excl trains and ambient  56dB(A)

Acoustic feature correction: 5dB
Rating level (57 +5): 61dB(A)
Background level LA90 (23min) 45dB(A)
Excess of rating level over background level: 16dB

3.8 Adjustment for wind direction would increase the source noise and
background noise levels. The increased source should be higher than
any increased background noise as the latter is a result of noise from a
wider range of directions. Assessment indicates complaints are likely
and resulting noise impact is significantly higher than identified in the

court proceedings.

3.9 Noise monitoring 09:54-11:00 4™ October 2010. An hourly LAeq was
calculated for the period 09:53 - 10:53. Background noise levels were
also determined for this hourly period but are not considered truly
representative due to the impact on noise levels from the whine of the

crane whilst operating. Background noise levels were therefore

Page 242

Page 6 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

determined from shorter periods, during the hour measurement period,

when the crane was not operating.

Total noise from all sources 58.4dB(A)
Specific noise level LAeq(60min) excl trains & ambient 56dB(A)
Acoustic feature correction: 5dB
Rating level (56 +5): 61dB(A)
Background level LA90 (23min) 45dB(A)
Excess of rating level over background level: 16dB

3.10  Assessment indicates complaints are likely and the level is only 2dB
lower than the original complaint prediction value of 18dB relied upon
by the experts. This is a minor reduction in noise and indicates
excessive noise impact continues greater than identified in the court
proceedings. The reduction is consistently less than indicated to the

court from the joint monitoring of March 2010.

3.11  Noise monitoring 11:54-12:45. Activity was noted by the residents as
having been present for at least 10 minutes before the commencement
of the measurement period. An hourly average noise level (LAeq) was
calculated using data for the 50 minutes measured and taking a 10
minute average (LAeq) estimated using the 10 minute period from the
beginning of the measurements. Background noise levels were also
determined for this hour but are not considered truly representative due
to the impact on noise levels from the whine of the crane whilst
operating and the scrap handling. As a consequence background noise
levels were taken for a period during the measurements when the crane

was not operating and handling / site noise had subsided to some

extent.
Total noise from all sources 60dB(A)
Specific noise level LAeq(60min): 57dB(A)
Acoustic feature correction: 5dB
Rating level (57+5): 62dB(A)

Page 243

Page 7 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

Background level LA90 (10min) 46dB(A)

Excess of rating level over background level: 16dB

3.12  These results are consistent and in agreement with the findings on
each occasion monitoring has taken place post the decision. The
benefit of the barriers over the previous screening features is identified
as about 3dB and provides only minor and insignificant improvements
over the situation found to constitute a nuisance. The greater
reductions believed to have occurred from the installation of the barriers
have not materialised in practice. The barriers need to be increased
substantially in height to achieve any expected reductions. Further, the
large gaps in the barriers in the central area would need to be infilled if

the alleged reductions previously indicated are to be achieved.

3.13  The complaint prediction values of 16dB should be compared to the
criterion usually applied by local planning authorities or the Environment
Agency which look for values of 3-5dB to avoid the likelihood of

excessive harm to amenity. There is substantial disparity.
4.0 Conclusions

41 The measurement evidence obtained since the installation of the

barriers and without prior knowledge of the operators is consistent.

4.2 The barriers have provided minimal improvement in noise levels, and
far less than predicted. This possible outcome was identified in the

nuisance proceedings.

4.3 The lower attenuation of noise arises as there was previously
attenuation due to solid fencing and test conditions did not reflect

typical operations / conditions.

Page 244

Page 8 of 12



MAS MASSyn110111INMR

ENVIRONMENTAL

4.4 Substantial increases in barrier height are required over those currently
provided to attempt to achieve the resultant levels perceived to have

occurred in the court proceedings.

4.5 The post proceedings assessment indicates noise complaints are likely
and the complaint prediction values are substantially in excess of the
normal criterion of acceptability applied under the Town and Country

Planning Acts.

4.6 In my opinion, the level of noise experienced at Station Lodge
continues to be unacceptable. If it is experienced for the periods and
duration permitted further to the Defendant’s undertaking to the Court
(i.e. for periods of up to 2.5 hours in any one day and for up to 10 hours
in any week), which is not untypical according to the Defendant’s
evidence before the court, then this constitutes significant interference

with the Claimants’ use and enjoyment of their home.

Page 245

Page 9 of 12



09:25:11
09:25:55
09:26:39
09:27:23
09:28:07
09:28:52
09:29:36
09:30:20
09:31:04
09:31:48
09:32:32
09:33:16
09:34:00
09:34:45
09:35:29
09:36:13
09:36:57
09:37:41
09:38:25
09:39:09
09:39:53
09:40:38
09:41:22
09:42:06
09:42:50
09:43:34
09:44:18
09:45:02
09:45:46
09:46:31

09:47:15
09:47:59
09:48:43
09:49:27
09:50:11

09:50:55
09:51:39
09:52:24
09:53:08
09:53:52
09:54:36
09:55:20
09:56:04
09:56:48
09:57:33
09:58:17
09:59:01

09:59:45

N
o

9y¢ abed

- 08

~ G8

- 06

(s1webay pejeinoje)) bay sw Gz|
(w‘bay pejenoje)) bey sw Gz
(wpgbey pejenoled) bay sw Gzi
(wgo| ‘bay peienoey) bay sw gz|

06V pouad

bey pouad
bay sw Gzl

FRAIN

TRAIN

IRAIN

(v)ap

HINN wodj asiou Buljpuey desdas - uoounp [|omuieg abpo] uoljels

010Z dag g0 - ydeis Buriopuoly asioN

TVLNIWNOJYIANSG

SVYIA



09:53:57
09:55:07
09:56:17
09:57:27
09:58:37
09:59:47
10:01:01
10:02:11
10:03:21
10:04:37
10:05:47
10:06:57
10:08:14
10:09:24
10:10:34
10:11:44
10:12:54
10:14:04
10:15:14
10:16:31
10:17:41
10:18:51
10:20:01
10:21:11
10:22:21
10:23:31
10:24:41
10:25:51
10:27:01
10:28:11
10:29:21
10:30:31
10:31:41
10:32:51
10:34:01
10:35:11
10:36:21
10:37:31
10:38:41
10:39:51
10:41:01
10:42:19
10:43:29
10:44:50
10:46:00
10:47:10
10:48:20
10:49:30
10:50:59
10:52:09
10:53:19

0¢

r GE

r oy

14

iinuliﬁu.llmli.l l l‘

Al

J i
BRI

fii |

L

/2 ebed

S
S
9
r 69

|

i
ﬂ

9SI0U BUEBIO OU OBV Pelenoled SWGZ |

)

8SI0U 8UBID SBpN|dUI 0EY] Poled swsz |

bay pouad swgz|

beysw Gz|

ap

0102 390 0 - ydeis Buriopuoly asioN

TVLNIWNOJYIANSG

SVYIA



11:54:35
11:55:35
11:56:34
11:57:34
11:58:34
11:59:33
12:00:35
12:01:35
12:02:39
12:03:39
12:04:38
12:05:38
12:06:37
12:07:37
12:08:37
12:09:42
12:10:42
12:11:42
12:12:41
12:13:41
12:14:41
12:15:45
12:16:44
12:17:44
12:18:44
12:19:43
12:20:43
12:21:43
12:22:42
12:23:42
12:24:42
12:25:41
12:26:41
12:27:40
12:28:40
12:29:40
12:30:39
12:31:39
12:32:38
12:33:38
12:34:38
12:35:42
12:36:42
12:37:42
12:38:41
12:39:41
12:40:41
12:41:40
12:42:40
12:43:39
12:44:45

N
o

8¢ abed

r 68

- 06

9SI0U BUEBID OU OB PeeNoled SWGZ |

9SI0U 8UBJD SBpN|dUl 0EY] Poled swSsz |

bae pouad swggz|

bay sw Gz|

ap

0102 390 0 - ydeis Buriopuoly asioN

TVLNIWNOJYIANSG

SVYIA



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 27/10/2011 East Area Committee

	6 Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods
	7 East and South Corridor Funding
	8 Approach From Sainsburys for the City Council to Dedicate Land at 103 Mill Road for use as a Loading Bay
	10 MEETING DATES 2012/13
	Provisional Calendar 2013-14, 14/09/2011 Civic Affairs

	11a 11/0664/EXP: 187 Cherry Hinton Road
	11b 11/0535/FUL: 14 Emery Street
	11c 11/1097/EXP: 71-73 New Street
	11d 11/0872/FUL: 292 Mill Road
	11e 11/0288/FUL: 15 Swann™s Road

